
From: Ionin, Jonas (CPC)
Cc: Feliciano, Josephine (CPC)
Subject: FW: *** PRESS RELEASE ***SAN FRANCISCO REACHES MILESTONE: 80% OF ELIGIBLE POPULATION HAVE

RECEIVED AT LEAST ONE VACCINE DOSE
Date: Friday, June 11, 2021 1:26:41 PM
Attachments: 06.11.2021 80% Vaccinations.pdf

 
 
Jonas P Ionin
Director of Commission Affairs
San Francisco Planning
49 South Van Ness Avenue, Suite 1400, San Francisco, CA 94103
Direct: 628.652.7589 | www.sfplanning.org
San Francisco Property Information Map
 
 

From: "Press Office, Mayor (MYR)" <mayorspressoffice@sfgov.org>
Date: Friday, June 11, 2021 at 11:55 AM
To: "Press Office, Mayor (MYR)" <mayorspressoffice@sfgov.org>
Subject: *** PRESS RELEASE ***SAN FRANCISCO REACHES MILESTONE: 80% OF
ELIGIBLE POPULATION HAVE RECEIVED AT LEAST ONE VACCINE DOSE
 
FOR IMMEDIATE RELEASE:
Friday, June 11, 2021
Contact: Mayor’s Office of Communications, mayorspressoffice@sfgov.org
 
 

*** PRESS RELEASE ***
SAN FRANCISCO REACHES MILESTONE: 80% OF ELIGIBLE

POPULATION HAVE RECEIVED AT LEAST ONE VACCINE
DOSE

San Francisco is the first major city in the U.S. to reach this milestone due to a robust
citywide vaccination program, which includes mass vaccinations and targeted, data-driven

outreach to communities in need
 

San Francisco, CA — Mayor London N. Breed announced that as of today 80% of eligible
San Francisco residents have received at least one dose of the COVID-19 vaccine, with
nearly 70% of all San Franciscans fully vaccinated. San Francisco is the first major
American city to achieve this milestone, and the City’s vaccination rates are among the
highest in the nation and the world. In addition, 90% of all residents 65 and older have
received at least one dose.
 
“From the beginning of this pandemic, San Franciscans have led the way in their efforts to
slow the spread of the virus, keep each other safe, and end this pandemic. That has continued
through our vaccination efforts, which have focused on ensuring that all our residents have
access to vaccines and that they’re convenient,” said Mayor London Breed. “Now, with 80%
of our eligible residents vaccinated, our city is healthy, our businesses are reopening, and
people are once again enjoying everything that makes San Francisco such a wonderful place to
live and visit.”

mailto:jonas.ionin@sfgov.org
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
San Francisco is the first major city in the U.S. to reach this milestone due to a robust citywide 


vaccination program, which includes mass vaccinations and targeted, data-driven outreach to 


communities in need 


 


San Francisco, CA — Mayor London N. Breed announced that as of today 80% of eligible 


San Francisco residents have received at least one dose of the COVID-19 vaccine, with nearly 


70% of all San Franciscans fully vaccinated. San Francisco is the first major American city to 


achieve this milestone, and the City’s vaccination rates are among the highest in the nation and 


the world. In addition, 90% of all residents 65 and older have received at least one dose. 


 


“From the beginning of this pandemic, San Franciscans have led the way in their efforts to slow 


the spread of the virus, keep each other safe, and end this pandemic. That has continued through 


our vaccination efforts, which have focused on ensuring that all our residents have access to 


vaccines and that they’re convenient,” said Mayor London Breed. “Now, with 80% of our 


eligible residents vaccinated, our city is healthy, our businesses are reopening, and people are 


once again enjoying everything that makes San Francisco such a wonderful place to live and 


visit.” 


 


The effectiveness and availability of COVID-19 vaccines have dramatically driven down case 


rates, hospitalizations and community spread in San Francisco. As of June 8, the City’s case rate 


was 1.4 per 100,000, 25% lower than the State and representing a 96% decrease in COVID-19 


diagnoses since January.  Hospitalizations are at their lowest point since the pandemic began and 


testing positivity is 0.56 %, down from 5.36% since the last peak in January and 13.46% in April 


of 2020.  


 


“I would like to thank San Franciscans for doing their part to protect themselves, their families, 


and their community against COVID-19 by getting vaccinated,” said Dr. Grant Colfax, Director 


of Public Health. “Safe and effective COVID-19 vaccine, coupled with continued preventive 


measures, helps us continue to safely reopen our City and get back to doing the things we love. 


While we celebrate today’s milestone, let’s remember we have more work to do to get as many 


San Franciscans vaccinated as possible, especially in communities disproportionately impacted 


by COVID-19 and where we see lower vaccination rates. We are working in partnership with 


communities throughout the City to offer low-barrier vaccine access.” 
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The City is increasing efforts to increase vaccine access in neighborhoods with lower rates 


with a robust vaccination program that includes low barrier drop-in vaccines at our health 


centers and hospitals, hosting family day events, providing mobile vaccination drives and 


home visits all in partnership with the community.  


  


“The Covid Command Center team has worked tirelessly with community partners to make 


vaccine available efficiently and equitably to get us to this important and exciting milestone of 


80%. said Mary Ellen Carroll, Executive Director of the Department of Emergency 


Management. “We continue to work with community partners and healthcare providers who 


serve communities that have been disproportionately impacted by COVID-19 to ensure outreach 


is being done in areas where we have lower vaccination rates, including our residents ages 12 to 


15, who most recently became eligible.”  


The City has partnered with health providers and community partners to reach this 80 percent 


milestone, including Kaiser Permanente, UCSF, Sutter Health, Dignity Health, Chinese Hospital, 


The San Francisco Community Clinic Consortium, and community based organizations such as 


the Latino Taskforce and Unidos en Salud, Rafiki Coalition, Glide, Larkin Street Youth, Code 


Tenderloin, UCSF Benioff Homelessness and Housing Initiative, the San Francisco African 


American Faith-based Coalition, Excelsior Strong, UCSF Black Health Initiative, Hope SF, the 


San Francisco Marin Food Bank and many more.  


The Public Health Department encourages all those eligible to get vaccinated as soon as possible, 


so that San Francisco and the entire Bay Area can continue to safely reopen. Appointments and 


drop in opportunities are widely available throughout the City, including at Zuckerberg San 


Francisco General Hospital, several health centers and pharmacies; and at Moscone South, where 


hours have been expanded to 10 a.m. to 6 p.m. every day for drop-in appointments. For 


additional vaccine information, appointments, and more vaccination sites, please 


visit: sf.gov/get-vaccinated or call (628) 652-2700. Please note that the Vaccine Data Tracker can 


take up to 24 hours to update. 


   


   


###  


 



http://sf.gov/getvaccinated





 
The effectiveness and availability of COVID-19 vaccines have dramatically driven down case
rates, hospitalizations and community spread in San Francisco. As of June 8, the City’s case
rate was 1.4 per 100,000, 25% lower than the State and representing a 96% decrease in
COVID-19 diagnoses since January.  Hospitalizations are at their lowest point since the
pandemic began and testing positivity is 0.56 %, down from 5.36% since the last peak in
January and 13.46% in April of 2020.
 
“I would like to thank San Franciscans for doing their part to protect themselves, their
families, and their community against COVID-19 by getting vaccinated,” said Dr. Grant
Colfax, Director of Public Health. “Safe and effective COVID-19 vaccine, coupled with
continued preventive measures, helps us continue to safely reopen our City and get back to
doing the things we love. While we celebrate today’s milestone, let’s remember we have more
work to do to get as many San Franciscans vaccinated as possible, especially in communities
disproportionately impacted by COVID-19 and where we see lower vaccination rates. We are
working in partnership with communities throughout the City to offer low-barrier vaccine
access.”
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
serve communities that have been disproportionately impacted by COVID-19 to ensure
outreach is being done in areas where we have lower vaccination rates, including our residents
ages 12 to 15, who most recently became eligible.”
The City has partnered with health providers and community partners to reach this 80 percent
milestone, including Kaiser Permanente, UCSF, Sutter Health, Dignity Health, Chinese
Hospital, The San Francisco Community Clinic Consortium, and community based
organizations such as the Latino Taskforce and Unidos en Salud, Rafiki Coalition, Glide,
Larkin Street Youth, Code Tenderloin, UCSF Benioff Homelessness and Housing Initiative,
the San Francisco African American Faith-based Coalition, Excelsior Strong, UCSF Black
Health Initiative, Hope SF, the San Francisco Marin Food Bank and many more.

The Public Health Department encourages all those eligible to get vaccinated as soon as
possible, so that San Francisco and the entire Bay Area can continue to safely reopen.
Appointments and drop in opportunities are widely available throughout the City, including at
Zuckerberg San Francisco General Hospital, several health centers and pharmacies; and at
Moscone South, where hours have been expanded to 10 a.m. to 6 p.m. every day for drop-in
appointments. For additional vaccine information, appointments, and more vaccination sites,
please visit: sf.gov/get-vaccinated or call (628) 652-2700. Please note that the Vaccine Data
Tracker can take up to 24 hours to update.
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This message is from outside the City email system. Do not open links or attachments from untrusted
sources.

From: Ionin, Jonas (CPC)
Cc: Feliciano, Josephine (CPC); Pantoja, Gabriela (CPC)
Subject: FW: Support new homes at 1900 Diamond Street
Date: Friday, June 11, 2021 9:29:24 AM

 
 
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
 
 

From: Jan Novak <info@email.actionnetwork.org>
Reply-To: "jan.novak@gmail.com" <jan.novak@gmail.com>
Date: Monday, June 7, 2021 at 4:24 PM
To: "Ionin, Jonas (CPC)" <jonas.ionin@sfgov.org>
Subject: Support new homes at 1900 Diamond Street
 

 

Mr. Jonas Ionin,

I’m writing to express my strong support for an exciting project that would bring 24 new
homes to a vacant lot located at 1900 Diamond Street (at the intersection of Noe Valley,
Diamond Heights and Glen Park).

For the first time in over 40 years, a housing proposal with more than 20 homes could
happen in Noe Valley, Diamond Heights or Glen Park. This marks a great step towards
housing equity in San Francisco and will help to alleviate our city's housing shortage,
displacement, and affordability crises. It's long past time for District 8 neighborhoods to add
their fair share of new homes.

Moreover, these proposed new homes at 1900 Diamond Street are exceedingly thoughtful,
well-designed, and well-located. Their many highlights include:

1. Close proximity to public transit: Two major SFMTA bus lines, 35 and 52, stop directly in
front of the new homes. The site is also only ¾ mile from the Glen Park BART Station, an
easy walk or bike ride away.

2. Economical land use: A steep, undeveloped hillside will be transformed into 24 homes.

3. Affordable housing: 11 affordable homes will be created (31% of all new homes) with the

mailto:jonas.ionin@sfgov.org
mailto:Josephine.Feliciano@sfgov.org
mailto:Gabriela.Pantoja@sfgov.org
http://www.sfplanning.org/
https://sfplanninggis.org/pim/


$2.8M in affordable housing fees being paid to the Mayor’s Office of Housing.

Moreover, the land is being sold by the Cesar Chavez Foundation, a 45-year old non-profit
headed by Cesar’s son, Paul Chavez. The proceeds from the sale of 1900 Diamond will be
used by the Cesar Chavez Foundation to further its mission of building affordable housing
and providing services to Latinx working families.

4. Family housing: These homes are designed for families. All townhomes have three
bedrooms, and the home layouts were informed by Emeryville’s family housing design
guidelines.

5. Neighborhood cohesiveness - These homes have been thoughtfully designed to blend in
with Diamond Height's mid-century aesthetic through stacked townhomes.

6. Open space - The area surrounding these homes is one of the most park-rich in all of
SF, with five parks, playgrounds, and open spaces located within blocks.

For all these and many other reasons, I urge you to support these new homes and help
your district become a place where more residents can call home.

Jan Novak 
jan.novak@gmail.com 
15A Heyman Avenue 
San Francisco, California 94110

 



From: Ionin, Jonas (CPC)
Cc: Feliciano, Josephine (CPC)
Subject: FW: *** PRESS RELEASE*** MAYOR LONDON BREED AND SUPERVISOR MYRNA MELGAR ANNOUNCE

EXPANSION OF FREE MUNI FOR YOUTH PROGRAM
Date: Friday, June 11, 2021 9:12:11 AM
Attachments: 06.10.21 Free Muni for Youth.pdf

 
 
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
Date: Thursday, June 10, 2021 at 11:41 AM
To: "Press Office, Mayor (MYR)" <mayorspressoffice@sfgov.org>
Subject: *** PRESS RELEASE*** MAYOR LONDON BREED AND SUPERVISOR MYRNA MELGAR
ANNOUNCE EXPANSION OF FREE MUNI FOR YOUTH PROGRAM
 
FOR IMMEDIATE RELEASE:
Thursday, June 10, 2021
Contact: Mayor’s Office of Communications, mayorspressoffice@sfgov.org
 

*** PRESS RELEASE***
MAYOR LONDON BREED AND SUPERVISOR MYRNA

MELGAR ANNOUNCE EXPANSION OF FREE MUNI FOR
YOUTH PROGRAM

The Free Muni for Youth Program will provide free Muni rides to all youth 18 and under in
San Francisco, no application required  

San Francisco, CA – Mayor London N. Breed, Supervisor Myrna Melgar, and the San
Francisco Municipal Transportation Agency (SFMTA) today announced that the SFMTA will
expand the Free Muni for Youth program so that everyone 18 and under can ride Muni free of
charge, without having to apply.
 
The expansion of the Free Muni for Youth Program was originally adopted by the SFMTA
Board of Directors in April 2020, but due to the COVID-19 pandemic SFMTA lacked the
financial resources to fund this program. By allocating $2 million in the upcoming budget,
Mayor Breed is ensuring that Muni is accessible to the more than 100,000 youth across San
Francisco.
 
“For some people in our city the financial burden of riding Muni is small, but so many young
people and families with children rely on public transportation and these fares have a
significant impact on their budgets,” said Mayor Breed. “After more than a year of social

mailto:jonas.ionin@sfgov.org
mailto:Josephine.Feliciano@sfgov.org
http://www.sfplanning.org/
https://sfplanninggis.org/pim/
mailto:mayorspressoffice@sfgov.org
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
The Free Muni for Youth Program will provide free Muni rides to all youth 18 and under in San 


Francisco, no application required   


 


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


people and families with children rely on public transportation and these fares have a significant 


impact on their budgets,” said Mayor Breed. “After more than a year of social distancing and 


virtual learning, I want to see students taking the bus to get to school and to hang out with their 


friends. This will not only save them money, but also hopefully foster a new generation of Muni 


riders. I want to thank Supervisor Melgar for bringing this idea forward and pushing to make it a 


reality.” 


 


“Communities have been fighting for free Muni for all youth for over a decade, and I’m so 


grateful to Mayor Breed for engaging with me, and for funding a program our city so desperately 


needs. This collaborative spirit is essential to making progress on community needs,” said 


Supervisor Melgar. “This makes sense now during our recovery and it makes sense in the future 


to reduce our carbon footprint, introduce more riders into the system, and help youth and their 


families economically by providing free transportation to and from school and activities. This 


removes barriers, makes for a more confident and equitable system and paves the way for a more 


accessible system in the future. I look forward to this program’s success, sustainability, and to 


continuing to advocate for a stronger, sustainable, accessible Muni and to making San Francisco 


a more child and family friendly city.”  


 


The Free Muni for Youth Program began as a pilot in March 2013, and provides free Muni rides 


to children ages 5 to 18 who reside in low- to moderate-income households. With this 
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announcement, all young people will qualify for the program without having to apply. The Free 


Muni for Youth Program will run through Fiscal Year 2021-2022. The SFMTA also provides 


Free Muni for seniors and persons with disabilities. Program eligibility is set at an annual income 


at or below 100 percent of the Bay Area median. The SFMTA Board of Directors expanded this 


program in 2020 to persons experiencing homelessness. 


 


“As the representative of the District with the largest population of students enrolled in SFUSD, I 


can tell you with great confidence that having access to Free Muni for all youth will have an 


overwhelmingly positive impact for working families in my District and throughout the City,” 


said Supervisor Ahsha Safaí. “It is vital to fund Free Muni for all youth as we begin our summer 


programs and return to in person learning in the fall.”  


 


“San Francisco’s youth depend on Muni to get them to school, their extracurricular activities, 


and part-time jobs and more—public transit helps them grow and thrive,” said Gwyneth Borden, 


Chair of the SFMTA Board of Directors. “Our Board is committed to removing any and all 


barriers to opportunity and education for the City’s youngest residents.”  


 


### 


 


 







distancing and virtual learning, I want to see students taking the bus to get to school and to
hang out with their friends. This will not only save them money, but also hopefully foster a
new generation of Muni riders. I want to thank Supervisor Melgar for bringing this idea
forward and pushing to make it a reality.”
 
“Communities have been fighting for free Muni for all youth for over a decade, and I’m so
grateful to Mayor Breed for engaging with me, and for funding a program our city so
desperately needs. This collaborative spirit is essential to making progress on community
needs,” said Supervisor Melgar. “This makes sense now during our recovery and it makes
sense in the future to reduce our carbon footprint, introduce more riders into the system, and
help youth and their families economically by providing free transportation to and from school
and activities. This removes barriers, makes for a more confident and equitable system and
paves the way for a more accessible system in the future. I look forward to this program’s
success, sustainability, and to continuing to advocate for a stronger, sustainable, accessible
Muni and to making San Francisco a more child and family friendly city.”
 
The Free Muni for Youth Program began as a pilot in March 2013, and provides free Muni
rides to children ages 5 to 18 who reside in low- to moderate-income households. With this
announcement, all young people will qualify for the program without having to apply. The
Free Muni for Youth Program will run through Fiscal Year 2021-2022. The SFMTA also
provides Free Muni for seniors and persons with disabilities. Program eligibility is set at an
annual income at or below 100 percent of the Bay Area median. The SFMTA Board of
Directors expanded this program in 2020 to persons experiencing homelessness.
 
“As the representative of the District with the largest population of students enrolled in
SFUSD, I can tell you with great confidence that having access to Free Muni for all youth will
have an overwhelmingly positive impact for working families in my District and throughout
the City,” said Supervisor Ahsha Safaí. “It is vital to fund Free Muni for all youth as we begin
our summer programs and return to in person learning in the fall.”
 
“San Francisco’s youth depend on Muni to get them to school, their extracurricular activities,
and part-time jobs and more—public transit helps them grow and thrive,” said Gwyneth
Borden, Chair of the SFMTA Board of Directors. “Our Board is committed to removing any
and all barriers to opportunity and education for the City’s youngest residents.”
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From: Ionin, Jonas (CPC)
Cc: Feliciano, Josephine (CPC); Winslow, David (CPC)
Subject: FW: Mail for the Commissioners - letter - 801 Corbett Ave
Date: Friday, June 11, 2021 9:09:03 AM
Attachments: Commissioners - letter - 801 Corbett Ave.pdf

 
 
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
 
 

From: "DCP, Reception (CPC)" <reception.dcp@sfgov.org>
Date: Thursday, June 10, 2021 at 2:02 PM
To: "Ionin, Jonas (CPC)" <jonas.ionin@sfgov.org>
Cc: Chanbory Son <chanbory.son@sfgov.org>, "Feliciano, Josephine (CPC)"
<josephine.feliciano@sfgov.org>
Subject: Mail for the Commissioners - letter - 801 Corbett Ave
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June 8, 2021


Dear Neighbor,


The owners of 801 Corbett are pursuing a permit (#2021-000997PRJ)
to add 8 additional units to the building in place of 12 of the existing 18
parking spaces. Six parking spaces would remain once the project is
complete. No tenants would be displaced and all tenants who have
parking would be able to keep their parking.


The new units would be constructed in place of the existing laundry
room and part of the existing parking areas, entirely below all existing
units. The existing laundry room would be moved uphill, closer to the
main building entry and below the 3 parking spaces that currently front
Corbett Ave. Tenants would benefit from enlarged and updated
laundry facilities, as well as commonly accessible bicycle parking in a
new breezeway at the center of the building.


No building services would be severed during construction. A
temporary laundry facility would be made available on site while the
existing one is being moved. Management would work with tenants
currently parking in the garage to find off-site parking alternatives
during construction or provide payment to tenants for the temporary
loss of parking.


Our project is currently being reviewed by the city and could be
approved sometime within the next year. Once approved, we estimate
construction would take approximately one year to complete.


The owners are interested in your feedback relating to the proposed
project and would like to answer your questions. For more
information, please contact Owner Representative and Proj. Manager,
Joe Peters at 415-503-9071 or CorbettProject@Outlook.com


Thank you,
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This message is from outside the City email system. Do not open links or attachments from untrusted
sources.

From: CPC-Commissions Secretary
Cc: Balba, Ryan (CPC); Feliciano, Josephine (CPC)
Subject: FW: 5801 Mission St Cannabis Store
Date: Friday, June 11, 2021 8:12:15 AM

 
 
 
Commission Affairs
San Francisco Planning
49 South Van Ness Avenue, Suite 1400, San Francisco, CA 94103
Direct: 628.652.7600 | www.sfplanning.org
San Francisco Property Information Map

 
Due to COVID-19, San Francisco Planning is operating remotely, and the City’s Permit
Center is open on a limited basis. Our staff are available by e-mail, and the Planning and
Historic Preservation Commissions are convening remotely. The public is encouraged to
participate. Find more information on our services here. 
 
 

From: Kev sen <kev81421@gmail.com> 
Sent: Thursday, June 10, 2021 6:16 PM
To: CPC-Commissions Secretary <commissions.secretary@sfgov.org>
Subject: 5801 Mission St Cannabis Store
 

 

Hello,
 
I am writing to voice my opposition to the opening of the Cannabis Store at 5801 Mission St, San
Francisco, CA 94112. The proposed location is right next to a church. There are children who study in
the church. The proposed cannabis store is detrimental to the growth and development of these
children and will have a terrible impact on not just the Church but the entire neighborhood. It is
absolutely abhorrent to have this store opening here under these circumstances, especially when
there are much more appropriate business locations located just a few blocks south along Mission
St. 
 
During the "Community Outreach" zoom meetings, many neighbors voiced their opposition to the
opening of this store to the business owners. However, none of these complaints were answered.
The business owners talked about their business plan, which nobody cares about. They ignored the
comments and provided hollow promises that they wouldn't create problems while providing no
evidence to support their statements. It is obvious to anyone that opening a weed store next to a
bunch of young people will in fact have a severe impact on the development of those young people.
It was obvious that the business owners were just doing the bare minimum effort required by law to
open the store, they didn't care about anyone else. Their decision to hold these low effort
"Community Outreach" during the COVID pandemic is also unconscionable as they are clearly taking
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advantage of the pandemic stay-at-home orders so they don't meet as much opposition from
the neighborhood. 
 
Please reconsider and reject their proposition to open the cannabis store at 5801 Mission St.
 
Thank you,
 
Kevin



 
This message is from outside the City email system. Do not open links or attachments from untrusted
sources.

From: CPC-Commissions Secretary
Cc: Boudreaux, Marcelle (CPC); Feliciano, Josephine (CPC)
Subject: FW: 450 O’Farrell Street
Date: Thursday, June 10, 2021 12:36:42 PM
Attachments: YIMBYLaw 450 O"Farrell 2nd Letter.pdf

 
 
 
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
 
 

From: Ben Libbey <ben@yesinmybackyard.org> 
Sent: Thursday, June 10, 2021 11:57 AM
To: CPC-Commissions Secretary <commissions.secretary@sfgov.org>
Subject: 450 O’Farrell Street
 

 

6/10/2021
 
San Francisco Planning Commission
49 South Van Ness, Ste 1400
San Francisco, CA 94103
 
commissions.secretary@sfgov.org
    Via Email
 

Re:     450 O’Farrell Street
 
Dear San Francisco Planning Commission,
 
This letter is intended to outline some of the legal issues surrounding the project at 450 O’Farrell and to explain why
the Housing Accountability Act does apply to this project, despite planning staff objections.
 
The crux of the issue is whether the project approval would require any action abrogating or overriding the general
plan designation and standards for the site. The Conditional Use Authorization currently being considered certainly
falls well within the bounds of the General Plan. Even expanding our view to the project’s previous approvals,
including specific items within the Planned Unit Development, nothing proposed or adopted is sufficiently outside
the scope of the city’s general plan to warrant the assessment that the project is not protected by the Housing
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YIMBY Law


1260 Mission St


San Francisco, CA 94103


hello@yimbylaw.org


6/10/2021


San Francisco Planning Commission
49 South Van Ness, Ste 1400
San Francisco, CA 94103


commissions.secretary@sfgov.org
Via Email


Re: 450 O’Farrell Street


Dear San Francisco Planning Commission,


This letter is intended to outline some of the legal issues surrounding the project at 450
O’Farrell and to explain why the Housing Accountability Act does apply to this project, despite
planning staff objections.


The crux of the issue is whether the project approval would require any action abrogating or
overriding the general plan designation and standards for the site. The Conditional Use
Authorization currently being considered certainly falls well within the bounds of the General
Plan. Even expanding our view to the project’s previous approvals, including specific items
within the Planned Unit Development, nothing proposed or adopted is sufficiently outside the
scope of the city’s general plan to warrant the assessment that the project is not protected by
the Housing Accountability Act. As the project is subject to protection under the HAA, the
commission is limited both in the actions it may take on the project and the number of
hearings the project may be subjected to.


Conditional Use Authorization and the Housing Accountability Act


It is a common misconception that any additional approvals for a project besides a simple site
permit automatically renders the Housing Accountability Act void. This is not the case. The
Housing Accountability Act applies so long as the residential development complies with the
objective general plan standards in place at the time of application submission.


(j) When a proposed housing development project complies with applicable, objective general
plan and zoning standards and criteria, including design review standards, in effect at the
time that the housing development project's application is determined to be complete, but the
local agency proposes to disapprove the project or to approve it upon the condition that the
project be developed at a lower density, the local agency shall base its decision regarding the
proposed housing development project upon written findings supported by substantial
evidence on the record that both of the following conditions exist:
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(1) The housing development project would have a specific, adverse impact upon the public
health or safety unless the project is disapproved or approved upon the condition that the
project be developed at a lower density. As used in this paragraph, a "specific, adverse
impact" means a significant, quantifiable, direct, and unavoidable impact, based on
objective, identified written public health or safety standards, policies, or conditions as they
existed on the date the application was deemed complete.


(2) There is no feasible method to satisfactorily mitigate or avoid the adverse impact
identified pursuant to paragraph (1), other than the disapproval of the housing development
project or the approval of the project upon the condition that it be developed at a lower
density.


. . .


(4) For purposes of this section, a proposed housing development project is not inconsistent
with the applicable zoning standards and criteria, and shall not require a rezoning, if the
housing development project is consistent with the objective general plan standards and
criteria but the zoning for the project site is inconsistent with the general plan. If the local
agency has complied with paragraph (2), the local agency may require the proposed housing
development project to comply with the objective standards and criteria of the zoning which
is consistent with the general plan, however, the standards and criteria shall be applied to
facilitate and accommodate development at the density allowed on the site by the general
plan and proposed by the proposed housing development project.


(California Government Code § 65589.5)


Though a conditional use permit requires additional authorization, it does not push the project
beyond the bounds of the general plan. By its very nature, a conditional use is one that is
permitted by the general plan provided certain prerequisites are met. The extra level of
scrutiny does not mean that the project is no longer general plan compliant.


In this case the project is seeking a conditional use authorization to change its previous plan to
group housing. Group housing is an allowed use under the site’s general plan designation
despite requiring some extra processing, namely a conditional use authorization. Despite the
extra layer of approval the project remains general plan compliant.


Planned Unit Development and the Housing Accountability Act


Planning staff maintain that the conditional use authorization is not the problem when it
comes to the project’s status under the HAA. Rather their contention is that exceptions
required as part of the PUD were what rendered the project HAA exempt. The specific parts of
the PUD referenced include exceptions from height, dwelling unit exposure, rear yard, and
permitted obstructions standards. These were all included in the CUA for the project.


Like everything else in the CUA, as passed previously and as proposed, we do not believe that
these provisions bring the project out of compliance with the General Plan. The project may
require exceptions from specific zoning standards but these are all allowed under the PUD and
CUA process without any significant zoning amendments or general plan amendments.


YIMBY Law, 1260 Mission St, San Francisco, CA 94103







If the project were asking for exceptions that exceed the scope of those allowed as part of the
PUD and CUA process then this issue would be different. The project does not propose anything
of the sort however, and therefore should be considered covered by the HAA.


Conclusion


Moving forward, this project should be treated as any other project would be under the HAA.
This means that the Planning Commission’s discretion is limited in this case. The project does
not pose a threat to public health and safety and complies with nearly objective general plan
standards. The project was approved previously with very similar characteristics and so it is
clear that Commission and planning staff mostly agree with us on this point.


The Planning Commission should stop delaying this project and approve the modifications to
the Conditional Use Authorization to allow the project to move forward. Plans for development
at this site have been stifled for a variety of reasons for over 40 years and it’s time to allow a
project to proceed.


Sincerely,


Sonja Trauss
Executive Director
YIMBY Law


YIMBY Law, 1260 Mission St, San Francisco, CA 94103







From: Ionin, Jonas (CPC)
Cc: Feliciano, Josephine (CPC); Hillis, Rich (CPC); STACY, KATE (CAT); PEARSON, AUDREY (CAT); Conner, Kate

(CPC); Grob, Carly (CPC)
Subject: CLOSED SESSION TODAY @ 10 am
Date: Thursday, June 10, 2021 8:51:24 AM

Commissioners,
Please be reminded that our Closed Session will begin at 10:00 am this morning.
 
We will convene in the WebEx platform, then migrate to MS Teams.
 
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
Subject: FW: Project: 5801 Mission Street Cannabis Project
Date: Thursday, June 10, 2021 8:19:47 AM

 
 
 
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
 
 

From: Delia Fitzpatrick <fitzpatrick.delia@gmail.com> 
Sent: Wednesday, June 09, 2021 4:57 PM
To: CPC-Commissions Secretary <commissions.secretary@sfgov.org>
Cc: info@aaece.org
Subject: Project: 5801 Mission Street Cannabis Project
 

 

For the Planning Commission Only
 
I’m writing to oppose opening a Cannabis site at the stated address above.  I say no to the Cannabis
project for the following reasons:
 

1. The Cannabis retail shop would be only under 600 feet from a licensed Childcare facility, and
two public and private schools

2.  There are already two other Cannabis shops next to each other less than a mile away from
the proposed site. There are already 3 total in District 11.

3. Additionally, there is a liquor store, Tattoo Parlor, and Bar across the street from the
proposed location.

4. This community has the highest rate of youth and Seniors residing in the area, the
neighborhood doesn't need another cannabis club.  We need to really use the space to tackle
the food insecurity issue and not the cannabis enterprises that are damaging the future of our
young people.

Delia Fitzpatrick
Our Kids First
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OMI Community Collaborative
African American Early Childhood Educators
Invest Black
--
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
Subject: FW: 13. 2020-007152CUA (R. BALBA: (628) 652- 7331) 5801 MISSION STREET
Date: Thursday, June 10, 2021 8:19:26 AM

 
 
 
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
 
 

From: Lisa Dunseth <dunsethl@hotmail.com> 
Sent: Wednesday, June 09, 2021 4:55 PM
To: CPC-Commissions Secretary <commissions.secretary@sfgov.org>
Subject: RE: 13. 2020-007152CUA (R. BALBA: (628) 652- 7331) 5801 MISSION STREET
 

 

Dear Commissioners,

Please do not approve this pot club at 5801 Mission Street. Our district has plenty of places to buy pot and this is just an
example of "clustering" them in our neighborhood to be nearby the county line. Our district has a disproportionate number of
socio-economic pressures to deal with and we do not need any additional ones. This one would be across from a church with
a very active youth program--one of the most positive things about the immediate neighborhood--and a pot club is NOT a
good neighbor for a church.

 

This is not a DEIA issue. This is about money and greed. And since they can do business online why do they even need a
storefront? 

Please do not approve this pot club: we do not need it and we do not want it.

 

Thank you for your consideration of this matter,

Sincerely,

Lisa Dunseth
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D11

 

13. 2020-007152CUA (R. BALBA: (628) 652- 7331) 

5801 MISSION STREET – south side between Acton Street and Oliver Street, Lot 001 of Assessor’s Block 6742 (District 11)
– Request for Conditional Use Authorization, pursuant to Planning Code Sections 202.2, 303, and 720, for a Project
proposing a change of use from Retail to Cannabis Retail on the first floor of the existing two-story mixed-use building, with
no on-site smoking or vaporizing of cannabis products. The subject property is located within the Excelsior Outer Mission
Street NC (Neighborhood Commercial) Zoning District and 40-X Height and Bulk District. This action constitutes the Approval
Action for the project for the purposes of CEQA, pursuant to San Francisco Administrative Code Section 31.04(h). 

Preliminary Recommendation: Approve with Conditions 

 



 
This message is from outside the City email system. Do not open links or attachments from untrusted
sources.

From: CPC-Commissions Secretary
Cc: Balba, Ryan (CPC); Feliciano, Josephine (CPC)
Subject: FW: Project 5801 Mission Street (Oliver & Acton Streets)
Date: Thursday, June 10, 2021 8:19:04 AM

 
 
 
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
 
 

From: Jackie Manion <jackie@okfprogram.com> 
Sent: Wednesday, June 09, 2021 4:44 PM
To: CPC-Commissions Secretary <commissions.secretary@sfgov.org>
Cc: Delia Fitzpatrick <fitzpatrick.delia@gmail.com>
Subject: Project 5801 Mission Street (Oliver & Acton Streets)
 

 

To the Planning Commission,
 
I’m writing to oppose opening a Cannabis site at the stated address above.  I say no to the Cannabis
project for the following reasons:
 
                The Cannabis retail shop would be only under 600 feet from a license Childcare facility, and
under 600 feet from two school.
 

The community has changed with an increase of homelessness and mental illness.  It is
unsafe to take an afternoon walk and are experiencing individuals laying out on the sidewalk
or someone else screaming to the top of their voice with non-sense.
 
There is already two other Cannabis shops next to each other less than a mile away from the
proposed site.
 
Additionally, there is a liquor store, Tattoo Parlor, and Bar in the immediate area.
 
This community has the highest rate of youth and Seniors residing in the area.
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In closing, I would strongly as the Commission to be considerate of the community and the families. 
A Business man or woman that does not take into consideration of the health and safety of a
community they themselves do not live in.  There only priority is to make a profit no matter who
may be injured.  Why is it okay for this sort of business to be brought into a neighborhood that is
already suffering?  There must be a better choice, something that would create a better
environment for children to strive and where the elderly can feel safe.  I would argue that the
Planning Commission plays a big part in ensuring that neighborhoods are safe and healthy for the
people who lives in them.
 
To the Planning Commission I strongly opposed the approval of a Cannabis Retail Store at 5801
Mission Street (Oliver & Acton Streets). 

 
 

               
 
OUR KIDS FIRST Program
5845 Mission Street, Suite 301 
San Francisco, CA 94112
 
Office: (415) 585-1104
Email: okfprogram@yahoo.com
Website: www.ourkidsfirstsf.org
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From: Ionin, Jonas (CPC)
Cc: Feliciano, Josephine (CPC)
Subject: FW: *** PRESS RELEASE*** SAN FRANCISCO TO FULLY REOPEN BUSINESSES AND ACTIVITIES ALIGNING

WITH THE STATE’S REOPENING PLANS BEGINNING JUNE 15
Date: Wednesday, June 09, 2021 4:59:00 PM

 
 
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
Date: Wednesday, June 9, 2021 at 3:53 PM
To: "Press Office, Mayor (MYR)" <mayorspressoffice@sfgov.org>
Subject: *** PRESS RELEASE*** SAN FRANCISCO TO FULLY REOPEN BUSINESSES AND
ACTIVITIES ALIGNING WITH THE STATE’S REOPENING PLANS BEGINNING JUNE 15
 
FOR IMMEDIATE RELEASE:
Wednesday, June 9, 2021
Contact: San Francisco Joint Information Center, dempress@sfgov.org
 

*** PRESS RELEASE***
SAN FRANCISCO TO FULLY REOPEN BUSINESSES AND

ACTIVITIES ALIGNING WITH THE STATE’S REOPENING
PLANS BEGINNING JUNE 15

Thanks to San Francisco’s successful COVID vaccine roll out and decreasing cases and
community spread, the City intends to align with the State Beyond the Blueprint guidance that
removes nearly all local COVID-19 related restrictions beginning June 15, with some narrow

exceptions for mega events
 
San Francisco, CA – Mayor London N. Breed and Health Officer Susan Philip today
announced that starting Tuesday, June 15, San Francisco will fully reopen and eliminate
capacity limits and almost all local restrictions on business operations in alignment with the
State’s Beyond the Blueprint for Industry and Business Sectors - effective June 15.  Based on
draft guidelines that the State has released in advance of the June 15 reopening as well as
masking guidance issued today by the State, San Francisco has determined that it will fully
align with the State plan with some limited exceptions pertaining to extremely large events
and specific institutional settings with heightened risk, such as acute care hospitals, skilled
nursing facilities, and jails. In these instances, additional health and safety requirements may
be implemented in San Francisco.
 
"The people of San Francisco have done an incredible job during this pandemic of listening to
our public health experts and following the guidance to keep each other safe,” said Mayor
Breed. “Together we have saved thousands of lives. On June 15, we will be taking an

mailto:jonas.ionin@sfgov.org
mailto:Josephine.Feliciano@sfgov.org
http://www.sfplanning.org/
https://sfplanninggis.org/pim/
mailto:dempress@sfgov.org
https://www.cdph.ca.gov/Programs/CID/DCDC/Pages/COVID-19/Beyond-Blueprint-QA.aspx


incredible step forward by aligning our reopening with the state. I'm excited that the City is
coming alive again and I can't wait to see what lies ahead for San Francisco. Please continue
to do your part make sure that you and everyone you know—friends, families, neighbors—are
getting vaccinated so we can finally end this pandemic. "
 
Businesses are encouraged to review the State’s framework in order to prepare for the
changes. With the impending elimination of the State’s tiered reopening system and local
health directives for industry sectors, it is expected that many aspects of San Francisco
businesses will return to usual operations for attendees, customers, and guests. Most notably,
health order changes include the elimination of local capacity limits as well as local
requirements for physical distancing, masking, and operational procedures and protocols in
almost all instances.
 
With the exception of schools, childcare, and youth activities, San Francisco will lift much of
its health order sector-specific restrictions and rescind all business sector directives. State and
Federal entities are expected to continue to put forward public health guidance. Additionally,
some regulatory agencies like the Division of Occupational Safety and Health (Cal/OSHA)
and industry specific regulatory agencies such as Alcohol Beverage Control, California’s
Child Care Licensing Program, etc., will maintain requirements related to the prevention of
COVID-19 in the workplace and other specific contexts.
 
“With much of the health risk contained, the most important thing we can be doing now is
supporting the economic recovery and revitalization of our commercial and downtown
corridors and the city,” said Kate Sofis, the Director of the Office of Economic and Workforce
Development. “The Office of Economic and Workforce Development will continue to support
businesses as they rebuild, recover, and start anew in this post-COVID environment. Our
focus remains on strengthening our city’s economic drivers with equity, partnering with our
small business community to provide the tools and resources to adapt to our full reopening,
and investing in services that our residents, workers, artists and every other San Franciscan
needs in order to thrive.” 
 
San Francisco’s reopening and recovery is, in large part, due to the availability and successful
rollout of vaccines in San Francisco. The effectiveness and availability of COVID-19 vaccines
has dramatically driven down case rates, hospitalizations and community spread. Currently,
79% of San Franciscans eligible for a COVID-19 vaccination have received at least one dose;
and as of June 7, our case rate was 1.5 per 100,000, 25% lower than the state and representing
a 96% decrease in San Francisco COVID-19 diagnoses since January. Likewise,
hospitalizations are at their lowest point since the pandemic began.
 
“Our successful uptake of COVID vaccines has been a game changer and it’s why we are able
to fully reopen our City,” said San Francisco Health Officer Susan Philip.  “I encourage
anyone who is not yet vaccinated and is able to do so, to make an appointment or drop in to
one of our many access points today. We still need to be vigilant and use the knowledge and
behaviors we’ve developed over the past year to make safer choices for ourselves and our
families, especially those of us who live or interact with people who are not able to get
vaccinated or are at greater risk of severe illness from COVID-19.”
The Public Health Department encourages all those eligible to get vaccinated as soon as
possible, so that San Francisco and the entire Bay Area can safely reopen. The public can
make an appointment or find a drop-in site by calling (628) 652-2700 or by going to
sf.gov/get-vaccinated.

https://www.cdph.ca.gov/Programs/CID/DCDC/Pages/COVID-19/Beyond-Blueprint-Framework.aspx
https://sf.gov/get-vaccinated


Because of San Francisco’s identity as a national and international destination, and because
the pandemic is less controlled elsewhere, the San Francisco Department of Public Health will
require proof of full COVID-19 vaccination or a negative test at indoor mega events of over
5,000 people; unvaccinated attendees must wear face coverings per state requirements. If only
self-attestation is required, all attendees must wear face coverings.
Additionally, in very high-risk congregate living settings such as skilled nursing facilities,
acute care hospitals, homeless shelters, and jails, San Francisco will require that personnel in
these facilities are vaccinated. This requirement will go into effect after the United States Food
and Drug Administration gives full approval to one of the COVID-19 vaccines which
currently have emergency use authorization.
In school, youth and childcare settings, San Francisco intends to align its face covering
requirements with the State and otherwise maintain its existing guidance while it awaits
anticipated further reopening guidance from the CDC and State. Over the coming days, San
Francisco will review the State’s Beyond the Blueprint for Industry and Business Sectors
guide as well as the Masking Guidance that the State issued earlier today to consider any
additional guidance or requirements it feels are necessary to protect residents, workers, and
visitors and safeguard our reopening and economic recovery. 
San Francisco plans to release the finalized health order on Friday, June 11th to be effective as
of 12:01 am on Tuesday, June 15th. 

###
 



From: Ionin, Jonas (CPC)
Cc: CTYPLN - COMMISSION SECRETARY; Hillis, Rich (CPC)
Subject: CPC Rules&Regs Continuance
Date: Wednesday, June 09, 2021 2:58:15 PM

Commissioners,
Please be advised that we intend to continue the Rules&Regs one last time to work with Community
Organizations.
 
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
Subject: FW: *** PRESS RELEASE*** MAYOR LONDON N. BREED AND TREASURER JOSÉ CISNEROS PROPOSE

ELIMINATION AND REDUCTION OF FINES AND FEES THAT PLACE DISPROPORTIONATE BURDEN ON PEOPLE
WITH LOW INCOMES AND COMMUNITIES OF COLOR

Date: Wednesday, June 09, 2021 9:44:03 AM
Attachments: 06.09.21 Fines and Fees.pdf

 
 
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
Date: Wednesday, June 9, 2021 at 9:41 AM
To: "Press Office, Mayor (MYR)" <mayorspressoffice@sfgov.org>
Subject: *** PRESS RELEASE*** MAYOR LONDON N. BREED AND TREASURER JOSÉ CISNEROS
PROPOSE ELIMINATION AND REDUCTION OF FINES AND FEES THAT PLACE
DISPROPORTIONATE BURDEN ON PEOPLE WITH LOW INCOMES AND COMMUNITIES OF
COLOR
 
FOR IMMEDIATE RELEASE:
Wednesday, June 9, 2021
Contact: Mayor’s Office of Communications, mayorspressoffice@sfgov.org
 

*** PRESS RELEASE***
MAYOR LONDON N. BREED AND TREASURER JOSÉ

CISNEROS PROPOSE ELIMINATION AND REDUCTION OF
FINES AND FEES THAT PLACE DISPROPORTIONATE

BURDEN ON PEOPLE WITH LOW INCOMES AND
COMMUNITIES OF COLOR

Proposal included in Mayor’s proposed budget is next step in San Francisco’s multi-year
effort on fines and fees reform and part of meeting the goals of creating an equitable recovery

from COVID-19
 
San Francisco, CA – Mayor London N. Breed and Treasurer José Cisneros are proposing the
elimination or reduction of numerous municipal fines and fees that have an adverse,
disproportionate impact on people with low incomes and communities of color. The Mayor’s
Budget Office and the Office of the Treasurer & Tax Collector’s Financial Justice Project
developed these recommendations after conducting a review of municipal fines and fees in
advance of Mayor Breed’s proposed budget for FY 2021-2022.  
 
These actions aim to lift a financial burden off of residents with low incomes who have

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
Proposal included in Mayor’s proposed budget is next step in San Francisco’s multi-year effort 


on fines and fees reform and part of meeting the goals of creating an equitable recovery from 


COVID-19 


 


San Francisco, CA – Mayor London N. Breed and Treasurer José Cisneros are proposing the 


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


  


These actions aim to lift a financial burden off of residents with low incomes who have struggled 


most during the COVID-19 health pandemic. The proposed reforms are part of the Mayor’s 


efforts to ensure that San Francisco has a strong and equitable recovery, and the next step in a 


multi-year process to reform the burdensome system of fines and fees that has included 


eliminating criminal justice fees, making jail phone calls free, and eliminating overdue library 


fines. The citywide Economic Recovery Task Force prioritized conducting a citywide review of 


fines and fees as part of the City’s recovery efforts.  


  


“Fines and fees impact all of us differently, and for some people a single fee can have a dramatic 


impact that can make it hard to put food on the table or pay their rent,” said Mayor Breed. “We 


know that now is the time to be investing in people who are struggling to get back on their feet as 


we all do the work to lift this City out of this pandemic. We have made significant progress over 


the last few years to make meaningful change on fines and fees, and we will continue to make 


more changes over the coming year.”  


 


“Fines and fees that exceed people’s ability to pay them are often a lose-lose, for people and for 


government, said Treasurer Jose Cisneros. “Someone should not face a bigger consequence 


because their bank account is smaller. And we should not balance our budget on the backs of 


people who can least afford it. I’m proud of this work.” 


  


The Mayor’s FY 2021-2022 budget proposes the elimination of the following fees:   



mailto:mayorspressoffice@sfgov.org
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• Elimination of the Street Artist License Fee ($849), which has been historically paid 


by artists who are low-income, immigrants, and/or aging. This license fee permits these 


vendors to sell their art in designated spaces to support themselves and their families. The 


elimination of this fee will ensure stronger participation in the San Francisco Arts 


Commission program, help expand diverse, vibrant, revenue-generating marketplaces for 


artists, and attract local and tourism dollars for handmade creations. 


• Elimination of Medical Examiner fees that are primarily charged to family and 


friends of deceased, typically for deceased people who were experiencing 


homelessness or very low-income crime victims. These fees include proof of death 


letter ($10), statement of non-contagion ($10), disaster bag ($67), removal of remains 


($632), and cremation ($1,196).  


 


• Elimination of fees associated with City ID cards ($6 for youth and $18 for 


adults). These fees are primarily paid by undocumented and low-income individuals and 


can be barriers to obtaining this form of identification. 


 


• Elimination of two Animal Care and Control fees: owner surrender of animal ($33) 


and dog license late fees ($32). These fees are challenging to pay for low-income 


residents.   


Over the coming year, the following departments will develop or enhance fine and fee 


discounts for low-income people based on their ability to pay:   


• The Department of Public Health will collaborate with other departments to create an 


“equity applicant” category for fees that likely impact people with low incomes, such as 


fees associated with mobile and temporary food facilities, as well as massage and tattoo 


parlors. This would result in a reduction of permit fees for qualifying individuals. 


 


• The Fire Department will look to expand its existing ambulance fee financial hardship 


process for low-income residents. 


 


• The Recreation and Parks Department will expand its outreach to maximize 


participation in its robust scholarship program, making it easier for families to apply and 


removing barriers to participation in summer camps, afterschool programs, swimming 


lessons, art, health and wellness, sports, and other recreational activities. 


Through a review of fines and fees across departments, the Mayor’s Budget Office and The 


Financial Justice Project identified fines and fees that may be “high pain” for low-income people 


and families, and identified reforms that will make a difference for struggling individuals. The 


two offices met with departments to better understand the goal and impact of fines or fees, 


conducted research on the community impact of fines and fees, and developed recommendations 


for reform.   
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The Financial Justice Project is housed in the Office of the Treasurer and Tax Collector. Its 


mission is to assess and reform fines and fees that have an adverse disproportionate impact on 


low-income people and communities of color. Over the past four years, The Financial Justice 


Project has partnered with Mayor Breed, City and County departments, the Court, and 


community groups to advance a number of fine and fee reforms, lifting tens of millions of dollars 


of debt off thousands of San Franciscans. These reforms include:  


• Eliminating local fees charged to people in the criminal justice system and waiving $32 


million in debt owed by 21,000 people;    


• Making jail phone calls free and eliminating commissary markups in San Francisco 


County jails;  


• Eliminating overdue library fines, and waiving debt stemming from overdue fines; and  


• Creating other discounts for towing, booting, and other fines and fees for low-income 


people and people experiencing homelessness.   


The Financial Justice Project, in partnership with the Fines and Fees Justice Center and 


PolicyLink, has also launched Cities and Counties for Fine and Fee Justice, a national network of 


ten jurisdictions that are advancing fine and fee reforms.   
 


### 



https://www.policylink.org/our-work/just-society/fines-fees/cities-counties





struggled most during the COVID-19 health pandemic. The proposed reforms are part of the
Mayor’s efforts to ensure that San Francisco has a strong and equitable recovery, and the next
step in a multi-year process to reform the burdensome system of fines and fees that has
included eliminating criminal justice fees, making jail phone calls free, and eliminating
overdue library fines. The citywide Economic Recovery Task Force prioritized conducting a
citywide review of fines and fees as part of the City’s recovery efforts. 
 
“Fines and fees impact all of us differently, and for some people a single fee can have a
dramatic impact that can make it hard to put food on the table or pay their rent,” said Mayor
Breed. “We know that now is the time to be investing in people who are struggling to get back
on their feet as we all do the work to lift this City out of this pandemic. We have made
significant progress over the last few years to make meaningful change on fines and fees, and
we will continue to make more changes over the coming year.”
 
“Fines and fees that exceed people’s ability to pay them are often a lose-lose, for people and
for government, said Treasurer Jose Cisneros. “Someone should not face a bigger consequence
because their bank account is smaller. And we should not balance our budget on the backs of
people who can least afford it. I’m proud of this work.”
 
The Mayor’s FY 2021-2022 budget proposes the elimination of the following fees:  

Elimination of the Street Artist License Fee ($849), which has been historically paid
by artists who are low-income, immigrants, and/or aging. This license fee permits these
vendors to sell their art in designated spaces to support themselves and their families.
The elimination of this fee will ensure stronger participation in the San Francisco Arts
Commission program, help expand diverse, vibrant, revenue-generating marketplaces
for artists, and attract local and tourism dollars for handmade creations.

Elimination of Medical Examiner fees that are primarily charged to family and
friends of deceased, typically for deceased people who were experiencing
homelessness or very low-income crime victims. These fees include proof of death
letter ($10), statement of non-contagion ($10), disaster bag ($67), removal of remains
($632), and cremation ($1,196). 

Elimination of fees associated with City ID cards ($6 for youth and $18 for
adults). These fees are primarily paid by undocumented and low-income individuals
and can be barriers to obtaining this form of identification.

Elimination of two Animal Care and Control fees: owner surrender of animal ($33)
and dog license late fees ($32). These fees are challenging to pay for low-income
residents.  

Over the coming year, the following departments will develop or enhance fine and fee
discounts for low-income people based on their ability to pay:  

The Department of Public Health will collaborate with other departments to create an
“equity applicant” category for fees that likely impact people with low incomes, such as



fees associated with mobile and temporary food facilities, as well as massage and tattoo
parlors. This would result in a reduction of permit fees for qualifying individuals.

The Fire Department will look to expand its existing ambulance fee financial hardship
process for low-income residents.

The Recreation and Parks Department will expand its outreach to maximize
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
Financial Justice Project identified fines and fees that may be “high pain” for low-income
people and families, and identified reforms that will make a difference for struggling
individuals. The two offices met with departments to better understand the goal and impact of
fines or fees, conducted research on the community impact of fines and fees, and developed
recommendations for reform.  
 
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
community groups to advance a number of fine and fee reforms, lifting tens of millions of
dollars of debt off thousands of San Franciscans. These reforms include: 

Eliminating local fees charged to people in the criminal justice system and waiving $32
million in debt owed by 21,000 people;   
Making jail phone calls free and eliminating commissary markups in San Francisco
County jails;
Eliminating overdue library fines, and waiving debt stemming from overdue fines; and
Creating other discounts for towing, booting, and other fines and fees for low-income
people and people experiencing homelessness.  

The Financial Justice Project, in partnership with the Fines and Fees Justice Center and
PolicyLink, has also launched Cities and Counties for Fine and Fee Justice, a national network
of ten jurisdictions that are advancing fine and fee reforms.  
 

###
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This message is from outside the City email system. Do not open links or attachments from untrusted
sources.

From: CPC-Commissions Secretary
Cc: Hicks, Bridget (CPC); Feliciano, Josephine (CPC)
Subject: FW: comments on Case No. 2019-017761CUA (4234 24thSt.)
Date: Wednesday, June 09, 2021 8:23:23 AM
Attachments: image002.png

Planning Commision letter 9 June 2021.pdf

 
 
 
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
 
 

From: Chas Andre <chasandre@gmail.com> 
Sent: Tuesday, June 08, 2021 5:36 PM
To: CPC-Commissions Secretary <commissions.secretary@sfgov.org>
Subject: comments on Case No. 2019-017761CUA (4234 24thSt.)
 

 

Dear members of the planning commision,
 
I am submitting these comments in writing with regards to the above-referenced project. (Please
find the attached PDF). For your  convenience, I also paste the content of this letter below. Thank
you very much
 
Kind regards,
Charles Andre
4240 24th St.
 
My name is Charles Andre and I have owned the house at 4240 24h St. for more than 20 years.
Obviously, the much larger size of the proposed project at 4234 24th St., when compared to the
current cottage is not pleasing to me, as it will adversely affect the privacy, ventilation and sunlight
both in the back yard and the windows on the east side of the property. Nonetheless, I understand
and accept the zoning regulations and the desire of the city to add more housing wherever possible.
  I would however, like to request a small modification of the current plan that would significantly
mitigate the negative impact of the proposed building. My house is built to the property line in the
front, but then cuts back midway through the house. There are two large windows in this cutback
area (one facing north, and the other east). These are not indicated on the architect's plans, and

mailto:commissions.secretary@sfgov.org
mailto:bridget.hicks@sfgov.org
mailto:Josephine.Feliciano@sfgov.org
http://www.sfplanning.org/
https://sfplanninggis.org/pim/
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Charles Andre 
4240 24th St. 


San Francisco, CA 94114 


chasandre@gmail.com 


 
Dear Ms. Hicks and members of the planning commission, 


 


My name is Charles Andre and I have owned the house at 4240 24h St. for more than 20 years. Obviously, the 


much larger size of the proposed project at 4234 24th St., when compared to the current cottage is not pleasing to 


me, as it will adversely affect the privacy, ventilation and sunlight both in the back yard and the windows on the 


east side of the property. Nonetheless, I understand and accept the zoning regulations and the desire of the city to 


add more housing wherever possible. 


  I would however, like to request a small modification of the current plan that would significantly mitigate the 


negative impact of the proposed building. My house is built to the property line in the front, but then cuts back 


midway through the house. There are two large windows in this cutback area (one facing north, and the other east). 


These are not indicated on the architect's plans, and therefore it may not be obvious.  There is no cutback at all on 


the first two floors of the proposed plan, but this is lower than the level of these windows, and will have little 


impact on light, privacy or airflow. There is then a cutback from the property line on the top two floors, but this 


does not match the cutback on my house. Because of the placement of the two aforementioned windows, the extra 


5 feet where the proposed building hugs the property line will have a disproportionate impact on the light and air 


circulation in my house. 


   I would therefore respectfully request that the setback is moved 5 feet to the south, thus matching my house and 


adding some space in front of my windows. Moving this cutback on the top two floors will only decrease the size 


of the overall project by 50 square feet of a total more than 4,000, and thus represent a decrease of less than 2 


percent (for comparison, my house is about 1300 square feet, including the converted attic). This can be 


accomplished, for example, by decreasing some closets space and/or very slightly reducing the size of a few 


rooms. I have illustrated my proposal below: 


 


 
 


I thank the planning commission for their consideration. 


Kind regards, 


Charles Andre 







therefore it may not be obvious.  There is no cutback at all on the first two floors of the proposed
plan, but this is lower than the level of these windows, and will have little impact on light, privacy or
airflow. There is then a cutback from the property line on the top two floors, but this does not match
the cutback on my house. Because of the placement of the two aforementioned windows, the extra 5
feet where the proposed building hugs the property line will have a disproportionate impact on the
light and air circulation in my house.
   I would therefore respectfully request that the setback is moved 5 feet to the south, thus matching
my house and adding some space in front of my windows. Moving this cutback on the top two floors
will only decrease the size of the overall project by 50 square feet of a total more than 4,000, and
thus represent a decrease of less than 2 percent (for comparison, my house is about 1300 square feet,
including the converted attic). This can be accomplished, for example, by decreasing some closet
space and/or very slightly reducing the size of a few rooms. I have illustrated my proposal below:
 

 



 
This message is from outside the City email system. Do not open links or attachments from untrusted
sources.

From: CPC-Commissions Secretary
To: Feliciano, Josephine (CPC)
Subject: FW: Comments re: updated CPC Rules and Regulation changes 2021-004810CRV
Date: Wednesday, June 09, 2021 8:22:16 AM
Attachments: CPC Rules and Regulation changes 2021-004810CRV.pdf

 
 
 
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
 
 

From: Josephine Radbill <jradbill@unitehere2.org> 
Sent: Tuesday, June 08, 2021 3:58 PM
To: Lynch, Laura (CPC) <laura.lynch@sfgov.org>; Ionin, Jonas (CPC) <jonas.ionin@sfgov.org>; Chan,
Deland (CPC) <deland.chan@sfgov.org>; Diamond, Susan (CPC) <sue.diamond@sfgov.org>; Fung,
Frank (CPC) <frank.fung@sfgov.org>; Imperial, Theresa (CPC) <theresa.imperial@sfgov.org>; Tanner,
Rachael (CPC) <rachael.tanner@sfgov.org>; Koppel, Joel (CPC) <joel.koppel@sfgov.org>; Moore,
Kathrin (CPC) <kathrin.moore@sfgov.org>; CPC-Commissions Secretary
<commissions.secretary@sfgov.org>
Subject: Comments re: updated CPC Rules and Regulation changes 2021-004810CRV
 

 

Hello, 
 
Please see our attached comments regarding the updated CPC Rules and Regulations changes,
record number 2021-004810CRV, scheduled for the June 10, 2021 Planning Commission meeting.
 
Thank You,
--
Josephine Radbill
UNITE HERE Local 2
415.815.2771
she/her/hers
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Laura Lynch 
SF Planning Department 
49 South Van Ness Avenue 
Suite 1400 
San Francisco, CA 94103 
VIA EMAIL RE: 2021-004810CRV 
 
This letter is in response to the proposed amendments to the SF Planning Commission Rules 
and Regulations on the June 10, 2021 agenda of the Planning Commission. We commend the 
Planning Commission for including a commitment to racial and social equity, “to ensure the 
diverse voices of San Francisco are given the opportunity to be heard and represented with 
reasonable accommodations at all public meetings of the Commission.” 
 
It is in the spirit of our shared commitment to equity that we find it necessary to voice our 
concerns about the proposed changes to the rules and regulations. Reducing the amount of 
time the public has to review submittals, such as staff reports, would function to reduce or even 
exclude participation in the planning process. Under the proposed change, staff reports would 
be available at publication of the hearing agenda: a minimum of 72-hours before the meeting, or 
possibly as late as 1 p.m. Monday the week of the hearing. Even for those members of the 
public who use computers and are able to read PDF attachments, this time interval would 
already be very short, especially as many of these reports include detailed plans and multiple 
reports and can reach thousands of pages in total.  Access would be even more curtailed for 
those members of the public who need to visit the Planning Department’s office at 49 South Van 
Ness to review documents in person.  
 
The COVID-19 pandemic brought the challenges of the digital divide into stark contrast: 
according to the SF Chronicle, 100,000 San Franciscans lack broadband internet connections1. 
These residents are majority people of color from working-class backgrounds; they would need 
to be able to access this information in person in order to meaningfully participate in the 
planning process. Moving the submittal period closer to the hearing date exacerbates disparities 
the city seeks to resolve. 
 
We ask that the ability to request a two-week staff report be restored. We find the language 
“staff reports for specific cases may be due earlier” to add ambiguity to the rules, rather than, as 
the Planning Department states in their Basis for Recommendation, “provid[ing] clarity to the 
public on procedures.” Which projects would qualify as “specific cases?” When is a deadline of 
“due earlier?” This amendment would add uncertainty and reduce the final review time at the 
penultimate step of what is often a multi-year planning process.  
 
Furthermore, under the proposed changes, if the public seeks to send comments to the 
Commissioners, they would have to do so without being able to review the submittals, 
potentially including the final plans for a project. This amendment to the rules and regulations 
impedes informed public input. 


 
1 SF Chronicle: Can San Francisco realize the dream of public internet? August 9, 2020  







We are also concerned with the proposed changes to the hearing procedures for projects that 
have already been heard. While we appreciate the goal of avoiding repetitive presentations at 
successive hearings, we find that it is somewhat restrictive to limit to three minutes the amount 
of time for presentations of the project sponsor and organized opposition. In addition, we 
request that public testimony be restored to three minutes and that the President (or Chair) of 
the commission not be permitted to limited public comment to a shorter period. This proposed 
change is ambiguous and discretionary; it does not contribute to a more equitable planning 
process, especially considering the range of complexity of many projects that appear before 
more than one hearing. Please restore the three-minute time limit for public testimony.  
 
We recognize that the Department staff must contend with an ever-growing workload and 
demands on their time and attention, and that the work of preparing and producing reports is 
time-consuming and often thankless, and so we encourage and support efforts to address this 
workload in a way that is suitable for all. We are concerned that these proposed changes, 
however, would have the unintended effect of impeding public access and participation, and we 
ask that they not be adopted.  
 
Thank you for your consideration and I am available to answer any questions. 
 
Sincerely, 
 
Josephine Radbill 
Research Analyst 
UniteHere Local 2 
 
  







From: Ionin, Jonas (CPC)
Cc: Feliciano, Josephine (CPC)
Subject: FW: *** PRESS RELEASE*** BOARD OF SUPERVISORS UNANIMOUSLY APPROVES LEASE FOR SAN

FRANCISCO’S FIRST DRUG SOBERING CENTER PROPOSED BY MAYOR LONDON BREED
Date: Wednesday, June 09, 2021 8:03:14 AM
Attachments: 06.08.21 Drug Sobering Center.pdf

 
 
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
Date: Tuesday, June 8, 2021 at 5:40 PM
To: "Press Office, Mayor (MYR)" <mayorspressoffice@sfgov.org>
Subject: *** PRESS RELEASE*** BOARD OF SUPERVISORS UNANIMOUSLY APPROVES LEASE
FOR SAN FRANCISCO’S FIRST DRUG SOBERING CENTER PROPOSED BY MAYOR LONDON BREED
 
FOR IMMEDIATE RELEASE:
Tuesday, June 8, 2021
Contact: Mayor’s Office of Communications, mayorspressoffice@sfgov.org
 

*** PRESS RELEASE***
BOARD OF SUPERVISORS UNANIMOUSLY APPROVES

LEASE FOR SAN FRANCISCO’S FIRST DRUG SOBERING
CENTER PROPOSED BY MAYOR LONDON BREED

SOMA RISE Center to provide 20 short-term beds and support services for people at risk of
drug overdoses

 
San Francisco, CA – Today the Board of Supervisors unanimously approved a lease
introduced by Mayor London N. Breed for San Francisco’s first drug sobering center. The site,
known as the SOMA RISE (Recover, Initiate, Support, and Engagement) Center, will serve
people at risk of drug overdoses from methamphetamine, fentanyl and other substances, by
providing a safe place where they can come inside, get off the streets, and receive care.
 
The SOMA RISE Center, located at 1076 Howard Street is expected to open in fall 2021. It
will serve the South of Market and Tenderloin neighborhoods, where cases of drug overdose
deaths are the highest in the City. This 18-month neighborhood pilot project is one of several
innovative efforts underway to help people experiencing homelessness and behavioral health
issues, such as substance use disorders, to get off the streets, into housing, and connected with
services.
 
“The rise in drug use and overdoses in San Francisco shows that we have to take action and try
new things to get people the help they need,” said Mayor Breed. “Opening a sobering center
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


 


San Francisco, CA – Today the Board of Supervisors unanimously approved a lease introduced 


by Mayor London N. Breed for San Francisco’s first drug sobering center. The site, known as the 


SOMA RISE (Recover, Initiate, Support, and Engagement) Center, will serve people at risk of 


drug overdoses from methamphetamine, fentanyl and other substances, by providing a safe place 


where they can come inside, get off the streets, and receive care. 


 


The SOMA RISE Center, located at 1076 Howard Street is expected to open in fall 2021. It will 


serve the South of Market and Tenderloin neighborhoods, where cases of drug overdose deaths 


are the highest in the City. This 18-month neighborhood pilot project is one of several innovative 


efforts underway to help people experiencing homelessness and behavioral health issues, such as 


substance use disorders, to get off the streets, into housing, and connected with services.  


 


“The rise in drug use and overdoses in San Francisco shows that we have to take action and try 


new things to get people the help they need,” said Mayor Breed. “Opening a sobering center 


provides our outreach teams with a place to take someone who shouldn’t be left alone on the 


street where they can sober up, settle down, and get connected to other services. It’s a safer 


option for the people in need of help, it will improve the conditions on our streets, and it’s an 


approach that just makes a lot more sense than what we’re doing now.” 


 


San Francisco is seeing a record number of deaths from drug overdoses in recent years, due 


largely to the arrival of the powerful synthetic opioid fentanyl. With its 20-bed capacity and 


services that include rest, monitoring, food and water, hygiene, health assessments and more, the 


SOMA RISE Center will provide a safe and secure temporary location for people to stabilize. 


Clients will then engage in one-on-one peer counseling about wellness and recovery options 


available to them and be connected and transported to appropriate services or their next step 


designations.  


 


“Drug overdose deaths are a serious public health crisis that we must take immediate action to 


address,” said Dr. Naveena Bobba, Deputy Director of the San Francisco Department of Public 


Health. “The SOMA RISE Center will bring help to the individuals most at risk and to the 


neighborhoods where its needed most.” 
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A drug sobering center was the top recommendation of the Methamphetamine Task Force and 


will be one of the first in the nation to provide an indoor monitoring site specifically for drug 


intoxication. A low-barrier approach to behavioral health services help people achieve better 


health, including recovery and wellness, and provides an alternative approach to law 


enforcement and unnecessary emergency room visits and hospital stays. 


 


“The SOMA RISE Center will be a crucial component of behavioral health services 


transformation in San Francisco. Its innovative approach will engage people who use drugs and 


are at risk of overdose and link them to immediate and ongoing care and treatment," said Dr. 


Hillary Kunins, the Director of Behavioral Health Services and Mental Health SF for the San 


Francisco Department of Public Health (SFDPH). “The evaluation of this pilot project will 


inform the potential opening of other sobering centers in the City where we know there is need.” 


 


Clients are transported to the center by the Street Crisis Response Team, Street Medicine, or 


community paramedics and the center also accepts walk in clients. Following a community 


outreach process that resulted in additional benefits to the community for street and safety 


improvements, the San Francisco Health Commission awarded the contract to operate the SOMA 


RISE Center to HealthRIGHT 360 on June 1. 


 


“It is critical at a time when we are seeing an enormous increase in overdose deaths that we 


create safe and compassionate low-barrier services that address the needs of people who use 


drugs. The SOMA RISE Center is a response to this very need and will be an entry point for 


people to get connected to other services. We are proud to be involved in this project and believe 


that it will improve outcomes for those that need help the most,” said Vitka Eisen, President and 


CEO of HealthRIGHT 360.   


 


HealthRIGHT 360 is a non-profit community provider of residential and outpatient service for 


health care, mental health, and substance use disorder services that serves 15,000 San 


Franciscans annually. 


 


Under Mayor Breed’s leadership, the City is focused on addressing homelessness, mental health, 


and substance use disorders, with a focus on three main areas: creating more places for people to 


go; expanding outreach and coordination among services and placement; and strengthening data 


and transparency tracking tools. The drug sobering center will make progress on all three areas 


by offering a new place for people to go and get connected with existing City services. The drug 


sobering center pilot will be evaluated and use of the facility with be tracked by DPH, furthering 


the City’s efforts to ensure programs are working and improve services as needed.  


 


More information about the SOMA RISE Center can be found on this Frequently Asked 


Questions page.  


 


### 



https://www.sfdph.org/dph/files/prop/SOMA_RISE_DSC_FAQ_update_v3.pdf
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
services that include rest, monitoring, food and water, hygiene, health assessments and more,
the SOMA RISE Center will provide a safe and secure temporary location for people to
stabilize. Clients will then engage in one-on-one peer counseling about wellness and recovery
options available to them and be connected and transported to appropriate services or their
next step designations.
 
“Drug overdose deaths are a serious public health crisis that we must take immediate action to
address,” said Dr. Naveena Bobba, Deputy Director of the San Francisco Department of
Public Health. “The SOMA RISE Center will bring help to the individuals most at risk and to
the neighborhoods where its needed most.”
 
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
transformation in San Francisco. Its innovative approach will engage people who use drugs
and are at risk of overdose and link them to immediate and ongoing care and treatment," said
Dr. Hillary Kunins, the Director of Behavioral Health Services and Mental Health SF for the
San Francisco Department of Public Health (SFDPH). “The evaluation of this pilot project
will inform the potential opening of other sobering centers in the City where we know there is
need.”
 
Clients are transported to the center by the Street Crisis Response Team, Street Medicine, or
community paramedics and the center also accepts walk in clients. Following a community
outreach process that resulted in additional benefits to the community for street and safety
improvements, the San Francisco Health Commission awarded the contract to operate the
SOMA RISE Center to HealthRIGHT 360 on June 1.
 
“It is critical at a time when we are seeing an enormous increase in overdose deaths that we
create safe and compassionate low-barrier services that address the needs of people who use
drugs. The SOMA RISE Center is a response to this very need and will be an entry point for
people to get connected to other services. We are proud to be involved in this project and
believe that it will improve outcomes for those that need help the most,” said Vitka Eisen,
President and CEO of HealthRIGHT 360. 
 
HealthRIGHT 360 is a non-profit community provider of residential and outpatient service for
health care, mental health, and substance use disorder services that serves 15,000 San
Franciscans annually.
 
Under Mayor Breed’s leadership, the City is focused on addressing homelessness, mental



health, and substance use disorders, with a focus on three main areas: creating more places for
people to go; expanding outreach and coordination among services and placement; and
strengthening data and transparency tracking tools. The drug sobering center will make
progress on all three areas by offering a new place for people to go and get connected with
existing City services. The drug sobering center pilot will be evaluated and use of the facility
with be tracked by DPH, furthering the City’s efforts to ensure programs are working and
improve services as needed.
 
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
Subject: FW: *** PRESS RELEASE *** MAYOR LONDON BREED AND TREASURER JOSÉ CISNEROS ANNOUNCE SAN

FRANCISCO MUSEUMS FOR ALL PROGRAM IS NOW PERMANENT AND YEAR-ROUND
Date: Tuesday, June 08, 2021 11:40:07 AM
Attachments: 06.08.2021 SF Museums for All.pdf

 
 
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
Date: Tuesday, June 8, 2021 at 11:17 AM
To: "Press Office, Mayor (MYR)" <mayorspressoffice@sfgov.org>
Subject: *** PRESS RELEASE *** MAYOR LONDON BREED AND TREASURER JOSÉ CISNEROS
ANNOUNCE SAN FRANCISCO MUSEUMS FOR ALL PROGRAM IS NOW PERMANENT AND YEAR-
ROUND
 
FOR IMMEDIATE RELEASE:
Tuesday, June 8, 2021
Contact: Mayor’s Office of Communications, mayorspressoffice@sfgov.org
 
 

*** PRESS RELEASE ***
MAYOR LONDON BREED AND TREASURER JOSÉ

CISNEROS ANNOUNCE SAN FRANCISCO MUSEUMS FOR
ALL PROGRAM IS NOW PERMANENT AND YEAR-ROUND
The San Francisco Museums for All program provides the 225,000 San Francisco residents

who receive public benefits free admission to local museums and cultural institutions
 

San Francisco, CA — Mayor London N. Breed and Treasurer José Cisneros today announced
the San Francisco Museums for All program will now provide free or reduced admission year-
round to more than 20 museums and cultural institutions for residents who receive public
benefits, including Medi-Cal and CalFresh.
 
This expansion aims to support San Francisco’s reopening and recovery, and follows the
program’s initial launch in summer 2019 when more than 25,000 free admissions were
redeemed by San Franciscans visiting local museums and cultural institutions. To build on the
success of the initial summer program, San Francisco Museums for All will now be permanent
and offer free year-round admission to one in four San Franciscans who receive Medi-Cal or
CalFresh benefits. The expansion of the Museums for All program builds on Mayor Breed’s
commitment to providing equitable access to the City’s arts and cultural insinuations and
educational opportunities, especially for families and children.
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FOR IMMEDIATE RELEASE: 


Tuesday, June 8, 2021 


Contact: Mayor’s Office of Communications, mayorspressoffice@sfgov.org  


 


 


*** PRESS RELEASE *** 


MAYOR LONDON BREED AND TREASURER JOSÉ CISNEROS 


ANNOUNCE SAN FRANCISCO MUSEUMS FOR ALL 


PROGRAM IS NOW PERMANENT AND YEAR-ROUND 
The San Francisco Museums for All program provides the 225,000 San Francisco residents who 


receive public benefits free admission to local museums and cultural institutions 


 


San Francisco, CA — Mayor London N. Breed and Treasurer José Cisneros today announced 


the San Francisco Museums for All program will now provide free or reduced admission  


year-round to more than 20 museums and cultural institutions for residents who receive public 


benefits, including Medi-Cal and CalFresh.  


 


This expansion aims to support San Francisco’s reopening and recovery, and follows the 


program’s initial launch in summer 2019 when more than 25,000 free admissions were redeemed 


by San Franciscans visiting local museums and cultural institutions. To build on the success of 


the initial summer program, San Francisco Museums for All will now be permanent and offer 


free year-round admission to one in four San Franciscans who receive Medi-Cal or CalFresh 


benefits. The expansion of the Museums for All program builds on Mayor Breed’s commitment 


to providing equitable access to the City’s arts and cultural insinuations and educational 


opportunities, especially for families and children.  


 


“All San Franciscans, regardless of their income, deserve the opportunity to experience the joy, 


inspiration, and community that our incredible arts and cultural institutions have to offer,” said 


Mayor Breed. “As our city recovers and reopens, a permanent San Francisco Museums for All 


program will give families an opportunity to engage in safe, healthy, and enriching activities at a 


time when they need it most.” 


 


The expansion of the Museums for All program advances a key priority of the City’s Economic 


Recovery Task Force by serving San Francisco’s most vulnerable residents and ensuring all San 


Franciscans can access and enjoy the City’s unique cultural assets. Admission fees at many 


institutions can range from $20 to $150 for a family of four to visit, which often creates a barrier 


for people to access the cultural and educational benefits that these institutions offer. Families 


with low incomes often do not go to museums because of prohibitively expensive ticket prices. 


 


Over the past year, due to the COVID-19 pandemic, many museums and cultural institutions 


either closed completely or pivoted to virtual programming. As San Francisco reopens and 


recovers, the San Francisco Museums for All Program will help support and bring people back to 


the City’s museums and cultural institutions. A survey of museums and cultural institutions that 
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participate in the national Museums for All program demonstrated that making museum 


admission free improved attendance numbers and diversified museum attendance.  


 


The San Francisco Museums for All program was created and administered in collaboration with 


Treasurer José Cisneros’s Financial Justice Project. The Financial Justice Project works to ensure 


that lower-income residents receive discounts on fines and fees that place a disproportionate 


burden on low-income families. 


 


“No one should be excluded from our world class museums because of the size of their wallet,” 


said Treasurer José Cisneros. “A truly inclusive city is one where all residents have the 


opportunity to experience the wonder and excitement of our museums and cultural institutions.” 


 


“Young or old, museums help shape our lives and minds,” said Vallie Brown, Director of Grants 


for the Arts. “Offering the museum experience free to all San Franciscans is the same as offering 


free education, it's vital to a thriving society.” 


 


The San Francisco Human Services Agency (HSA) coordinates the San Francisco Museums for 


All program. San Francisco residents who currently receive public benefits from HSA can 


receive free admission at participating museums for up to four individuals when they present 


their Electronic Benefit Transfer (EBT) card or Medi-Cal card and proof of San Francisco 


residency. 


  


“The San Francisco Museums for All program has been incredibly successful, and I am thankful 


to our museums and government partners for their continued commitment to equity,” said Trent 


Rhorer, Executive Director of the San Francisco Human Services Agency, “We’re coming 


together to invite all households who receive public benefits to visit our world-class museums so 


they too can experience the cultural abundance of our city.” 


 


Participating cultural institutions currently include:  


• Asian Art Museum 


• Cable Car Museum 


• California Academy of Sciences * 


• Cartoon Art Museum 


• Children's Creativity Museum 


• Chinese Culture Center of San 


Francisco 


• Chinese Historical Society of 


America 


• Conservatory of Flowers 


• The Contemporary Jewish Museum 


• de Young Museum 


• Exploratorium 


• GLBT Historical Society Museum 


• Legion of Honor Museum 


• Museum of Craft and Design 


• Museum of the African Diaspora 


• Randall Museum 


• San Francisco Botanical Garden 


• San Francisco Museum of Modern 


Art (SFMOMA) 


• San Francisco Recreation and Park 


Departments’ Japanese Tea Garden 


• San Francisco Railway Museum 


• Yerba Buena Center for the Arts 
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* - California Academy of Sciences offering reduced $3 admission. 


 


Updated information on reopening policies and making online reservations, if needed, can be 


found at sfmuseumsforall.org, by calling 311, or by emailing sfmuseumsforall@sfgov.org. 


 


The arts are an essential part of San Francisco’s vibrancy and will continue to play an important 


role in the City’s recovery from COVID-19. Since the beginning of the pandemic, San Francisco 


has supported artists, and arts and cultural organizations with a variety of funding and programs. 


Mayor Breed’s proposed City budget for the next two years includes significant investments to 


ensure that arts and cultural programs are able to operate, grow, and recover in San Francisco. 


Included in the Mayor’s proposed budget is $16.2 million to backfill the loss of hotel taxes, 


which fund San Francisco arts organizations. 


 


### 


 



http://sfmuseumsforall.org/
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“All San Franciscans, regardless of their income, deserve the opportunity to experience the
joy, inspiration, and community that our incredible arts and cultural institutions have to offer,”
said Mayor Breed. “As our city recovers and reopens, a permanent San Francisco Museums
for All program will give families an opportunity to engage in safe, healthy, and enriching
activities at a time when they need it most.”
 
The expansion of the Museums for All program advances a key priority of the City’s
Economic Recovery Task Force by serving San Francisco’s most vulnerable residents and
ensuring all San Franciscans can access and enjoy the City’s unique cultural assets. Admission
fees at many institutions can range from $20 to $150 for a family of four to visit, which often
creates a barrier for people to access the cultural and educational benefits that these
institutions offer. Families with low incomes often do not go to museums because of
prohibitively expensive ticket prices.
 
Over the past year, due to the COVID-19 pandemic, many museums and cultural institutions
either closed completely or pivoted to virtual programming. As San Francisco reopens and
recovers, the San Francisco Museums for All Program will help support and bring people back
to the City’s museums and cultural institutions. A survey of museums and cultural institutions
that participate in the national Museums for All program demonstrated that making museum
admission free improved attendance numbers and diversified museum attendance.
 
The San Francisco Museums for All program was created and administered in collaboration
with Treasurer José Cisneros’s Financial Justice Project. The Financial Justice Project works
to ensure that lower-income residents receive discounts on fines and fees that place a
disproportionate burden on low-income families.
 
“No one should be excluded from our world class museums because of the size of their
wallet,” said Treasurer José Cisneros. “A truly inclusive city is one where all residents have
the opportunity to experience the wonder and excitement of our museums and cultural
institutions.”
 
“Young or old, museums help shape our lives and minds,” said Vallie Brown, Director of
Grants for the Arts. “Offering the museum experience free to all San Franciscans is the same
as offering free education, it's vital to a thriving society.”
 
The San Francisco Human Services Agency (HSA) coordinates the San Francisco Museums
for All program. San Francisco residents who currently receive public benefits from HSA can
receive free admission at participating museums for up to four individuals when they present
their Electronic Benefit Transfer (EBT) card or Medi-Cal card and proof of San Francisco
residency.
“The San Francisco Museums for All program has been incredibly successful, and I am
thankful to our museums and government partners for their continued commitment to equity,”
said Trent Rhorer, Executive Director of the San Francisco Human Services Agency, “We’re
coming together to invite all households who receive public benefits to visit our world-class
museums so they too can experience the cultural abundance of our city.”
 
Participating cultural institutions currently include:
 

Asian Art Museum

https://www.imls.gov/sites/default/files/publications/documents/museums-all-evaluation-report-2018.pdf


Cable Car Museum
California Academy of Sciences *
Cartoon Art Museum
Children's Creativity Museum
Chinese Culture Center of San Francisco
Chinese Historical Society of America
Conservatory of Flowers
The Contemporary Jewish Museum
de Young Museum
Exploratorium
GLBT Historical Society Museum
Legion of Honor Museum
Museum of Craft and Design
Museum of the African Diaspora
Randall Museum
San Francisco Botanical Garden
San Francisco Museum of Modern Art (SFMOMA)
San Francisco Recreation and Park Departments’ Japanese Tea Garden
San Francisco Railway Museum
Yerba Buena Center for the Arts

* - California Academy of Sciences offering reduced $3 admission.
 
Updated information on reopening policies and making online reservations, if needed, can be
found at sfmuseumsforall.org, by calling 311, or by emailing sfmuseumsforall@sfgov.org.
 
The arts are an essential part of San Francisco’s vibrancy and will continue to play an
important role in the City’s recovery from COVID-19. Since the beginning of the pandemic,
San Francisco has supported artists, and arts and cultural organizations with a variety of
funding and programs. Mayor Breed’s proposed City budget for the next two years includes
significant investments to ensure that arts and cultural programs are able to operate, grow, and
recover in San Francisco. Included in the Mayor’s proposed budget is $16.2 million to backfill
the loss of hotel taxes, which fund San Francisco arts organizations.
 

###
 
 

http://sfmuseumsforall.org/
mailto:sfmuseumsforall@sfgov.org


From: CPC-Commissions Secretary
To: Feliciano, Josephine (CPC)
Subject: FW: General Public Comment June 10, 2021
Date: Tuesday, June 08, 2021 9:31:07 AM
Attachments: Presentation 4.pdf

 
 
 
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
 
 

From: SchuT <schuttishtr@sbcglobal.net> 
Sent: Tuesday, June 08, 2021 9:04 AM
To: Koppel, Joel (CPC) <joel.koppel@sfgov.org>; Kathrin Moore <mooreurban@aol.com>; Diamond,
Susan (CPC) <sue.diamond@sfgov.org>; Fung, Frank (CPC) <frank.fung@sfgov.org>; Imperial,
Theresa (CPC) <theresa.imperial@sfgov.org>; Tanner, Rachael (CPC) <rachael.tanner@sfgov.org>;
Ionin, Jonas (CPC) <jonas.ionin@sfgov.org>
Cc: CPC-Commissions Secretary <commissions.secretary@sfgov.org>; Hillis, Rich (CPC)
<rich.hillis@sfgov.org>; Watty, Elizabeth (CPC) <elizabeth.watty@sfgov.org>; Merlone, Audrey (CPC)
<audrey.merlone@sfgov.org>; Teague, Corey (CPC) <corey.teague@sfgov.org>; Horn, Jeffrey (CPC)
<jeffrey.horn@sfgov.org>; Cisneros, Stephanie (CPC) <stephanie.cisneros@sfgov.org>; Campbell,
Cathleen (CPC) <cathleen.campbell@sfgov.org>; Pantoja, Gabriela (CPC)
<gabriela.pantoja@sfgov.org>; Sanchez, Scott (CPC) <scott.sanchez@sfgov.org>; Balba, Ryan (CPC)
<ryan.balba@sfgov.org>; Speirs, Jeffrey (CPC) <jeffrey.speirs@sfgov.org>; Tam, Tina (CPC)
<tina.tam@sfgov.org>; Starr, Aaron (CPC) <aaron.starr@sfgov.org>
Subject: General Public Comment June 10, 2021
 

This message is from outside the City email system. Do not open links or attachments from
untrusted sources.

Dear Commissioners,
Good morning.
This project in the attached photos has no published Demo Calcs.
It has a horizontal and a vertical expansion, with a complete facade obliteration and a major interior
remodel.
It is a completely different house from its sale in 2014 to its sale in 2017.  The original house was
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https://sfplanning.org/staff-directory
https://sfplanning.org/node/1978
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perfectly habitable.  It was just modest.  This project is located in Eureka Valley.
This flip was a price difference of over $4 million on an Alteration permit valued at under $500K.
When the house was put on the market in 2014 that was when the loophole of the Demo Calcs was
really getting into gear.
But it is an ongoing issue in 2021 and will continue to be ongoing.
Section 317 (b)(2)(D) should be used to adjust the Demo Calcs.
Please look at the photos and other info in the attached PDF.
Thank you very much and have a good day.

Sincerely,
Georgia Schuttish



 
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
Date: Monday, June 07, 2021 2:40:26 PM

 
 
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
 
 

From: Letty Brown <info@email.actionnetwork.org>
Reply-To: "letty.b.brown@gmail.com" <letty.b.brown@gmail.com>
Date: Monday, June 7, 2021 at 2:37 PM
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

Letty Brown 
letty.b.brown@gmail.com

San Francisco, California 94110

 



From: Ionin, Jonas (CPC)
Cc: Feliciano, Josephine (CPC)
Subject: FW: *** PRESS RELEASE *** CITY HALL CELEBRATES REOPENING WITH MAYOR LONDON BREED’S ANNUAL

LGBTQ PRIDE MONTH KICKOFF AND FLAG RAISING CEREMONY
Date: Monday, June 07, 2021 11:47:57 AM
Attachments: 06.07.21 Pride.pdf

 
 
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
Date: Monday, June 7, 2021 at 11:37 AM
To: "Press Office, Mayor (MYR)" <mayorspressoffice@sfgov.org>
Subject: *** PRESS RELEASE *** CITY HALL CELEBRATES REOPENING WITH MAYOR LONDON
BREED’S ANNUAL LGBTQ PRIDE MONTH KICKOFF AND FLAG RAISING CEREMONY
 
FOR IMMEDIATE RELEASE:
Monday, June 7, 2021
Contact: Mayor’s Office of Communications, mayorspressoffice@sfgov.org
 

*** PRESS RELEASE ***
CITY HALL CELEBRATES REOPENING WITH MAYOR

LONDON BREED’S ANNUAL LGBTQ PRIDE MONTH
KICKOFF AND FLAG RAISING CEREMONY

San Francisco celebrated its 51st Pride celebration as City Hall opened its doors to the public
for the first time since March. Also, Mayor London Breed and City Officials commemorated

Pride Month by releasing plans for historic new LGBTQ community investments and
programs.

 
San Francisco, CA —Today San Francisco celebrated Mayor London N. Breed’s annual
LGBTQ Pride Month Kickoff and Flag Raising at City Hall in honor of the City’s ongoing
leadership and commitment to LGBTQ rights and equality. The in-person and streaming event
included honoring this year’s Pride grand marshals, remarks by LGBTQ elected officials and
community leaders, and featured special performances by the Gay and Lesbian Freedom Band
– the official band of San Francisco—and renowned opera singer Breanna Sinclairé.
 
Mayor Breed raised the Pride flag on the Mayor’s Balcony with Senator Scott Wiener,
Supervisor Rafael Mandelman, Treasurer Jose Cisneros, and Fred Lopez and Carolyn
Wysinger from SF Pride.
 
“After a long year for our City, we are honored to commemorate the 51st Pride Month
celebration in San Francisco, which embodies the strength of the LGBTQ community and our

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


Pride Month by releasing plans for historic new LGBTQ community investments and programs. 


  


San Francisco, CA —Today San Francisco celebrated Mayor London N. Breed’s annual 


LGBTQ Pride Month Kickoff and Flag Raising at City Hall in honor of the City’s ongoing 


leadership and commitment to LGBTQ rights and equality. The in-person and streaming event 


included honoring this year’s Pride grand marshals, remarks by LGBTQ elected officials and 


community leaders, and featured special performances by the Gay and Lesbian Freedom Band – 


the official band of San Francisco—and renowned opera singer Breanna Sinclairé. 


 


Mayor Breed raised the Pride flag on the Mayor’s Balcony with Senator Scott Wiener, 


Supervisor Rafael Mandelman, Treasurer Jose Cisneros, and Fred Lopez and Carolyn Wysinger 


from SF Pride.  


  


“After a long year for our City, we are honored to commemorate the 51st Pride Month 


celebration in San Francisco, which embodies the strength of the LGBTQ community and our 


City’s commitment to LGBTQ rights and equality,” said Mayor London Breed. “The day also 


marks the first day that we are opening the doors to City Hall to public services that had been 


offered remotely during the pandemic. This is a great day to celebrate both our pride for our City 


and for the LGBTQ community.” 


 


Although, Pride Month looks different this year due to the pandemic, communities are still 


coming together safely to celebrate LGBTQ history and the community through a series of in-


person and virtual events. Check out additional events here and visit San Francisco Pride for 


additional information here.  


 


“I'm thrilled to kickoff Pride this year in a time of optimism and positivity, as our communities 


start to reopen and move past the darkness of the pandemic,” said Senator Scott Wiener. “I am 


excited to celebrate Pride in person and virtually, and to be with our diverse and wonderful 


LGBTQ community here in San Francisco.” 


 


“After more than a year of isolation, gathering together to mark the beginning of a month of 


Pride is more meaningful than ever,” said Treasurer José Cisneros. “As we raise the flag today, 



mailto:mayorspressoffice@sfgov.org

https://sf.gov/pride-events-june-2021

https://sfpride.org/
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let us remember all those we lost from AIDS, from COVID-19, from racism and from 


transphobia.” 


 


“San Francisco is ready for Pride 2021! Our City’s data-driven, science-based response to 


COVID-19 saved lives and has allowed us to reopen just in time to welcome Pride to the 


ballpark, Frameline to the Castro Theater and customers back into queer-owned small 


businesses,” said Supervisor Rafael Mandelman. “With the Mayor’s announcement of historic 


investments in our LGBTQ community - including the world’s first trans basic income program, 


mental health support services for LGBTQ seniors and a home for the worlds’ first LGBT 


museum right here in San Francisco - this year’s Pride is a season to celebrate indeed!” 


 


“Today, we come together to reopen our City and celebrate our LGBTQ community in San 


Francisco and around the world as we raise the Pride flag—a continued symbol of our hope and 


resiliency during Pride Month and beyond,” said Clair Farley, Director of the Office of 


Transgender Initiatives. “We are grateful for Mayor Breed’s quick action during the pandemic 


and her ongoing support for the LGBTQ community, both through her words and actions 


including investing resources and services for those most impacted by the pandemic specifically 


our LGBT seniors, Black and Latinx Transgender women, small businesses and artists.”  


 


The City of San Francisco celebrates Pride month by recognizing the strength and resilience of 


its LGBTQ leaders, and by making real investments into the community. Last week, Mayor 


Breed announced her proposed citywide budget that includes several new critical LGBTQ 


community investments including:  


 


• First of its kind Guaranteed Income Project for the Trans Community, prioritizing 


San Francisco residents most impacted by the pandemic and those disconnected from 


other benefits. The proposed program provide monthly direct payments and wrap around 


financial coaching for up to 150 community members per year. The proposed budget 


includes $2 million for the program over the next two years. 


 


• LGBTQ Senior Tele-mental health program and expanded digital access services. 


The new investment will increase services for up to 500 LGBTQ seniors while adding 


much need mental health resources to community members who have experienced 


increased isolation, depression and anxiety due to the COVID-19 pandemic. The pilot 


project would be funded at $900,000 over the next year. 


 


• Support for small businesses and arts and cultural programs including $12 million 


for the acquisition of a site to house the country’s first full scale LGBTQ Museum.  


 


• Addressing homelessness and housing instability for the transgender community 


and LGBTQ youth through continued investments. This includes an annual 


investment of $1.8 Million for the Our Trans Home SF initiative that provides housing 


navigation services, transition housing, and rental subsidies for low income trans 



https://sfmayor.org/article/mayor-london-breed-unveils-balanced-budget-support-recovery-and-meet-citys-top-challenges
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community members. 


 


• Continuing to enact policies and initiatives that aim to break the cycle of violence 


and discrimination against our LGBTQ communities, especially against Black trans 


women that experience disproportionate levels of violence. That is why as part of Mayor 


Breed’s reinvestment effort, the Dream Keeper Initiative, is investing $2.2 Million for 


Black transgender equity programming over the next two years. 


 


For more information about the services offered by the SF Office of Transgender Initiatives, 


please visit here. And to learn more about the Vaccine Pride campaign, visit here.  


 


### 



https://sf.gov/departments/city-administrator/office-transgender-initiatives

https://sf.gov/show-your-pride-get-vaccinated





City’s commitment to LGBTQ rights and equality,” said Mayor London Breed. “The day also
marks the first day that we are opening the doors to City Hall to public services that had been
offered remotely during the pandemic. This is a great day to celebrate both our pride for our
City and for the LGBTQ community.”
 
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
Pride is more meaningful than ever,” said Treasurer José Cisneros. “As we raise the flag
today, let us remember all those we lost from AIDS, from COVID-19, from racism and from
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
investments in our LGBTQ community - including the world’s first trans basic income
program, mental health support services for LGBTQ seniors and a home for the worlds’ first
LGBT museum right here in San Francisco - this year’s Pride is a season to celebrate indeed!”
 
“Today, we come together to reopen our City and celebrate our LGBTQ community in San
Francisco and around the world as we raise the Pride flag—a continued symbol of our hope
and resiliency during Pride Month and beyond,” said Clair Farley, Director of the Office of
Transgender Initiatives. “We are grateful for Mayor Breed’s quick action during the pandemic
and her ongoing support for the LGBTQ community, both through her words and actions
including investing resources and services for those most impacted by the pandemic
specifically our LGBT seniors, Black and Latinx Transgender women, small businesses and
artists.”
 
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
 

First of its kind Guaranteed Income Project for the Trans Community, prioritizing
San Francisco residents most impacted by the pandemic and those disconnected from
other benefits. The proposed program provide monthly direct payments and wrap
around financial coaching for up to 150 community members per year. The proposed
budget includes $2 million for the program over the next two years.

LGBTQ Senior Tele-mental health program and expanded digital access services.

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

Support for small businesses and arts and cultural programs including $12 million
for the acquisition of a site to house the country’s first full scale LGBTQ Museum. 

Addressing homelessness and housing instability for the transgender community
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

Continuing to enact policies and initiatives that aim to break the cycle of violence
and discrimination against our LGBTQ communities, especially against Black trans
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
Cc: May, Christopher (CPC); Feliciano, Josephine (CPC)
Subject: FW: CPC June 24 Hearing - Notice of Public Hearing - 478-484 Haight Street - 2016-013012CUA
Date: Monday, June 07, 2021 7:50:11 AM
Attachments: 6.24.21-Notice of Public Hearing-478-484 Haight Street (ID 1238589).pdf

Commission Affairs
San Francisco Planning
49 South Van Ness Avenue, Suite 1400, San Francisco, CA 94103
Direct: 628.652.7600 | www.sfplanning.org
San Francisco Property Information Map
 
Due to COVID-19, San Francisco Planning is operating remotely, and the City’s Permit Center is open on a limited basis. Our staff are available by e-mail, and the Planning and Historic Preservation Commissions are convening remotely. The public is encouraged to participate. Find more
information on our services here. 

-----Original Message-----
From: Lawrence Li <lawrence@bureausf.com>
Sent: Saturday, June 05, 2021 8:58 AM
To: CPC-Commissions Secretary <commissions.secretary@sfgov.org>
Cc: jeremy@sla-sf.com
Subject: Fwd: CPC June 24 Hearing - Notice of Public Hearing - 478-484 Haight Street - 2016-013012CUA

This message is from outside the City email system. Do not open links or attachments from untrusted sources.

Dear Planning Commission,

As a homeowner resident of the Lower Haight, I support the proposal for a Conditional Use Authorization for the 478-484 Haight Street project.

The existing two-story building provides insufficient density on our commercial and transit corridor, and I would like to see at least nine dwelling units at the site.

As a new parent, I know that childcare in San Francisco is even more constrained than affordable housing, and I believe the addition of a childcare center benefits families in surrounding neighborhoods and beyond. This use also avoids potentially vacant storefronts.
Recognizing privacy challenges of childcare centers, I ask for the storefront to be kept as active as possible. Seeing and hearing evidence of children's activities would be better than many lifeless commercial corridor storefronts of Walgreens/CVS, offices, clinics and banks. I would want the
children to be part of the neighborhood.

In addition, I would ask for more depth and weight to the storefront architecture to strengthen the commercial corridor pedestrian experience.

The best part of the project is the absence of parking in this transit-rich and walkable neighborhood. All along Haight Street, we see curb cuts and garage entries that ruin the corridor, injure/kill people, block Muni, and increase housing costs. And this project avoids those issues.

This project adds much-needed resources to the neighborhood.

Lawrence Li
498 Waller St Apt 9

---------- Forwarded message ---------
From: Green, Mary (CPC) <mary.j.green@sfgov.org>
Date: Fri, Jun 4, 2021 at 11:06 AM
Subject: CPC June 24 Hearing - Notice of Public Hearing - 478-484 Haight Street - 2016-013012CUA
To:
Cc: May, Christopher (CPC) <christopher.may@sfgov.org>

Hello,

This email is being sent to you in addition to the standard hard copy mail during the City’s Shelter In Place Order for an item scheduled to be heard by the Planning Commission on June 24th. Please see the attached notice. If you have any questions about this item, please contact the Planner
listed on the attached notice. Thank you.

Best,

Mary Jane Green, Senior Clerk

Northern Team/Current Planning Division

San Francisco Planning

49 South Van Ness Avenue, Suite 1400, San Francisco, CA 94103

Direct: 628.652.7399  | 
https://url.avanan.click/v2/___www.sfplanning.org___.YXAzOnNmZHQyOmE6bzo4YzlmYmVhNWFmOTM0NTUxNjExYzc2ZDkyZWRiMmJmYjozOmZhOGE6NTVlMTdjOWQ0Y2RkYzc3OTViM2FjYjRiNjhkMGJmYTAwMDI5ODJhOWMzZDU0OGEyYmI3MTJjMjczYjQxMzM5OA

San Francisco Property Information Map

Due to COVID-19, San Francisco Planning is operating remotely, and the City’s Permit Center is open on a limited basis. Our staff are available by e-mail, and the Planning and Historic Preservation Commissions are convening remotely. The public is encouraged to participate. Find more
information on our services here.
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https://url.avanan.click/v2/___www.sfplanning.org___.YXAzOnNmZHQyOmE6bzo4YzlmYmVhNWFmOTM0NTUxNjExYzc2ZDkyZWRiMmJmYjozOmZhOGE6NTVlMTdjOWQ0Y2RkYzc3OTViM2FjYjRiNjhkMGJmYTAwMDI5ODJhOWMzZDU0OGEyYmI3MTJjMjczYjQxMzM5OA



 


 


NOTICE OF  
PUBLIC  


HEARING 


Hearing Date: THURSDAY, JUNE 24, 2021 
Time: Not before 1:00 PM 
Location: Visit sfplanning.org/remotehearings for details 
Case Type: Conditional Use 
Hearing Body: Planning Commission 


 
 
PROJECT INFORMATION APPLICANT INFORMATION 
Project Address: 478-484 HAIGHT STREET Applicant: Jeremy Schaub 
Cross Streets: Fillmore Street Company: Schaub Ly Architects 
Block / Lot No.: 0849 / 019 Address: 1360 9th Avenue 
Zoning District(s): Lower Haight Street NCD / 40-X City, State: San Francisco, CA 
Area Plan: n/a Telephone: (415) 682-8060 
Record No.:  2016-013012CUA Email: jeremy@sla-sf.com  
 
 
PROJECT DESCRIPTION 
The proposal is for a Conditional Use Authorization, pursuant to Planning Code Sections 121.2, 303, 317 and 743 to 
permit the demolition of the existing two-story building containing one dwelling unit above ground floor retail space, 
and the construction of a new four-story building containing 9 principally-permitted dwelling units and 9 accessory 
dwelling units above two floors of child care (Community Institutional) uses totaling approximately 9,942 square feet 
within the Lower Haight Street Neighborhood Commercial District and the 40-X Height and Bulk District. 
 
A Planning Commission approval at the public hearing would constitute the Approval Action for the project for the 
purposes of CEQA, pursuant to San Francisco Administrative Code Section 31.04(h). 
 
ADDITIONAL INFORMATION 
Architectural Plans: To view the plans and related documents for the proposed project, visit 
https://sfplanning.org/notices and search the Project Address listed above. The plans and Department 
recommendation of the proposed project will also be available one week prior to the hearing through the Commission 
agenda at: https://sfplanning.org/hearings.
 
  


For more information, please contact Planning Department staff: 
Planner: Christopher May            Telephone: (628) 652-7359            Email: Christopher.may@sfgov.org  







General Information About Procedures 


 


HEARING INFORMATION 
You are receiving this notice because you are either a property 
owner or resident that is adjacent to the proposed project or 
are an interested party on record with the Planning 
Department. You are not required to take any action. For 
more information regarding the proposed work, or to express 
concerns about the project, please contact the Applicant or 
Planner listed on this notice as soon as possible. Additionally, 
you may wish to discuss the project with your neighbors 
and/or neighborhood association as they may already be 
aware of the project. 
 
Please be advised that due to the COVID-19 emergency, the 
Planning Commission may be required to conduct this 
hearing remotely. Additional information may be found on 
the Department’s website at www.sfplanning.org. 
 
Members of the public are strongly encouraged to submit 
their comments in written form via email to 
commissions.secretary@sfgov.org by 5:00 pm the day before 
the hearing. These comments will be made a part of the 
official public record and will be brought to the attention of 
the person or persons conducting the public hearing. 
 
Comments that cannot be delivered by 5:00 pm the day 
before the hearing may be taken directly to the hearing. 
Hearing location information can be found by visiting 
www.sfplanning.org. Comments received at 
commissions.secretary@sfgov.org after the deadline will be 
placed in the project file, but may not be brought to the 
attention of the Planning Commission at the public hearing. 
 
Members of the public are not required to provide personal 
identifying information when they communicate with the 
Commission or the Department. All written or oral 
communications, including submitted personal contact 
information, may be made available to the public for 
inspection and copying upon request and may appear on the 
Department’s website or in other public documents. 
 
BUILDING PERMIT APPLICATION INFORMATION 
Pursuant to Planning Code Section 311, the Building Permit 
Application for this proposal may also be subject to a 30-day 
notification of property owners and residents within 150-feet 
of the subject property. This notice covers the Section 311 
notification requirements, if required. 
 


APPEAL INFORMATION 
An appeal of the approval (or denial) of a Conditional Use 
application and/or building permit application associated 
with the Conditional Use application may be made to the 
Board of Supervisors within 30 calendar days after the date of 
action by the Planning Commission pursuant to the 
provisions of Section 308.1(b). During the Shelter in Place 
Order, appeals can be submitted by email at 
bos.legislation@sfgov.org. For further information about 
appeals to the Board of Supervisors, including current fees, 
contact the Clerk of the Board of Supervisors at (415) 554-
5184. 
 
An appeal of the approval (or denial) of a building permit 
application by the Planning Commission may be made to the 
Board of Appeals within 15 calendar days after the building 
permit is issued (or denied) by the Director of the Department 
of Building Inspection. During the Shelter in Place Order, 
appeals can be submitted by phone or email. Please email 
julie.rosenberg@sfgov.org and alec.longaway@sfgov.org,  or 
leave a voice message at (415) 575-6881. For further 
information about appeals to the Board of Appeals, including 
current fees, contact the Board of Appeals at (628) 652-1150. 
 
Pursuant to California Government Code Section 65009, if you 
challenge, in court, the decision of an entitlement or permit, 
the issues raised shall be limited to those raised in the public 
hearing or in written correspondence delivered to the 
Planning Commission prior to, or at, the public hearing. 
 
ENVIRONMENTAL REVIEW 
This project has undergone preliminary review pursuant to 
California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA). If, as part of this 
process, the Department’s Environmental Review Officer has 
deemed this project to be exempt from further environmental 
review, an exemption determination has been prepared and 
can be obtained through the Exemption Map, on-line, at 
www.sfplanning.org. An appeal of the decision to exempt the 
proposed project from CEQA may be made to the Board of 
Supervisors within 30 calendar days after the project 
approval action identified on the determination. The 
procedures for filing an appeal of an exemption 
determination are available from the Clerk of the Board at 
City Hall, Room 244, or by calling (415) 554-5184. 
Under CEQA, in a later court challenge, a litigant may be 
limited to raising only those issues previously raised at a 
hearing on the project or in written correspondence delivered 
to the Board of Supervisors, Planning Commission, Planning 
Department or other City board, commission or department 
at, or prior to, such hearing, or as part of the appeal hearing 
process on the CEQA decision.


 







 


 


www.sfplanning.org 


 
Date:  6/4/2021 


The attached notice is provided under the Planning Code.  It concerns property located at 478-484 
Haight Street - (2016-013012CUA).   A hearing may occur, a right to request review may expire or a 
development approval may become final by 6/24/2021. 


To obtain information about this notice in Spanish, Chinese, or Filipino, please call 628.652.7550.  
Please be advised that the Planning Department will require at least one business day to respond to any 
call.   
              
 


附上的是三藩市城市規劃的法定通告。 
此通告是與位於  478-484 Haight Street - (2016-013012CUA) 
的建築計劃有關。如果在  6/24/2021  之前無人申請聽證會來檢討這一個建築計劃, 這計劃最終會


被核准。 
 


如果你需要用華語獲得關於這通告的細節,請電 628.652.7550.  .  
然後,請按 “8”· 及留言.  城市規劃局將需要至少一個工作天回應。華語資料提供只是城市規


劃局的一項服務, 此項服務不會提供額外的權利或延伸任何要求檢討的期限。 
              
 
El documento adjunto es requerido por el Código de Planeación (Planning Code) y es referente a la 
propiedad en la siguiente dirección: 478-484 Haight Street - (2016-013012CUA).  Es posible que 
ocurra una audiencia pública, que el derecho a solicitar una revisión se venza, o que la aprobación final 
de projecto se complete el:  6/24/2021. 


Para obtener más información sobre esta notificación en español, llame al siguiente teléfono 
628.652.7550.  Por favor tome en cuenta que le contestaremos su llamada en un periodo de 24 horas.  
              
 
Ang nakalakip na paunawa ay ibinibigay alinsunod sa Planning Code. Tinatalakay nito ang propyedad 
na matatagpuan sa 478-484 Haight Street - (2016-013012CUA). Maaring may paglilitis na mangyayari, 
may mapapasong paghiling ng isang pagrerepaso (review), o ang na-aprobahang pagpapatayo ay 
malapit nang ipagtibay sa 6/24/2021. 


Para humiling ng impormasyon tungkol  sa paunawang ito sa Tagalog, paki tawagan ang 628.652.7550.  
Mangyaring tandaan na mangangailangan ang Planning Department ng di-kukulangin sa isang araw ng 
pangangalakal para makasagot sa anumang tawag. 


 
  





		Public Hearing Notice and Poster - 478-484 Haight St (2).pdf

		6.24.21-Multilingual Notice-478-484 Haight Street-2016-013012CUA.pdf





From: Ionin, Jonas (CPC)
Cc: CTYPLN - COMMISSION SECRETARY; CTYPLN - SENIOR MANAGERS; STACY, KATE (CAT); JENSEN, KRISTEN

(CAT); YANG, AUSTIN (CAT)
Subject: CPC Calendars for June 10, 2021
Date: Friday, June 04, 2021 4:19:22 PM
Attachments: 20210610_closed.docx

20210610_closed.pdf
20210610_cal.docx
20210610_cal.pdf
Advance Calendar - 202100610.xlsx
CPC Hearing Results 2021.docx

Commissioners,
Attached are your Calendars for June 10, 2021.
 
Please note the Closed Session start time of 10 am.
 
Cheers,
 
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
mailto:CPC.COMMISSIONSECRETARY@sfgov.org
mailto:CPC.SeniorManagers@sfgov.org
mailto:Kate.Stacy@sfcityatty.org
mailto:Kristen.Jensen@sfcityatty.org
mailto:Kristen.Jensen@sfcityatty.org
mailto:Austin.Yang@sfcityatty.org
http://www.sfplanning.org/
https://sfplanninggis.org/pim/
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Remote Hearing

via video and teleconferencing







[bookmark: _Hlk73430854]Thursday, June 10, 2021

10:00 a.m.

Closed Session



Commissioners:

Joel Koppel, President

Kathrin Moore, Vice President

Deland Chan, Sue Diamond, Frank Fung,

Theresa Imperial, Rachael Tanner



Commission Secretary:

Jonas P. Ionin





Hearing Materials are available at:

Website: http://www.sfplanning.org

Planning Department

[bookmark: _Hlk63873417]49 South Van Ness, Ste 1400

San Francisco, CA 94103





Commission Hearing Broadcasts:

Live stream: http://www.sfgovtv.org

Live, Thursdays at 1:00 p.m., Cable Channel 78

Re-broadcast, Fridays at 8:00 p.m., Cable Channel 26









Disability and language accommodations available upon request to:

 commissions.secretary@sfgov.org or (415) 558-6309 at least 48 hours in advance.

Ramaytush Ohlone Acknowledgement 

The Planning Commission acknowledges that we are on the unceded ancestral homeland of the Ramaytush Ohlone, who are the original inhabitants of the San Francisco Peninsula. As the indigenous stewards of this land and in accordance with their traditions, the Ramaytush Ohlone have never ceded, lost, nor forgotten their responsibilities as the caretakers of this place, as well as for all peoples who reside in their traditional territory. As guests, we recognize that we benefit from living and working on their traditional homeland. We wish to pay our respects by acknowledging the Ancestors, Elders, and Relatives of the Ramaytush Ohlone community and by affirming their sovereign rights as First Peoples.



Know Your Rights Under the Sunshine Ordinance

[bookmark: _Hlk879281]Government's duty is to serve the public, reaching its decisions in full view of the public. Commissions, boards, councils and other agencies of the City and County exist to conduct the people's business. This ordinance assures that deliberations are conducted before the people and that City operations are open to the people's review. 



For more information on your rights under the Sunshine Ordinance (Chapter 67 of the San Francisco Administrative Code) or to report a violation of the ordinance, contact the Sunshine Ordinance Task Force at City Hall, 1 Dr. Carlton B. Goodlett Place, Room 409; phone (415) 554-7724; fax (415) 554-7854; or e-mail at sotf@sfgov.org. Copies of the Sunshine Ordinance can be obtained from the Clerk of the Sunshine Task Force, the San Francisco Library and on the City’s website at www.sfbos.org/sunshine.

 

Privacy Policy

Personal information that is provided in communications to the Planning Department is subject to disclosure under the California Public Records Act and the San Francisco Sunshine Ordinance. Personal information provided will not be redacted. 



Members of the public are not required to provide personal identifying information when they communicate with the Planning Department and its commissions. All written or oral communications that members of the public submit to the Department regarding projects or hearings will be made available to all members of the public for inspection and copying. The Department does not redact any information from these submissions. This means that personal information including names, phone numbers, addresses and similar information that a member of the public elects to submit to the Department and its commissions may appear on the Department’s website or in other public documents that members of the public may inspect or copy.



Accessible Meeting Information

Commission hearings are held in Room 400 at City Hall, 1 Dr. Carlton B. Goodlett Place in San Francisco. City Hall is open to the public Monday through Friday from 8:00 a.m. to 8:00 p.m. and is accessible to persons using wheelchairs and other assistive mobility devices. Ramps are available at the Grove, Van Ness and McAllister entrances. A wheelchair lift is available at the Polk Street entrance. 



Transit: The nearest accessible BART station is Civic Center. Accessible MUNI Metro lines are the F, J, K, L, M, N, T (exit at Civic Center or Van Ness stations). MUNI bus routes also serving the area are the 5, 6, 9, 19, 21, 47, 49, 71, and 71L. For more information regarding MUNI accessible services, call (415) 701-4485 or call 311.



Parking: Accessible parking is available at the Civic Center Underground Parking Garage (McAllister and Polk), and at the Performing Arts Parking Garage (Grove and Franklin). Accessible curbside parking spaces are located all around City Hall. 



Disability Accommodations: To request assistive listening devices, real time captioning, sign language interpreters, readers, large print agendas or other accommodations, please contact the Commission Secretary at (415) 558-6309, or commissions.secretary@sfgov.org at least 72 hours in advance of the hearing to help ensure availability. 



Language Assistance: To request an interpreter for a specific item during the hearing, please contact the Commission Secretary at (415) 558-6309, or commissions.secretary@sfgov.org at least 48 hours in advance of the hearing.



Allergies: In order to assist the City in accommodating persons with severe allergies, environmental illness, multiple chemical sensitivity or related disabilities, please refrain from wearing scented products (e.g. perfume and scented lotions) to Commission hearings.



SPANISH: Agenda para la Comisión de Planificación. Si desea asistir a la audiencia, y quisiera obtener información en Español o solicitar un aparato para asistencia auditiva, llame al 415-558-6309. Por favor llame por lo menos 48 horas de anticipación a la audiencia.

CHINESE: 規劃委員會議程。聽證會上如需要語言協助或要求輔助設備，請致電415-558-6309。請在聽證會舉行之前的

至少48個小時提出要求。

TAGALOG: Adyenda ng Komisyon ng Pagpaplano. Para sa tulong sa lengguwahe o para humiling ng Pantulong na Kagamitan para sa Pagdinig (headset), mangyari lamang na tumawag sa 415-558-6309. Mangyaring tumawag nang maaga  (kung maaari ay 48 oras) bago sa araw ng Pagdinig. 

RUSSIAN: Повестка дня Комиссии по планированию. За помощью переводчика или за вспомогательным слуховым устройством на время слушаний обращайтесь по номеру 415-558-6309. Запросы должны делаться минимум за 48 часов до начала слушания. 





ROLL CALL:		

[bookmark: _Hlk429617]		President:	Joel Koppel		Vice-President:	Kathrin Moore

		Commissioners:                	Deland Chan, Sue Diamond, Frank Fung, 

Theresa Imperial, Rachael Tanner



A. SPECIAL CALENDAR: 



1.         Public Comments on Matters to be considered for discussion in Closed Session.



2.       Consider Adoption of Motion on Whether to Assert the Attorney-Client Privilege Regarding the Matters Listed Below as Conference With Legal Counsel - (San Francisco Administrative Code Section 67.10(d).)   



THE PLANNING COMMISSION MAY GO INTO CLOSED SESSION TO DISCUSS THE FOLLOWING:



 3.  	Conference with Legal Counsel - Pursuant to California Government Code Section 54956.9(d)(2) and (e)(1) and San Francisco Administrative Code Section 67.10(d), a point has been reached where, on the advice of legal counsel, based on existing facts and circumstances, there is significant exposure to litigation with the City as defendant.  (Kristen Jensen, Audrey Pearson, Kate Stacy, Austin Yang)



FOLLOWING THE CLOSED SESSION, THE PLANNING COMMISSION WILL RECONVENE IN OPEN SESSION. 

  

4.       Following the Closed Session, the Planning Commission in Open Session will report on any action taken during the Closed Session and will consider a motion regarding whether to disclose any part of the discussions during Closed Session. 



ADJOURNMENT
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
Live stream: http://www.sfgovtv.org 


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

http://www.sfgovtv.org/

mailto:commissions.secretary@sfgov.org





 


Ramaytush Ohlone Acknowledgement  
The Planning Commission acknowledges that we are on the unceded ancestral homeland of the Ramaytush Ohlone, who are the original inhabitants 
of the San Francisco Peninsula. As the indigenous stewards of this land and in accordance with their traditions, the Ramaytush Ohlone have never 
ceded, lost, nor forgotten their responsibilities as the caretakers of this place, as well as for all peoples who reside in their traditional territory. As 
guests, we recognize that we benefit from living and working on their traditional homeland. We wish to pay our respects by acknowledging the 
Ancestors, Elders, and Relatives of the Ramaytush Ohlone community and by affirming their sovereign rights as First Peoples. 
 
Know Your Rights Under the Sunshine Ordinance 
Government's duty is to serve the public, reaching its decisions in full view of the public. Commissions, boards, councils and other agencies of the 
City and County exist to conduct the people's business. This ordinance assures that deliberations are conducted before the people and that City 
operations are open to the people's review.  
 
For more information on your rights under the Sunshine Ordinance (Chapter 67 of the San Francisco Administrative Code) or to report a violation of 
the ordinance, contact the Sunshine Ordinance Task Force at City Hall, 1 Dr. Carlton B. Goodlett Place, Room 409; phone (415) 554-7724; fax (415) 
554-7854; or e-mail at sotf@sfgov.org. Copies of the Sunshine Ordinance can be obtained from the Clerk of the Sunshine Task Force, the San 
Francisco Library and on the City’s website at www.sfbos.org/sunshine. 
  
Privacy Policy 
Personal information that is provided in communications to the Planning Department is subject to disclosure under the California Public Records Act 
and the San Francisco Sunshine Ordinance. Personal information provided will not be redacted.  
 
Members of the public are not required to provide personal identifying information when they communicate with the Planning Department and its 
commissions. All written or oral communications that members of the public submit to the Department regarding projects or hearings will be made 
available to all members of the public for inspection and copying. The Department does not redact any information from these submissions. This 
means that personal information including names, phone numbers, addresses and similar information that a member of the public elects to submit 
to the Department and its commissions may appear on the Department’s website or in other public documents that members of the public may 
inspect or copy. 
 
Accessible Meeting Information 
Commission hearings are held in Room 400 at City Hall, 1 Dr. Carlton B. Goodlett Place in San Francisco. City Hall is open to the public Monday 
through Friday from 8:00 a.m. to 8:00 p.m. and is accessible to persons using wheelchairs and other assistive mobility devices. Ramps are available at 
the Grove, Van Ness and McAllister entrances. A wheelchair lift is available at the Polk Street entrance.  
 
Transit: The nearest accessible BART station is Civic Center. Accessible MUNI Metro lines are the F, J, K, L, M, N, T (exit at Civic Center or Van Ness 
stations). MUNI bus routes also serving the area are the 5, 6, 9, 19, 21, 47, 49, 71, and 71L. For more information regarding MUNI accessible services, 
call (415) 701-4485 or call 311. 
 
Parking: Accessible parking is available at the Civic Center Underground Parking Garage (McAllister and Polk), and at the Performing Arts Parking 
Garage (Grove and Franklin). Accessible curbside parking spaces are located all around City Hall.  
 
Disability Accommodations: To request assistive listening devices, real time captioning, sign language interpreters, readers, large print agendas or 
other accommodations, please contact the Commission Secretary at (415) 558-6309, or commissions.secretary@sfgov.org at least 72 hours in 
advance of the hearing to help ensure availability.  
 
Language Assistance: To request an interpreter for a specific item during the hearing, please contact the Commission Secretary at (415) 558-6309, or 
commissions.secretary@sfgov.org at least 48 hours in advance of the hearing. 
 
Allergies: In order to assist the City in accommodating persons with severe allergies, environmental illness, multiple chemical sensitivity or related 
disabilities, please refrain from wearing scented products (e.g. perfume and scented lotions) to Commission hearings. 
 
SPANISH: Agenda para la Comisión de Planificación. Si desea asistir a la audiencia, y quisiera obtener información en Español o solicitar un aparato 
para asistencia auditiva, llame al 415-558-6309. Por favor llame por lo menos 48 horas de anticipación a la audiencia. 


CHINESE: 規劃委員會議程。聽證會上如需要語言協助或要求輔助設備，請致電415-558-6309。請在聽證會舉行之前的 
至少48個小時提出要求。 


TAGALOG: Adyenda ng Komisyon ng Pagpaplano. Para sa tulong sa lengguwahe o para humiling ng Pantulong na Kagamitan para sa Pagdinig 
(headset), mangyari lamang na tumawag sa 415-558-6309. Mangyaring tumawag nang maaga  (kung maaari ay 48 oras) bago sa araw ng Pagdinig.  


RUSSIAN: Повестка дня Комиссии по планированию. За помощью переводчика или за вспомогательным слуховым 
устройством на время слушаний обращайтесь по номеру 415-558-6309. Запросы должны делаться минимум за 48 часов 
до начала слушания.  



mailto:sotf@sfgov.org

http://www.sfbos.org/sunshine

mailto:commissions.secretary@sfgov.org

mailto:commissions.secretary@sfgov.org
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ROLL CALL:   
  President: Joel Koppel 


 Vice-President: Kathrin Moore 
  Commissioners:                 Deland Chan, Sue Diamond, Frank Fung,  


Theresa Imperial, Rachael Tanner 
 


A. SPECIAL CALENDAR:  
 
1.         Public Comments on Matters to be considered for discussion in Closed Session. 
 
2.       Consider Adoption of Motion on Whether to Assert the Attorney-Client Privilege Regarding 


the Matters Listed Below as Conference With Legal Counsel - (San Francisco Administrative 
Code Section 67.10(d).)    


 
THE PLANNING COMMISSION MAY GO INTO CLOSED SESSION TO DISCUSS THE FOLLOWING: 
 
 3.   Conference with Legal Counsel - Pursuant to California Government Code Section 


54956.9(d)(2) and (e)(1) and San Francisco Administrative Code Section 67.10(d), a point has 
been reached where, on the advice of legal counsel, based on existing facts and 
circumstances, there is significant exposure to litigation with the City as defendant.  (Kristen 
Jensen, Audrey Pearson, Kate Stacy, Austin Yang) 


 
FOLLOWING THE CLOSED SESSION, THE PLANNING COMMISSION WILL RECONVENE IN OPEN 
SESSION.  
   
4.       Following the Closed Session, the Planning Commission in Open Session will report on any 


action taken during the Closed Session and will consider a motion regarding whether to 
disclose any part of the discussions during Closed Session.  


 
ADJOURNMENT 





		Personal information that is provided in communications to the Planning Department is subject to disclosure under the California Public Records Act and the San Francisco Sunshine Ordinance. Personal information provided will not be redacted.

		Members of the public are not required to provide personal identifying information when they communicate with the Planning Department and its commissions. All written or oral communications that members of the public submit to the Department regarding...
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

1:00 p.m.

Regular Meeting



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

[bookmark: _Hlk63346625]49 South Van Ness, Ste 1400

San Francisco, CA 94103





Commission Hearing Broadcasts:

Live stream: https://sfgovtv.org/planning 

Live, Thursdays at 1:00 p.m., Cable Channel 78

Re-broadcast, Fridays at 8:00 p.m., Cable Channel 26







Disability and language accommodations available upon request to:

[bookmark: _Hlk63346654] commissions.secretary@sfgov.org or (628) 652-7589 at least 48 hours in advance.




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



Disability Accommodations: To request assistive listening devices, real time captioning, sign language interpreters, readers, large print agendas or other accommodations, please contact the Commission Secretary at (628) 652-7589, or commissions.secretary@sfgov.org at least 72 hours in advance of the hearing to help ensure availability. 



Language Assistance: To request an interpreter for a specific item during the hearing, please contact the Commission Secretary at (628) 652-7589, or commissions.secretary@sfgov.org at least 48 hours in advance of the hearing.



Allergies: In order to assist the City in accommodating persons with severe allergies, environmental illness, multiple chemical sensitivity or related disabilities, please refrain from wearing scented products (e.g. perfume and scented lotions) to Commission hearings.



SPANISH: Agenda para la Comisión de Planificación. Si desea asistir a la audiencia, y quisiera obtener información en Español o solicitar un aparato para asistencia auditiva, llame al (628) 652-7589. Por favor llame por lo menos 48 horas de anticipación a la audiencia.



CHINESE: 規劃委員會議程。聽證會上如需要語言協助或要求輔助設備，請致電(628) 652-7589。請在聽證會舉行之前的

至少48個小時提出要求。



FILIPINO: Adyenda ng Komisyon ng Pagpaplano. Para sa tulong sa lengguwahe o para humiling ng Pantulong na Kagamitan para sa Pagdinig (headset), mangyari lamang na tumawag sa (628) 652-7589. Mangyaring tumawag nang maaga  (kung maaari ay 48 oras) bago sa araw ng Pagdinig. 

RUSSIAN: Повестка дня Комиссии по планированию. За помощью переводчика или за вспомогательным слуховым устройством на время слушаний обращайтесь по номеру (628) 652-7589. Запросы должны делаться минимум за 48 часов до начала слушания. 





Remote Access to Information and Participation 



In accordance with Governor Newsom’s statewide order for all residents to Shelter-in-place - and the numerous preceding local and state proclamations, orders and supplemental directions - aggressive directives have been issued to slow down and reduce the spread of the COVID-19 virus. 



On April 3, 2020, the Planning Commission was authorized to resume their hearing schedule through the duration of the shelter-in-place remotely. Therefore, the Planning Commission meetings will be held via videoconferencing and allow for remote public comment. The Commission strongly encourages interested parties to submit their comments in writing, in advance of the hearing to commissions.secretary@sfgov.org. Visit the SFGovTV website (https://sfgovtv.org/planning) to stream the live meetings or watch on a local television station. 



Public Comment call-in: (415) 655-0001 / Access code: 	187 663 2592



The public comment call-in line number will also be provided on the Department’s webpage www.sfplanning.org and during the live SFGovTV broadcast.



As the COVID-19 emergency progresses, please visit the Planning website regularly to be updated on the current situation as it affects the hearing process and the Planning Commission.




ROLL CALL:		

[bookmark: _Hlk429617]		President:	Joel Koppel		Vice-President:	Kathrin Moore

		Commissioners:                	Deland Chan, Sue Diamond, Frank Fung,

			Theresa Imperial, Rachael Tanner 



A. CONSIDERATION OF ITEMS PROPOSED FOR CONTINUANCE



The Commission will consider a request for continuance to a later date.  The Commission may choose to continue the item to the date proposed below, to continue the item to another date, or to hear the item on this calendar.



[bookmark: _Hlk61434236]1.	2013.1535CUA-02	(C. GROB: (628) 652-7532)

[bookmark: _Hlk69468354][bookmark: _Hlk61507717]450-474 O'FARRELL STREET AND 532 JONES STREET – on the block bounded by Geary Street to the north, O’Farrell Street to the south, Taylor Street to the east, and Jones Street to the west (Assessor’s block/lot 0317/007, 0317/009, and 0317/011) (District 6) – Request to amend Conditions of Approval of Planning Commission Motion No. 20281, adopted September 13, 2018. A revised project scope still includes demolition of the three buildings, construction of a 13-story mixed-use building with similar massing, ground floor commercial and a new church, but now proposes up to 302 group housing rooms instead of up to 176 residential units and no longer proposes residential off-street parking. At minimum, Conditions of Approval Nos. 24, 25, 26, 32, pursuant to Planning Code Sections 303, 304, 415, 166, and 155, are to be amended to reflect the project revision and status, for a project located in a RC-4 (Residential- Commercial, High Density) Zoning District, North of Market Residential Special Use District and 80-130-T Height and Bulk District. This project has undergone environmental review pursuant to the California Environmental Quality Act and Chapter 31 of the San Francisco Administrative Code. The Planning Commission certified the Final Environmental Impact Report (EIR) for the project on September 13, 2018 (Motion No. 20279). On December 21, 2020, the Planning Department published an addendum to Final EIR for the Project. 

Preliminary Recommendation: Approve Amendments

(Continued from Regular hearing on April 15, 2021)

Note: On April 15, 2021, after hearing and closing public comment, continued to June 10, 2021 by a vote of +7 -0.

(Proposed for Continuance to June 24, 2021)



2.	2017-014833ENV	(J. DELUMO: (628) 652-7568)

469 STEVENSON STREET PROJECT – Certification of the Final Environmental Impact Report (EIR) – The project site is located on the block bounded by Stevenson Street to the north, Jessie Street to the south, 6th Street to the west, and 5th Street to the east (Assessor’s block/lot 3704/045). The proposed project would demolish the existing parking lot and construct a new 27-story mixed-use building approximately 274 feet tall (with an additional 10 feet for rooftop mechanical equipment) with three below-grade parking levels providing approximately 166 parking spaces, one freight loading space, and two service vehicle loading spaces. The approximately 535,000-gross-square-foot building would consist of approximately 495 dwelling units, 4,000 square feet of commercial retail use on the ground floor, and 25,000 square feet of private and common open space. The proposed project would also provide approximately 200 class 1 bicycle spaces, 27 class 2 bicycle parking spaces, and passenger loading zones on Stevenson Street and Jessie Street. The proposed project would use the Individually Requested State Density Bonus Program and provide affordable housing units onsite. The Project Site is located within a C-3-G (Downtown General Commercial) Zoning District, 160-F Height and Bulk District, and Downtown Plan Area.

Note: The public hearing on the draft EIR is closed. The public comment period for the draft EIR ended on May 11, 2020. Public comment will be received when the item is called during the hearing. However, comments submitted may not be included in the Final EIR.  

Preliminary Recommendation: Certify

(Proposed for Continuance to June 24, 2021)



3a.	2017-014833ENV	(N. FOSTER: (628) 652-7330)

469 STEVENSON STREET – south side between 5th and 6th Streets; Lot 045 in Assessor’s Block 3704 (District 6) – Request for Adoption of Findings and a Statement of Overriding Considerations pursuant to the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA).  The proposed project (“Project”) includes construction of a 27-story residential building reaching a height of 274-feet tall (284-feet including rooftop mechanical equipment) with a total Gross Floor Area of approximately 427,000 square feet devoted to residential uses, with approximately 4,000 gross square feet of ground-floor retail. The Project includes a total of 495 dwelling units, with a mix of 192 studio units, 149 one-bedroom units, 96 two-bedroom units, 50 three-bedroom units, and eight five-bedroom units totaling, with 73 dwelling units provided as on-site affordable dwelling units. The Project would provide 166 off-street vehicle parking spaces, up to 12 car-share spaces, 200 Class 1 and 27 Class 2 bicycle parking spaces, and three freight loading spaces within a below-grade garage. The Project is utilizing the Individually Requested State Density Bonus Program to achieve a 42.5% density bonus thereby maximizing residential density on the Site pursuant to California Government Code Sections 65915-95918, as revised under Assembly Bill No. 2345 (AB 2345). The Project Site is located within a C-3-G (Downtown General Commercial) Zoning District, 160-F Height and Bulk District, and Downtown Plan Area.

Preliminary Recommendation: Adopt Findings

(Proposed for Continuance to June 24, 2021)



3b.	2017-014833DNX	(N. FOSTER: (628) 652-7330)

469 STEVENSON STREET – south side between 5th and 6th Streets; Lot 045 in Assessor’s Block 3704 (District 6) – Request for Downtown Project Authorization to permit a project greater than 50,000 square feet of floor area within a C-3 Zoning District (Sections 210.2 and 309). The proposed project (“Project”) is utilizing the Individually Requested State Density Bonus Program pursuant to California Government Code Sections 65915-95918, as revised under Assembly Bill No. 2345 (AB 2345) to achieve a 42.5% density bonus. The Project requests six (6) waivers from: Maximum Floor Area Ratio (Section 123); Rear Yard (Section 134); Common Useable Open Space (Section 135); Dwelling Unit Exposure (Section 140); Ground-Level Wind Current (Section 148); Bulk (Section 270); and one (1) incentive from Height (Section 250). The Project includes construction of a 27-story residential building reaching a height of 274-feet tall (284-feet including rooftop mechanical equipment) with a total Gross Floor Area of approximately 427,000 square feet devoted to residential uses, with approximately 4,000 gross square feet of ground-floor retail. The Project includes a total of 495 dwelling units, with a mix of 192 studio units, 149 one-bedroom units, 96 two-bedroom units, 50 three-bedroom units, and eight five-bedroom units totaling, with 73 dwelling units provided as on-site affordable dwelling units. The Project would provide 166 off-street vehicle parking spaces, up to 12 car-share spaces, 200 Class 1 and 27 Class 2 bicycle parking spaces, and three freight loading spaces within a below-grade garage. The Project Site is located within a C-3-G (Downtown General Commercial) Zoning District, 160-F Height and Bulk District, and Downtown Plan Area.

Preliminary Recommendation: Approve with Conditions

(Proposed for Continuance to June 24, 2021)



3c.	2017-014833CUA	(N. FOSTER: (628) 652-7330)

469 STEVENSON STREET – south side between 5th and 6th Streets; Lot 045 in Assessor’s Block 3704 (District 6) – Request for Conditional Use Authorization to permit additional square footage above that permitted by the base floor area ratio limits for the construction of on-site, affordable dwelling units (Sections 124(f) and 303). The proposed project (“Project”) includes construction of a 27-story residential building reaching a height of 274-feet tall (284-feet including rooftop mechanical equipment) with a total Gross Floor Area of approximately 427,000 square feet devoted to residential uses, with approximately 4,000 gross square feet of ground-floor retail. The Project includes a total of 495 dwelling units, with a mix of 192 studio units, 149 one-bedroom units, 96 two-bedroom units, 50 three-bedroom units, and 8 five-bedroom units totaling, with 73 dwelling units provided as on-site affordable dwelling units. The Project would provide 166 off-street vehicle parking spaces, up to 12 car-share spaces, 200 Class 1 and 27 Class 2 bicycle parking spaces, and 3 freight loading spaces within a below-grade garage. The Project is utilizing the Individually Requested State Density Bonus Program to achieve a 42.5% density bonus thereby maximizing residential density on the Site pursuant to California Government Code Sections 65915-95918, as revised under Assembly Bill No. 2345 (AB 2345). The Project Site is located within a C-3-G (Downtown General Commercial) Zoning District, 160-F Height and Bulk District, and Downtown Plan Area.

Preliminary Recommendation: Approve with Conditions

(Proposed for Continuance to June 24, 2021)



4.	2020-011319DRP	(D. WINSLOW: (628) 652-7335)

655 POWELL STREET – at the corner of Pine Street; Lot 001 in Assessor’s Block 0273 (District 3) – Request for Discretionary Review of Building Permit Application no. 2020.1015.6602 for the construction of six ADUs within an existing 48-unit multi-family building per ordinance 162-16 within a RM-3 (Residential-Mixed, High Density) Zoning District and 65-A Height and Bulk District. This action constitutes the Approval Action for the project for the purposes of CEQA, pursuant to San Francisco Administrative Code Section 31.04(h).

WITHDRAWN



B.	COMMISSION MATTERS 



5.	Consideration of Adoption:

· Draft Minutes for May 27, 2021



6.	Commission Comments/Questions

· Inquiries/Announcements.  Without discussion, at this time Commissioners may make announcements or inquiries of staff regarding various matters of interest to the Commissioner(s).

· Future Meetings/Agendas.  At this time, the Commission may discuss and take action to set the date of a Special Meeting and/or determine those items that could be placed on the agenda of the next meeting and other future meetings of the Planning Commission.

		

7.	2021-004810CRV – COMMISSION RULES AND REGULATIONS – The San Francisco Planning Commission will consider adopting amendments to their Rules & Regulations, in accordance with San Francisco Charter, Article IV, Section 4.104.


C.	DEPARTMENT MATTERS



8.	Director’s Announcements



9.	Review of Past Events at the Board of Supervisors, Board of Appeals and Historic Preservation Commission

	

D.	GENERAL PUBLIC COMMENT 



At this time, members of the public may address the Commission on items of interest to the public that are within the subject matter jurisdiction of the Commission except agenda items.  With respect to agenda items, your opportunity to address the Commission will be afforded when the item is reached in the meeting.  Each member of the public may address the Commission for up to three minutes. When the number of speakers exceed the 15-minute limit, General Public Comment may be moved to the end of the Agenda.



E. REGULAR CALENDAR  



The Commission Hearing Procedures provide for presentations by staff; followed by the project sponsor team; followed by public comment for and against the proposal.  Please be advised that the project sponsor team includes: the sponsor(s) or their designee, lawyers, architects, engineers, expediters, and/or other advisors.



10.		(K. CONNER: (628) 652-7535)

STATE DENSITY BONUS LAW – Informational Presentation on the State Density Bonus Law.

Preliminary Recommendation: None – Informational



11.	2020-009640OTH	(C. FLORES: (628) 652-7439)

CENTERING PLANNING ON RACIAL AND SOCIAL EQUITY – Informational Presentation – Staff will update the Commission on the Department’s progress on the implementation of the June 11, 2020 Planning Commission’s Equity Resolution, Phase 1 Racial & Social Equity Action Plan implementation status, and Phase 2 next steps. Phase 1 contains goals, objectives, and specific actions the Department is undertaking to advance racial and social equity in our internal functions and was updated and submitted to the Office of Racial Equity for review in December 2020. Phase 2 will focus on the external functions of the Department. The Equity Resolution centered the Department’s work on equity, reinforced the Department’s Racial & Social Equity Action Plan, and directed the Department to prioritize certain tasks to further advance this work. The Office of Racial Equity requires the Department to annually report on the action plan status, update the action plan every three years following adoption, and integrate the action plan within the Department’s strategic plan. 

Preliminary Recommendation: None – Informational



12.	2019-017761CUA	(B. HICKS: (628) 652-7528)

4234 24TH STREET – north side between Douglass and Diamond Streets; Lot 014 in Assessor's Block 2830 (District 8) – Request is for Conditional Use Authorization, pursuant to Planning Code Sections 303 and 317, to demolish an existing one-story-over-garage, 3,670-square-foot, single-family residence and the construction of a new three-story-over-basement, 5,556-square-foot, two-family residence with two vehicle parking spaces. The project site is located within a RH-2 (Residential-House, Two-Family) Zoning District and 40-X Height and Bulk District. This action constitutes the Approval Action for the project for the purposes of CEQA, pursuant to San Francisco Administrative Code Section 31.04(h).

Preliminary Recommendation: Approve with Conditions



13.	2020-007152CUA	(R. BALBA: (628) 652- 7331)

5801 MISSION STREET – south side between Acton Street and Oliver Street, Lot 001 of Assessor’s Block 6742 (District 11) – Request for Conditional Use Authorization, pursuant to Planning Code Sections 202.2, 303, and 720, for a Project proposing a change of use from Retail to Cannabis Retail on the first floor of the existing two-story mixed-use building, with no on-site smoking or vaporizing of cannabis products. The subject property is located within the Excelsior Outer Mission Street NC (Neighborhood Commercial) Zoning District and 40-X Height and Bulk District. This action constitutes the Approval Action for the project for the purposes of CEQA, pursuant to San Francisco Administrative Code Section 31.04(h).

[bookmark: _Hlk73609453]Preliminary Recommendation: Approve with Conditions



F. [bookmark: OLE_LINK2][bookmark: OLE_LINK1]DISCRETIONARY REVIEW CALENDAR  



The Commission Discretionary Review Hearing Procedures provide for presentations by staff; followed by the DR requestor team; followed by public comment opposed to the project; followed by the project sponsor team; followed by public comment in support of the project.  Please be advised that the DR requestor and project sponsor teams include: the DR requestor and sponsor or their designee, lawyers, architects, engineers, expediters, and/or other advisors.



14.	2020-009332DRP	(D. WINSLOW: (628) 652-7335)

311 JERSEY STREET – south side between Noe and Castro Streets; Lot 040 in Assessor’s Block 6539 (District 8) – Request for Discretionary Review of Building Permit Application no. 2020.0810.1497 for the construction of a third-story vertical addition with a roof deck above on an existing two-story single-family home within a RH-2 (Residential House, Two-Family) Zoning District and 40-X Height and Bulk District. This action constitutes the Approval Action for the project for the purposes of CEQA, pursuant to San Francisco Administrative Code Section 31.04(h).

Preliminary Recommendation: Do Not Take Discretionary Review and Approve



ADJOURNMENT


Hearing Procedures

The Planning Commission holds public hearings regularly, on most Thursdays. The full hearing schedule for the calendar year and the Commission Rules & Regulations may be found online at: www.sfplanning.org. 



Public Comments: Persons attending a hearing may comment on any scheduled item. 

· When speaking before the Commission in City Hall, Room 400, please note the timer indicating how much time remains.  Speakers will hear two alarms.  The first soft sound indicates the speaker has 30 seconds remaining.  The second louder sound indicates that the speaker’s opportunity to address the Commission has ended.



Sound-Producing Devices Prohibited: The ringing of and use of mobile phones and other sound-producing electronic devices are prohibited at this meeting. Please be advised that the Chair may order the removal of any person(s) responsible for the ringing or use of a mobile phone, pager, or other similar sound-producing electronic devices (67A.1 Sunshine Ordinance: Prohibiting the use of cell phones, pagers and similar sound-producing electronic devices at and during public meetings).



For most cases (CU’s, PUD’s, 309’s, etc…) that are considered by the Planning Commission, after being introduced by the Commission Secretary, shall be considered by the Commission in the following order:



1. A thorough description of the issue(s) by the Director or a member of the staff.

2. A presentation of the proposal by the Project Sponsor(s) team (includes sponsor or their designee, lawyers, architects, engineers, expediters, and/or other advisors) would be for a period not to exceed 10 minutes, unless a written request for extension not to exceed a total presentation time of 15 minutes is received at least 72 hours in advance of the hearing, through the Commission Secretary, and granted by the President or Chair.

3. A presentation of opposition to the proposal by organized opposition for a period not to exceed 10 minutes (or a period equal to that provided to the project sponsor team) with a minimum of three (3) speakers.  The intent of the 10 min block of time provided to organized opposition is to reduce the number of overall speakers who are part of the organized opposition.  The requestor should advise the group that the Commission would expect the organized presentation to represent their testimony, if granted.  Organized opposition will be recognized only upon written application at least 72 hours in advance of the hearing, through the Commission Secretary, the President or Chair.  Such application should identify the organization(s) and speakers.

4. Public testimony from proponents of the proposal:  An individual may speak for a period not to exceed three (3) minutes.

5. Public testimony from opponents of the proposal:  An individual may speak for a period not to exceed three (3) minutes.

6. Director’s preliminary recommendation must be prepared in writing.

7. Action by the Commission on the matter before it.

8. In public hearings on Draft Environmental Impact Reports, all speakers will be limited to a period not to exceed three (3) minutes.

9. The President (or Acting Chair) may impose time limits on appearances by members of the public and may otherwise exercise his or her discretion on procedures for the conduct of public hearings.

10. Public comment portion of the hearing shall be closed and deliberation amongst the Commissioners shall be opened by the Chair;

11. A motion to approve; approve with conditions; approve with amendments and/or modifications; disapprove; or continue to another hearing date, if seconded, shall be voted on by the Commission.



Every Official Act taken by the Commission must be adopted by a majority vote of all members of the Commission, a minimum of four (4) votes.  A failed motion results in the disapproval of the requested action, unless a subsequent motion is adopted. Any Procedural Matter, such as a continuance, may be adopted by a majority vote of members present, as long as the members present constitute a quorum (four (4) members of the Commission).



For Discretionary Review cases that are considered by the Planning Commission, after being introduced by the Commission Secretary, shall be considered by the Commission in the following order:



1. A thorough description of the issue by the Director or a member of the staff.

2. A presentation by the DR Requestor(s) team (includes Requestor(s) or their designee, lawyers, architects, engineers, expediters, and/or other advisors) would be for a period not to exceed five (5) minutes for each requestor.

3. Testimony by members of the public in support of the DR would be up to three (3) minutes each.

4. A presentation by the Project Sponsor(s) team (includes Sponsor(s) or their designee, lawyers, architects, engineers, expediters, and/or other advisors) would be for a period up to five (5) minutes, but could be extended for a period not to exceed 10 minutes if there are multiple DR requestors.

5. Testimony by members of the public in support of the project would be up to three (3) minutes each.

6. DR requestor(s) or their designees are given two (2) minutes for rebuttal.

7. Project sponsor(s) or their designees are given two (2) minutes for rebuttal.

8. The President (or Acting Chair) may impose time limits on appearances by members of the public and may otherwise exercise his or her discretion on procedures for the conduct of public hearings.



The Commission must Take DR in order to disapprove or modify a building permit application that is before them under Discretionary Review.  A failed motion to Take DR results in a Project that is approved as proposed.



Hearing Materials

Advance Submissions: To allow Commissioners the opportunity to review material in advance of a hearing, materials must be received by the Planning Department eight (8) days prior to the scheduled public hearing.  All submission packages must be delivered to 49 South Van Ness Ave, 14th Floor, by 5:00 p.m. and should include fifteen (15) hardcopies and a .pdf copy must be provided to the staff planner. Correspondence submitted to the Planning Commission after eight days in advance of a hearing must be received by the Commission Secretary no later than the close of business the day before a hearing for it to become a part of the public record for any public hearing. 



Correspondence submitted to the Planning Commission on the same day, must be submitted at the hearing directly to the Planning Commission Secretary. Please provide ten (10) copies for distribution. Correspondence submitted in any other fashion on the same day may not become a part of the public record until the following hearing.



Correspondence sent directly to all members of the Commission, must include a copy to the Commission Secretary (commissions.secretary@sfgov.org) for it to become a part of the public record.



These submittal rules and deadlines shall be strictly enforced and no exceptions shall be made without a vote of the Commission.



Persons unable to attend a hearing may submit written comments regarding a scheduled item to: Planning Commission, 49 South Van Ness Ave, 14th Floor, San Francisco, CA  94103-2414.  Written comments received by the close of the business day prior to the hearing will be brought to the attention of the Planning Commission and made part of the official record.  



Appeals

The following is a summary of appeal rights associated with the various actions that may be taken at a Planning Commission hearing.



		Case Type

		Case Suffix

		Appeal Period*

		Appeal Body



		Office Allocation

		OFA (B)

		15 calendar days

		Board of Appeals**



		Conditional Use Authorization and Planned Unit Development

		CUA (C)

		30 calendar days

		Board of Supervisors



		Building Permit Application (Discretionary Review)

		DRP/DRM (D)

		15 calendar days

		Board of Appeals



		EIR Certification

		ENV (E)

		30 calendar days

		Board of Supervisors



		Coastal Zone Permit

		CTZ (P)

		15 calendar days

		Board of Appeals



		Planning Code Amendments by Application

		PCA (T)

		30 calendar days

		Board of Supervisors



		Variance (Zoning Administrator action)

		VAR (V)

		10 calendar days

		Board of Appeals



		Large Project Authorization in Eastern Neighborhoods 

		LPA (X)

		15 calendar days

		Board of Appeals



		Permit Review in C-3 Districts, Downtown Residential Districts

		DNX (X)

		15-calendar days

		Board of Appeals



		Zoning Map Change by Application

		MAP (Z)

		30 calendar days

		Board of Supervisors







* Appeals of Planning Commission decisions on Building Permit Applications (Discretionary Review) must be made within 15 days of the date the building permit is issued/denied by the Department of Building Inspection (not from the date of the Planning Commission hearing).  Appeals of Zoning Administrator decisions on Variances must be made within 10 days from the issuance of the decision letter.



**An appeal of a Certificate of Appropriateness or Permit to Alter/Demolish may be made to the Board of Supervisors if the project requires Board of Supervisors approval or if the project is associated with a Conditional Use Authorization appeal.  An appeal of an Office Allocation may be made to the Board of Supervisors if the project requires a Conditional Use Authorization.



For more information regarding the Board of Appeals process, please contact the Board of Appeals at (415) 575-6880.  For more information regarding the Board of Supervisors process, please contact the Clerk of the Board of Supervisors at (415) 554-5184 or board.of.supervisors@sfgov.org. 



An appeal of the approval (or denial) of a 100% Affordable Housing Bonus Program application may be made to the Board of Supervisors within 30 calendar days after the date of action by the Planning Commission pursuant to the provisions of Sections 328(g)(5) and 308.1(b). Appeals must be submitted in person at the Board’s office at 1 Dr. Carlton B. Goodlett Place, Room 244. For further information about appeals to the Board of Supervisors, including current fees, contact the Clerk of the Board of Supervisors at (415) 554-5184. 



An appeal of the approval (or denial) of a building permit application issued (or denied) pursuant to a 100% Affordable Housing Bonus Program application by the Planning Commission or the Board of Supervisors may be made to the Board of Appeals within 15 calendar days after the building permit is issued (or denied) by the Director of the Department of Building Inspection. Appeals must be submitted in person at the Board's office at 1650 Mission Street, 3rd Floor, Room 304. For further information about appeals to the Board of Appeals, including current fees, contact the Board of Appeals at (415) 575-6880. 



Challenges

Pursuant to Government Code Section 65009, if you challenge, in court, (1) the adoption or amendment of a general plan, (2) the adoption or amendment of a zoning ordinance, (3) the adoption or amendment of any regulation attached to a specific plan, (4) the adoption, amendment or modification of a development agreement, or (5) the approval of a variance, conditional-use authorization, or any permit, you may be limited to raising only those issues you or someone else raised at the public hearing described in this notice, or in written correspondence delivered to the Planning Commission, at, or prior to, the public hearing.



CEQA Appeal Rights under Chapter 31 of the San Francisco Administrative Code

If the Commission’s action on a project constitutes the Approval Action for that project (as defined in S.F. Administrative Code Chapter 31, as amended, Board of Supervisors Ordinance Number 161-13), then the CEQA determination prepared in support of that Approval Action is thereafter subject to appeal within the time frame specified in S.F. Administrative Code Section 31.16.  This appeal is separate from and in addition to an appeal of an action on a project.  Typically, an appeal must be filed within 30 calendar days of the Approval Action for a project that has received an exemption or negative declaration pursuant to CEQA.  For information on filing an appeal under Chapter 31, contact the Clerk of the Board of Supervisors at City Hall, 1 Dr. Carlton B. Goodlett Place, Room 244, San Francisco, CA 94102, or call (415) 554-5184.  If the Department’s Environmental Review Officer has deemed a project to be exempt from further environmental review, an exemption determination has been prepared and can be obtained on-line at http://www.sf-planning.org/index.aspx?page=3447. Under CEQA, in a later court challenge, a litigant may be limited to raising only those issues previously raised at a hearing on the project or in written correspondence delivered to the Board of Supervisors, Planning Commission, Planning Department or other City board, commission or department at, or prior to, such hearing, or as part of the appeal hearing process on the CEQA decision.



Protest of Fee or Exaction

You may protest any fee or exaction subject to Government Code Section 66000 imposed as a condition of approval in accordance with Government Code Section 66020.  The protest must satisfy the requirements of Government Code Section 66020(a) and must be filed within 90 days of the date of the first approval or conditional approval of the development referencing the challenged fee or exaction.  For purposes of Government Code Section 66020, the date of imposition of the fee shall be the date of the earliest discretionary approval by the City of the subject development.   



The Planning Commission’s approval or conditional approval of the development subject to the challenged fee or exaction as expressed in its Motion, Resolution, or Discretionary Review Action or the Zoning Administrator’s Variance Decision Letter will serve as Notice that the 90-day protest period under Government Code Section 66020 has begun.



Proposition F

Under Campaign and Governmental Conduct Code Section 1.127, no person or entity with a financial interest in a land use matter pending before the Board of Appeals, Board of Supervisors, Building Inspection Commission, Commission on Community Investment and Infrastructure, Historic Preservation Commission, Planning Commission, Port Commission, or the Treasure Island Development Authority Board of Directors, may make a campaign contribution to a member of the Board of Supervisors, the Mayor, the City Attorney, or a candidate for any of those offices, from the date the land use matter commenced until 12 months after the board or commission has made a final decision or any appeal to another City agency from that decision has been resolved.  For more information about this restriction, visit sfethics.org.



San Francisco Lobbyist Ordinance

Individuals and entities that influence or attempt to influence local legislative or administrative action may be required by the San Francisco Lobbyist Ordinance [SF Campaign and Governmental Conduct Code Section 21.00-2.160] to register and report lobbying activity. For more information about the Lobbyist Ordinance, please contact the San Francisco Ethics Commission at 25 Van Ness Avenue, Suite 220, San Francisco, CA 94102; phone (415) 252-3100; fax (415) 252-3112; and online http://www.sfgov.org/ethics.
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
other accommodations, please contact the Commission Secretary at (628) 652-7589, or commissions.secretary@sfgov.org at least 72 hours in 
advance of the hearing to help ensure availability.  
 
Language Assistance: To request an interpreter for a specific item during the hearing, please contact the Commission Secretary at (628) 652-7589, or 
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
para asistencia auditiva, llame al (628) 652-7589. Por favor llame por lo menos 48 horas de anticipación a la audiencia. 
 
CHINESE: 規劃委員會議程。聽證會上如需要語言協助或要求輔助設備，請致電(628) 652-7589。請在聽證會舉行之前的 
至少48個小時提出要求。 
 
FILIPINO: Adyenda ng Komisyon ng Pagpaplano. Para sa tulong sa lengguwahe o para humiling ng Pantulong na Kagamitan para sa Pagdinig 
(headset), mangyari lamang na tumawag sa (628) 652-7589. Mangyaring tumawag nang maaga  (kung maaari ay 48 oras) bago sa araw ng Pagdinig.  


RUSSIAN: Повестка дня Комиссии по планированию. За помощью переводчика или за вспомогательным слуховым 
устройством на время слушаний обращайтесь по номеру (628) 652-7589. Запросы должны делаться минимум за 48 
часов до начала слушания.  



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
 


In accordance with Governor Newsom’s statewide order for all residents to Shelter-in-place - and the 
numerous preceding local and state proclamations, orders and supplemental directions - aggressive 
directives have been issued to slow down and reduce the spread of the COVID-19 virus.  
 
On April 3, 2020, the Planning Commission was authorized to resume their hearing schedule through 
the duration of the shelter-in-place remotely. Therefore, the Planning Commission meetings will be 
held via videoconferencing and allow for remote public comment. The Commission strongly 
encourages interested parties to submit their comments in writing, in advance of the hearing to 
commissions.secretary@sfgov.org. Visit the SFGovTV website (https://sfgovtv.org/planning) to stream 
the live meetings or watch on a local television station.  
 
Public Comment call-in: (415) 655-0001 / Access code:  187 663 2592 
 
The public comment call-in line number will also be provided on the Department’s webpage 
www.sfplanning.org and during the live SFGovTV broadcast. 
 
As the COVID-19 emergency progresses, please visit the Planning website regularly to be updated on 
the current situation as it affects the hearing process and the Planning Commission. 


  



mailto:commissions.secretary@sfgov.org

https://sfgovtv.org/planning

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
 


The Commission will consider a request for continuance to a later date.  The Commission may 
choose to continue the item to the date proposed below, to continue the item to another date, or 
to hear the item on this calendar. 
 
1. 2013.1535CUA-02 (C. GROB: (628) 652-7532) 


450-474 O'FARRELL STREET AND 532 JONES STREET – on the block bounded by Geary 
Street to the north, O’Farrell Street to the south, Taylor Street to the east, and Jones Street 
to the west (Assessor’s block/lot 0317/007, 0317/009, and 0317/011) (District 6) – Request 
to amend Conditions of Approval of Planning Commission Motion No. 20281, adopted 
September 13, 2018. A revised project scope still includes demolition of the three 
buildings, construction of a 13-story mixed-use building with similar massing, ground floor 
commercial and a new church, but now proposes up to 302 group housing rooms instead 
of up to 176 residential units and no longer proposes residential off-street parking. At 
minimum, Conditions of Approval Nos. 24, 25, 26, 32, pursuant to Planning Code Sections 
303, 304, 415, 166, and 155, are to be amended to reflect the project revision and status, 
for a project located in a RC-4 (Residential- Commercial, High Density) Zoning District, 
North of Market Residential Special Use District and 80-130-T Height and Bulk District. This 
project has undergone environmental review pursuant to the California Environmental 
Quality Act and Chapter 31 of the San Francisco Administrative Code. The Planning 
Commission certified the Final Environmental Impact Report (EIR) for the project on 
September 13, 2018 (Motion No. 20279). On December 21, 2020, the Planning Department 
published an addendum to Final EIR for the Project.  
Preliminary Recommendation: Approve Amendments 
(Continued from Regular hearing on April 15, 2021) 
Note: On April 15, 2021, after hearing and closing public comment, continued to June 10, 
2021 by a vote of +7 -0. 
(Proposed for Continuance to June 24, 2021) 
 


2. 2017-014833ENV (J. DELUMO: (628) 652-7568) 
469 STEVENSON STREET PROJECT – Certification of the Final Environmental Impact Report 
(EIR) – The project site is located on the block bounded by Stevenson Street to the north, 
Jessie Street to the south, 6th Street to the west, and 5th Street to the east (Assessor’s 
block/lot 3704/045). The proposed project would demolish the existing parking lot and 
construct a new 27-story mixed-use building approximately 274 feet tall (with an 
additional 10 feet for rooftop mechanical equipment) with three below-grade parking 
levels providing approximately 166 parking spaces, one freight loading space, and two 
service vehicle loading spaces. The approximately 535,000-gross-square-foot building 
would consist of approximately 495 dwelling units, 4,000 square feet of commercial retail 
use on the ground floor, and 25,000 square feet of private and common open space. The 
proposed project would also provide approximately 200 class 1 bicycle spaces, 27 class 2 
bicycle parking spaces, and passenger loading zones on Stevenson Street and Jessie Street. 
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The proposed project would use the Individually Requested State Density Bonus Program 
and provide affordable housing units onsite. The Project Site is located within a C-3-G 
(Downtown General Commercial) Zoning District, 160-F Height and Bulk District, and 
Downtown Plan Area. 
Note: The public hearing on the draft EIR is closed. The public comment period for the draft 
EIR ended on May 11, 2020. Public comment will be received when the item is called 
during the hearing. However, comments submitted may not be included in the Final EIR.   
Preliminary Recommendation: Certify 
(Proposed for Continuance to June 24, 2021) 


 
3a. 2017-014833ENV (N. FOSTER: (628) 652-7330) 


469 STEVENSON STREET – south side between 5th and 6th Streets; Lot 045 in Assessor’s 
Block 3704 (District 6) – Request for Adoption of Findings and a Statement of Overriding 
Considerations pursuant to the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA).  The proposed 
project (“Project”) includes construction of a 27-story residential building reaching a 
height of 274-feet tall (284-feet including rooftop mechanical equipment) with a total 
Gross Floor Area of approximately 427,000 square feet devoted to residential uses, with 
approximately 4,000 gross square feet of ground-floor retail. The Project includes a total of 
495 dwelling units, with a mix of 192 studio units, 149 one-bedroom units, 96 two-
bedroom units, 50 three-bedroom units, and eight five-bedroom units totaling, with 73 
dwelling units provided as on-site affordable dwelling units. The Project would provide 
166 off-street vehicle parking spaces, up to 12 car-share spaces, 200 Class 1 and 27 Class 2 
bicycle parking spaces, and three freight loading spaces within a below-grade garage. The 
Project is utilizing the Individually Requested State Density Bonus Program to achieve a 
42.5% density bonus thereby maximizing residential density on the Site pursuant to 
California Government Code Sections 65915-95918, as revised under Assembly Bill No. 
2345 (AB 2345). The Project Site is located within a C-3-G (Downtown General Commercial) 
Zoning District, 160-F Height and Bulk District, and Downtown Plan Area. 
Preliminary Recommendation: Adopt Findings 
(Proposed for Continuance to June 24, 2021) 


 
3b. 2017-014833DNX (N. FOSTER: (628) 652-7330) 


469 STEVENSON STREET – south side between 5th and 6th Streets; Lot 045 in Assessor’s 
Block 3704 (District 6) – Request for Downtown Project Authorization to permit a project 
greater than 50,000 square feet of floor area within a C-3 Zoning District (Sections 210.2 
and 309). The proposed project (“Project”) is utilizing the Individually Requested State 
Density Bonus Program pursuant to California Government Code Sections 65915-95918, as 
revised under Assembly Bill No. 2345 (AB 2345) to achieve a 42.5% density bonus. The 
Project requests six (6) waivers from: Maximum Floor Area Ratio (Section 123); Rear Yard 
(Section 134); Common Useable Open Space (Section 135); Dwelling Unit Exposure 
(Section 140); Ground-Level Wind Current (Section 148); Bulk (Section 270); and one (1) 
incentive from Height (Section 250). The Project includes construction of a 27-story 
residential building reaching a height of 274-feet tall (284-feet including rooftop 
mechanical equipment) with a total Gross Floor Area of approximately 427,000 square feet 
devoted to residential uses, with approximately 4,000 gross square feet of ground-floor 
retail. The Project includes a total of 495 dwelling units, with a mix of 192 studio units, 149 
one-bedroom units, 96 two-bedroom units, 50 three-bedroom units, and eight five-
bedroom units totaling, with 73 dwelling units provided as on-site affordable dwelling 
units. The Project would provide 166 off-street vehicle parking spaces, up to 12 car-share 
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spaces, 200 Class 1 and 27 Class 2 bicycle parking spaces, and three freight loading spaces 
within a below-grade garage. The Project Site is located within a C-3-G (Downtown 
General Commercial) Zoning District, 160-F Height and Bulk District, and Downtown Plan 
Area. 
Preliminary Recommendation: Approve with Conditions 
(Proposed for Continuance to June 24, 2021) 


 
3c. 2017-014833CUA (N. FOSTER: (628) 652-7330) 


469 STEVENSON STREET – south side between 5th and 6th Streets; Lot 045 in Assessor’s 
Block 3704 (District 6) – Request for Conditional Use Authorization to permit additional 
square footage above that permitted by the base floor area ratio limits for the construction 
of on-site, affordable dwelling units (Sections 124(f) and 303). The proposed project 
(“Project”) includes construction of a 27-story residential building reaching a height of 
274-feet tall (284-feet including rooftop mechanical equipment) with a total Gross Floor 
Area of approximately 427,000 square feet devoted to residential uses, with approximately 
4,000 gross square feet of ground-floor retail. The Project includes a total of 495 dwelling 
units, with a mix of 192 studio units, 149 one-bedroom units, 96 two-bedroom units, 50 
three-bedroom units, and 8 five-bedroom units totaling, with 73 dwelling units provided 
as on-site affordable dwelling units. The Project would provide 166 off-street vehicle 
parking spaces, up to 12 car-share spaces, 200 Class 1 and 27 Class 2 bicycle parking 
spaces, and 3 freight loading spaces within a below-grade garage. The Project is utilizing 
the Individually Requested State Density Bonus Program to achieve a 42.5% density bonus 
thereby maximizing residential density on the Site pursuant to California Government 
Code Sections 65915-95918, as revised under Assembly Bill No. 2345 (AB 2345). The Project 
Site is located within a C-3-G (Downtown General Commercial) Zoning District, 160-F 
Height and Bulk District, and Downtown Plan Area. 
Preliminary Recommendation: Approve with Conditions 
(Proposed for Continuance to June 24, 2021) 


 
4. 2020-011319DRP (D. WINSLOW: (628) 652-7335) 


655 POWELL STREET – at the corner of Pine Street; Lot 001 in Assessor’s Block 0273 (District 
3) – Request for Discretionary Review of Building Permit Application no. 2020.1015.6602 
for the construction of six ADUs within an existing 48-unit multi-family building per 
ordinance 162-16 within a RM-3 (Residential-Mixed, High Density) Zoning District and 65-A 
Height and Bulk District. This action constitutes the Approval Action for the project for the 
purposes of CEQA, pursuant to San Francisco Administrative Code Section 31.04(h). 
WITHDRAWN 
 


B. COMMISSION MATTERS  
 


5. Consideration of Adoption: 
• Draft Minutes for May 27, 2021 


 
6. Commission Comments/Questions 


• Inquiries/Announcements.  Without discussion, at this time Commissioners may 
make announcements or inquiries of staff regarding various matters of interest to 
the Commissioner(s). 


• Future Meetings/Agendas.  At this time, the Commission may discuss and take 
action to set the date of a Special Meeting and/or determine those items that 



http://library.amlegal.com/nxt/gateway.dll/California/administrative/chapter31californiaenvironmentalqualitya?f=templates$fn=default.htm$3.0$vid=amlegal:sanfrancisco_ca$anc=JD_31.04

https://commissions.sfplanning.org/cpcpackets/20210527_cal_min.pdf
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could be placed on the agenda of the next meeting and other future meetings of 
the Planning Commission. 


   
7. 2021-004810CRV – COMMISSION RULES AND REGULATIONS – The San Francisco Planning 


Commission will consider adopting amendments to their Rules & Regulations, in 
accordance with San Francisco Charter, Article IV, Section 4.104. 


 
C. DEPARTMENT MATTERS 


 
8. Director’s Announcements 
 
9. Review of Past Events at the Board of Supervisors, Board of Appeals and Historic 


Preservation Commission 
  


D. GENERAL PUBLIC COMMENT  
 


At this time, members of the public may address the Commission on items of interest to the public 
that are within the subject matter jurisdiction of the Commission except agenda items.  With 
respect to agenda items, your opportunity to address the Commission will be afforded when the 
item is reached in the meeting.  Each member of the public may address the Commission for up to 
three minutes. When the number of speakers exceed the 15-minute limit, General Public Comment 
may be moved to the end of the Agenda. 


 
E. REGULAR CALENDAR   


 
The Commission Hearing Procedures provide for presentations by staff; followed by the project 
sponsor team; followed by public comment for and against the proposal.  Please be advised that 
the project sponsor team includes: the sponsor(s) or their designee, lawyers, architects, engineers, 
expediters, and/or other advisors. 


 
10.  (K. CONNER: (628) 652-7535) 


STATE DENSITY BONUS LAW – Informational Presentation on the State Density Bonus Law. 
Preliminary Recommendation: None – Informational 


 
11. 2020-009640OTH (C. FLORES: (628) 652-7439) 


CENTERING PLANNING ON RACIAL AND SOCIAL EQUITY – Informational Presentation – 
Staff will update the Commission on the Department’s progress on the implementation of 
the June 11, 2020 Planning Commission’s Equity Resolution, Phase 1 Racial & Social Equity 
Action Plan implementation status, and Phase 2 next steps. Phase 1 contains goals, 
objectives, and specific actions the Department is undertaking to advance racial and social 
equity in our internal functions and was updated and submitted to the Office of Racial 
Equity for review in December 2020. Phase 2 will focus on the external functions of the 
Department. The Equity Resolution centered the Department’s work on equity, reinforced 
the Department’s Racial & Social Equity Action Plan, and directed the Department to 
prioritize certain tasks to further advance this work. The Office of Racial Equity requires the 
Department to annually report on the action plan status, update the action plan every 
three years following adoption, and integrate the action plan within the Department’s 
strategic plan.  
Preliminary Recommendation: None – Informational 



https://commissions.sfplanning.org/cpcpackets/2021-004810CRVc1.pdf

https://commissions.sfplanning.org/cpcpackets/2020-009640OTH.pdf
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12. 2019-017761CUA (B. HICKS: (628) 652-7528) 


4234 24TH STREET – north side between Douglass and Diamond Streets; Lot 014 in 
Assessor's Block 2830 (District 8) – Request is for Conditional Use Authorization, pursuant 
to Planning Code Sections 303 and 317, to demolish an existing one-story-over-garage, 
3,670-square-foot, single-family residence and the construction of a new three-story-over-
basement, 5,556-square-foot, two-family residence with two vehicle parking spaces. The 
project site is located within a RH-2 (Residential-House, Two-Family) Zoning District and 
40-X Height and Bulk District. This action constitutes the Approval Action for the project for 
the purposes of CEQA, pursuant to San Francisco Administrative Code Section 31.04(h). 
Preliminary Recommendation: Approve with Conditions 


 
13. 2020-007152CUA (R. BALBA: (628) 652- 7331) 


5801 MISSION STREET – south side between Acton Street and Oliver Street, Lot 001 of 
Assessor’s Block 6742 (District 11) – Request for Conditional Use Authorization, pursuant to 
Planning Code Sections 202.2, 303, and 720, for a Project proposing a change of use from 
Retail to Cannabis Retail on the first floor of the existing two-story mixed-use building, 
with no on-site smoking or vaporizing of cannabis products. The subject property is 
located within the Excelsior Outer Mission Street NC (Neighborhood Commercial) Zoning 
District and 40-X Height and Bulk District. This action constitutes the Approval Action for 
the project for the purposes of CEQA, pursuant to San Francisco Administrative Code 
Section 31.04(h). 
Preliminary Recommendation: Approve with Conditions 


 
F. DISCRETIONARY REVIEW CALENDAR   
 


The Commission Discretionary Review Hearing Procedures provide for presentations by staff; 
followed by the DR requestor team; followed by public comment opposed to the project; followed 
by the project sponsor team; followed by public comment in support of the project.  Please be 
advised that the DR requestor and project sponsor teams include: the DR requestor and sponsor or 
their designee, lawyers, architects, engineers, expediters, and/or other advisors. 


 
14. 2020-009332DRP (D. WINSLOW: (628) 652-7335) 


311 JERSEY STREET – south side between Noe and Castro Streets; Lot 040 in Assessor’s 
Block 6539 (District 8) – Request for Discretionary Review of Building Permit Application 
no. 2020.0810.1497 for the construction of a third-story vertical addition with a roof deck 
above on an existing two-story single-family home within a RH-2 (Residential House, Two-
Family) Zoning District and 40-X Height and Bulk District. This action constitutes the 
Approval Action for the project for the purposes of CEQA, pursuant to San Francisco 
Administrative Code Section 31.04(h). 
Preliminary Recommendation: Do Not Take Discretionary Review and Approve 
 


ADJOURNMENT  



https://commissions.sfplanning.org/cpcpackets/2019-017761CUA.pdf

http://library.amlegal.com/nxt/gateway.dll/California/administrative/chapter31californiaenvironmentalqualitya?f=templates$fn=default.htm$3.0$vid=amlegal:sanfrancisco_ca$anc=JD_31.04

https://commissions.sfplanning.org/cpcpackets/2020-007152CUA.pdf

http://library.amlegal.com/nxt/gateway.dll/California/administrative/chapter31californiaenvironmentalqualitya?f=templates$fn=default.htm$3.0$vid=amlegal:sanfrancisco_ca$anc=JD_31.04

https://commissions.sfplanning.org/cpcpackets/2020-009332DRP.pdf

http://library.amlegal.com/nxt/gateway.dll/California/administrative/chapter31californiaenvironmentalqualitya?f=templates$fn=default.htm$3.0$vid=amlegal:sanfrancisco_ca$anc=JD_31.04
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Hearing Procedures 
The Planning Commission holds public hearings regularly, on most Thursdays. The full hearing schedule for the calendar year 
and the Commission Rules & Regulations may be found online at: www.sfplanning.org.  
 
Public Comments: Persons attending a hearing may comment on any scheduled item.  
 When speaking before the Commission in City Hall, Room 400, please note the timer indicating how much time remains.  


Speakers will hear two alarms.  The first soft sound indicates the speaker has 30 seconds remaining.  The second louder 
sound indicates that the speaker’s opportunity to address the Commission has ended. 


 
Sound-Producing Devices Prohibited: The ringing of and use of mobile phones and other sound-producing electronic devices are 
prohibited at this meeting. Please be advised that the Chair may order the removal of any person(s) responsible for the ringing or 
use of a mobile phone, pager, or other similar sound-producing electronic devices (67A.1 Sunshine Ordinance: Prohibiting the use 
of cell phones, pagers and similar sound-producing electronic devices at and during public meetings). 
 
For most cases (CU’s, PUD’s, 309’s, etc…) that are considered by the Planning Commission, after being introduced by the 
Commission Secretary, shall be considered by the Commission in the following order: 
 


1. A thorough description of the issue(s) by the Director or a member of the staff. 
2. A presentation of the proposal by the Project Sponsor(s) team (includes sponsor or their designee, lawyers, architects, 


engineers, expediters, and/or other advisors) would be for a period not to exceed 10 minutes, unless a written request 
for extension not to exceed a total presentation time of 15 minutes is received at least 72 hours in advance of the 
hearing, through the Commission Secretary, and granted by the President or Chair. 


3. A presentation of opposition to the proposal by organized opposition for a period not to exceed 10 minutes (or a 
period equal to that provided to the project sponsor team) with a minimum of three (3) speakers.  The intent of the 10 
min block of time provided to organized opposition is to reduce the number of overall speakers who are part of the 
organized opposition.  The requestor should advise the group that the Commission would expect the organized 
presentation to represent their testimony, if granted.  Organized opposition will be recognized only upon written 
application at least 72 hours in advance of the hearing, through the Commission Secretary, the President or Chair.  
Such application should identify the organization(s) and speakers. 


4. Public testimony from proponents of the proposal:  An individual may speak for a period not to exceed three (3) 
minutes. 


5. Public testimony from opponents of the proposal:  An individual may speak for a period not to exceed three (3) 
minutes. 


6. Director’s preliminary recommendation must be prepared in writing. 
7. Action by the Commission on the matter before it. 
8. In public hearings on Draft Environmental Impact Reports, all speakers will be limited to a period not to exceed three 


(3) minutes. 
9. The President (or Acting Chair) may impose time limits on appearances by members of the public and may otherwise 


exercise his or her discretion on procedures for the conduct of public hearings. 
10. Public comment portion of the hearing shall be closed and deliberation amongst the Commissioners shall be opened 


by the Chair; 
11. A motion to approve; approve with conditions; approve with amendments and/or modifications; disapprove; or 


continue to another hearing date, if seconded, shall be voted on by the Commission. 
 
Every Official Act taken by the Commission must be adopted by a majority vote of all members of the Commission, a minimum of 
four (4) votes.  A failed motion results in the disapproval of the requested action, unless a subsequent motion is adopted. Any 
Procedural Matter, such as a continuance, may be adopted by a majority vote of members present, as long as the members 
present constitute a quorum (four (4) members of the Commission). 
 
For Discretionary Review cases that are considered by the Planning Commission, after being introduced by the Commission 
Secretary, shall be considered by the Commission in the following order: 
 


1. A thorough description of the issue by the Director or a member of the staff. 
2. A presentation by the DR Requestor(s) team (includes Requestor(s) or their designee, lawyers, architects, engineers, 


expediters, and/or other advisors) would be for a period not to exceed five (5) minutes for each requestor. 
3. Testimony by members of the public in support of the DR would be up to three (3) minutes each. 
4. A presentation by the Project Sponsor(s) team (includes Sponsor(s) or their designee, lawyers, architects, engineers, 


expediters, and/or other advisors) would be for a period up to five (5) minutes, but could be extended for a period not 
to exceed 10 minutes if there are multiple DR requestors. 
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5. Testimony by members of the public in support of the project would be up to three (3) minutes each. 
6. DR requestor(s) or their designees are given two (2) minutes for rebuttal. 
7. Project sponsor(s) or their designees are given two (2) minutes for rebuttal. 
8. The President (or Acting Chair) may impose time limits on appearances by members of the public and may otherwise 


exercise his or her discretion on procedures for the conduct of public hearings. 
 
The Commission must Take DR in order to disapprove or modify a building permit application that is before them under 
Discretionary Review.  A failed motion to Take DR results in a Project that is approved as proposed. 
 
Hearing Materials 
Advance Submissions: To allow Commissioners the opportunity to review material in advance of a hearing, materials must be 
received by the Planning Department eight (8) days prior to the scheduled public hearing.  All submission packages must be 
delivered to 49 South Van Ness Ave, 14th Floor, by 5:00 p.m. and should include fifteen (15) hardcopies and a .pdf copy must be 
provided to the staff planner. Correspondence submitted to the Planning Commission after eight days in advance of a hearing 
must be received by the Commission Secretary no later than the close of business the day before a hearing for it to become a part 
of the public record for any public hearing.  
 
Correspondence submitted to the Planning Commission on the same day, must be submitted at the hearing directly to the 
Planning Commission Secretary. Please provide ten (10) copies for distribution. Correspondence submitted in any other fashion 
on the same day may not become a part of the public record until the following hearing. 
 
Correspondence sent directly to all members of the Commission, must include a copy to the Commission Secretary 
(commissions.secretary@sfgov.org) for it to become a part of the public record. 
 
These submittal rules and deadlines shall be strictly enforced and no exceptions shall be made without a vote of the Commission. 
 
Persons unable to attend a hearing may submit written comments regarding a scheduled item to: Planning Commission, 49 
South Van Ness Ave, 14th Floor, San Francisco, CA  94103-2414.  Written comments received by the close of the business day prior 
to the hearing will be brought to the attention of the Planning Commission and made part of the official record.   
 
Appeals 
The following is a summary of appeal rights associated with the various actions that may be taken at a Planning Commission 
hearing. 
 


Case Type Case Suffix Appeal Period* Appeal Body 
Office Allocation OFA (B) 15 calendar days Board of Appeals** 
Conditional Use Authorization and Planned Unit 
Development 


CUA (C) 30 calendar days Board of Supervisors 


Building Permit Application (Discretionary 
Review) 


DRP/DRM (D) 15 calendar days Board of Appeals 


EIR Certification ENV (E) 30 calendar days Board of Supervisors 
Coastal Zone Permit CTZ (P) 15 calendar days Board of Appeals 
Planning Code Amendments by Application PCA (T) 30 calendar days Board of Supervisors 
Variance (Zoning Administrator action) VAR (V) 10 calendar days Board of Appeals 
Large Project Authorization in Eastern 
Neighborhoods  


LPA (X) 15 calendar days Board of Appeals 


Permit Review in C-3 Districts, Downtown 
Residential Districts 


DNX (X) 15-calendar days Board of Appeals 


Zoning Map Change by Application MAP (Z) 30 calendar days Board of Supervisors 
 
* Appeals of Planning Commission decisions on Building Permit Applications (Discretionary Review) must be made within 15 days of 
the date the building permit is issued/denied by the Department of Building Inspection (not from the date of the Planning Commission 
hearing).  Appeals of Zoning Administrator decisions on Variances must be made within 10 days from the issuance of the decision 
letter. 
 
**An appeal of a Certificate of Appropriateness or Permit to Alter/Demolish may be made to the Board of Supervisors if the project 
requires Board of Supervisors approval or if the project is associated with a Conditional Use Authorization appeal.  An appeal of an 
Office Allocation may be made to the Board of Supervisors if the project requires a Conditional Use Authorization. 
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For more information regarding the Board of Appeals process, please contact the Board of Appeals at (415) 575-6880.  For more 
information regarding the Board of Supervisors process, please contact the Clerk of the Board of Supervisors at (415) 554-5184 or 
board.of.supervisors@sfgov.org.  
 
An appeal of the approval (or denial) of a 100% Affordable Housing Bonus Program application may be made to the Board of 
Supervisors within 30 calendar days after the date of action by the Planning Commission pursuant to the provisions of Sections 
328(g)(5) and 308.1(b). Appeals must be submitted in person at the Board’s office at 1 Dr. Carlton B. Goodlett Place, Room 244. 
For further information about appeals to the Board of Supervisors, including current fees, contact the Clerk of the Board of 
Supervisors at (415) 554-5184.  
 
An appeal of the approval (or denial) of a building permit application issued (or denied) pursuant to a 100% Affordable Housing 
Bonus Program application by the Planning Commission or the Board of Supervisors may be made to the Board of Appeals within 
15 calendar days after the building permit is issued (or denied) by the Director of the Department of Building Inspection. Appeals 
must be submitted in person at the Board's office at 1650 Mission Street, 3rd Floor, Room 304. For further information about 
appeals to the Board of Appeals, including current fees, contact the Board of Appeals at (415) 575-6880.  
 
Challenges 
Pursuant to Government Code Section 65009, if you challenge, in court, (1) the adoption or amendment of a general plan, (2) the 
adoption or amendment of a zoning ordinance, (3) the adoption or amendment of any regulation attached to a specific plan, (4) 
the adoption, amendment or modification of a development agreement, or (5) the approval of a variance, conditional-use 
authorization, or any permit, you may be limited to raising only those issues you or someone else raised at the public hearing 
described in this notice, or in written correspondence delivered to the Planning Commission, at, or prior to, the public hearing. 
 
CEQA Appeal Rights under Chapter 31 of the San Francisco Administrative Code 
If the Commission’s action on a project constitutes the Approval Action for that project (as defined in S.F. Administrative Code 
Chapter 31, as amended, Board of Supervisors Ordinance Number 161-13), then the CEQA determination prepared in support of 
that Approval Action is thereafter subject to appeal within the time frame specified in S.F. Administrative Code Section 
31.16.  This appeal is separate from and in addition to an appeal of an action on a project.  Typically, an appeal must be filed 
within 30 calendar days of the Approval Action for a project that has received an exemption or negative declaration pursuant to 
CEQA.  For information on filing an appeal under Chapter 31, contact the Clerk of the Board of Supervisors at City Hall, 1 Dr. 
Carlton B. Goodlett Place, Room 244, San Francisco, CA 94102, or call (415) 554-5184.  If the Department’s Environmental Review 
Officer has deemed a project to be exempt from further environmental review, an exemption determination has been prepared 
and can be obtained on-line at http://www.sf-planning.org/index.aspx?page=3447. Under CEQA, in a later court challenge, a 
litigant may be limited to raising only those issues previously raised at a hearing on the project or in written correspondence 
delivered to the Board of Supervisors, Planning Commission, Planning Department or other City board, commission or 
department at, or prior to, such hearing, or as part of the appeal hearing process on the CEQA decision. 
 
Protest of Fee or Exaction 
You may protest any fee or exaction subject to Government Code Section 66000 imposed as a condition of approval in 
accordance with Government Code Section 66020.  The protest must satisfy the requirements of Government Code Section 
66020(a) and must be filed within 90 days of the date of the first approval or conditional approval of the development 
referencing the challenged fee or exaction.  For purposes of Government Code Section 66020, the date of imposition of the fee 
shall be the date of the earliest discretionary approval by the City of the subject development.    
 
The Planning Commission’s approval or conditional approval of the development subject to the challenged fee or exaction as 
expressed in its Motion, Resolution, or Discretionary Review Action or the Zoning Administrator’s Variance Decision Letter will 
serve as Notice that the 90-day protest period under Government Code Section 66020 has begun. 
 
Proposition F 
Under Campaign and Governmental Conduct Code Section 1.127, no person or entity with a financial interest in a land use 
matter pending before the Board of Appeals, Board of Supervisors, Building Inspection Commission, Commission on Community 
Investment and Infrastructure, Historic Preservation Commission, Planning Commission, Port Commission, or the Treasure Island 
Development Authority Board of Directors, may make a campaign contribution to a member of the Board of Supervisors, the 
Mayor, the City Attorney, or a candidate for any of those offices, from the date the land use matter commenced until 12 months 
after the board or commission has made a final decision or any appeal to another City agency from that decision has been 
resolved.  For more information about this restriction, visit sfethics.org. 



mailto:board.of.supervisors@sfgov.org
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San Francisco Lobbyist Ordinance 
Individuals and entities that influence or attempt to influence local legislative or administrative action may be required by the 
San Francisco Lobbyist Ordinance [SF Campaign and Governmental Conduct Code Section 21.00-2.160] to register and report 
lobbying activity. For more information about the Lobbyist Ordinance, please contact the San Francisco Ethics Commission at 25 
Van Ness Avenue, Suite 220, San Francisco, CA 94102; phone (415) 252-3100; fax (415) 252-3112; and online 
http://www.sfgov.org/ethics. 
 


 



http://www.sfgov.org/ethics
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
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Advance



				To:		Planning Commission

				From:		Jonas P. Ionin, Director of Commission Affairs

				Re:		Advance Calendar

						All items and dates are tentative and subject to change.



				June 10, 2021 - CLOSED SESSION

		Case No.		10:00 AM						Planner





				June 10, 2021

		Case No.		Chan - OUT						Planner

		2020-011319DRP		655 Powell Street				Withdrawn		Winslow

						Public-Initiated DR

		2013.1535CUA-02		450-474 O'Farrell, 532 Jones				fr: 1/7; 1/21; 2/4; 3/11; 4/1; 4/15		Grob

						CUA - Amends original project		to: 6/24

		2017-014833ENV		469 Stevenson Street				to: 6/24		Delumo

						CEIR

		2017-014833DNXCUAENV		469 Stevenson Street				to: 6/24		Foster

						State Density Bonus residential project (495 dwelling units)

				Rules & Regs				fr: 5/27		Lynch

						Amendments

				Informational Presentation on State Density Bonus Law						Conner

						Informational

		2020-009640OTH		Racial & Social Equity Plan						Flores

						Informational Update

		2019-017761CUA		4234 24th Street						Hicks

						Demo SFH to construct new 2 unit building

		2020-007152CUA		5801 Mission Street						Balba

						Cannabis Retail use with on-site consumption				 

		2020-009332DRP		311 Jersey Street						Winslow

						Public-Initiated DR

				June 17, 2021 - CLOSED

		Case No.		Koppel, Chan - OUT						Planner

		2019-017481ENV		530 Sansome Street				to: 6/24		Callagy

						Appeal of the PMND

		2019-020611CUAVAR		5114-5116 3rd Street				to: 7/8		Weissglass

						illegal demolition of a legal dwelling unit

		2015-009955CUA		1525 Pine Street				fr: 3/18; 5/6		Updegrave

						Demo and new construction of an 8-story mixed-use building		to: ?

		2021-001791PCA		Review of Large Residence Developments						Merlone

						Planning Code Amendment

		2021-000947PRJ		555-585 Bryant St						Liang

						New construction of a 500-unit mixed-use building under SDB and HSD

		2019-023105AHB		2800 Geary Boulevard				fr: 4/29		Dito

						Demolish existing auto retail use and construct six-story, 42-unit mixed use building via HOME-SF program

		2017-000663OFA-02		610-660 Brannan Street						Samonsky

						second office allocation for the San Francisco Flower Mart

		2020-009481CUA		4034 20th Street				fr: 5/27		Horn

						Section 317 Residential Demolition

		2019-014071DRP		2269 Francisco Street						Winslow

						Public-Initiated DR

		2019-013412DRP		146 Jordan Avenue						Winslow

						Public-Initiated DR

				June 24, 2021 - Joint w/RecPark

		Case No.		Chan - OUT						Planner

		2019-017481ENV		530 Sansome Street				fr: 6/17		Callagy

						Appeal of the PMND

		2019-017481SHD		530 Sansome Street						Hicks

						Mixed-use commercial project (SFFD station, hotel, office, gym) and residential variant project

		2019-017481DNXCUA		530 Sansome Street						Foster

		OFASHDVAR				Mixed-use commercial project (SFFD station, hotel, office, gym) and residential variant project

				June 24, 2021 - CLOSED

		Case No.		Chan - OUT						Planner

		2016-011827ENX		1500 15th Street				to: 7/8		Jardines

						State Density Bonus for 8-story group housing project (160 group housing rooms and 225 beds) 

		2020-001973CUA		1737 Post Street, Suite 367				CONSENT		Young

						Formula Retail Use (d.b.a. Yi Fang Taiwan Fruit Tea, a limited restaurant) 

		2021-000726CUA		559 Clay Street				CB3P		Hoagland

						CUA to allow office use below the ground floor

		2013.1535CUA-02		450-474 O'Farrell, 532 Jones				fr: 1/7; 1/21; 2/4; 3/11; 4/1; 4/15; 6/10		Grob

						CUA - Amends original project

		2017-014833ENV		469 Stevenson Street				fr: 6/10		Delumo

						CEIR

		2017-014833DNXCUAENV		469 Stevenson Street				fr: 6/10		Foster

						State Density Bonus residential project (495 dwelling units)

		2016-013012CUA		478-484 Haight St						May

						non-residential use size greater than 4,000 square feet and for the removal of a dwelling unit

		2018-002508DRP-04		4250 26th Street						Winslow

						Public-Initiated DR

				July 1, 2021 - CANCELED

		Case No.								Planner

				July 8, 2021

		Case No.		Koppel, Chan - OUT						Planner

		2021-002352CUA		3401 California St				CB3P		Agnihotri

						Formula Retail, within the Laurel Village Shopping Center

				Residential Open Space						Teague

						Informational

		2016-011827ENX		1500 15th Street				fr: 6/24		Jardines

						State Density Bonus for 8-story group housing project (160 group housing rooms and 225 beds) 

		2016-015987PCA		1750 Van Ness Avenue						May

						Buddhist Cultural Center from the 3:1 residential-to-non-residential ratio exemption

		2016-015987CUAVAR		1750 Van Ness Avenue						May

						institutional use in the RC-4 District, a use size greater than 6,000 square feet, a building greater than 50 feet

		2018-014727AHB		921 O'Farrell Street 						Updegrave

						AHB / HOME-SF 14-story (140 feet) tower with 50 dwelling units and ground-level retail

		2020-000788CUA		722 Wisconsin Street						Feeney

						Sec 317 CUA to demolish a single family home and build a new two unit building

		2019-020611CUAVAR		5114-5116 3rd Street				fr: 6/17		Weissglass

						illegal demolition of a legal dwelling unit

		2019-022661CUA		628 Shotwell Street				fr: 11/19; 1/21; 3/18; 4/22; 5/20		Feeney

						Residential Care Facility to residential

		2021-000997DRP		801 Corbett Avenue						Winslow

						Public-Initiated DR

		2020-009479DRP		468 Geary Street						Christensen

						Canabis

				July 15, 2021 - CLOSED

		Case No.		Chan - OUT						Planner

		2021-002259CUA		1001 Minnesota Street				CONSENT		Wu

						Expansion of a Restaurant Use (dba Piccino) from 2,421 square feet to 6,591 square feet

				Neighborhood Life						Nelson

						Informational

		2017-011878PHA-04		Block 7 of Potrero Power Station						Giacomucci

						Informational

				Office of Cannabis						Christensen

						Informational

		2021-004740PCA		Exempt conversions from MCDs to Cannabis Retail						Christensen

						Planning Code Amendment

		2020-001610CUA		3832 18th Street						Horn

						317 Demolition and new construction of Group Housing per SDB Program

		2020-010109CUA		35 Belgrave Avenue						Gunther

						demolition and construct a new, three-story over basement single family home

		2020-010710CUA		400 California Street						Enchill

						conversion of ~9,400 square feet of retail use to office

		2020-000058DRM		2780-2782 Diamond St						Pantoja

						Flat Removal of two dwelling units

		2020-010508DRP		3201 23rd Street						Winslow

						Public-Initiated DR

		2021-003059DRP		555 Buena Vista Avenue						Winslow

						Public-Initiated DR

				July 22, 2021 - CLOSED

		Case No.		Chan - OUT						Planner

		2021-005030PCAMAP		Life Science and Medical Special Use District						Shaw

						Planning Code & Zoning Map Amendment

		2021-005135PCA		Conditional Use Authorization Requirements Regarding Residential Care Facilities						Merlone

						Planning Code Amendment

		2015-012577CUA		1200 Van Ness Ave						Woods

						Demo & new construction of a 13-story building health services, retail, 107 dwelling units

		2020-002678CUA		2335 Golden Gate Ave						Woods

						Construction of a new basketball training facility on the USF campus

		2020-005897CUADNXOFA		233 Geary Street						Vimr

						exterior alterations at the ground floor, western wall, rooftop, and windows

		2020-009312CUA		1112 Shotwell Street						Feeney

						Construct a new 3-story, 3-unit residential building on a parcel with existing multi-unit residential building

		2021-002978CUA		555 Fulton Street						Asbaugh

						Trad'r Joe's in the Hayes Valley Special Use District

		2018-002625CUA		4716-4722 Mission Street						Horn

						317 Residential Demolition and new construction of 8 DUs and 16 ADUs

		2021-000308DRP		642 Alvarado Street						Winslow

						Public-Initiated DR

				July 29, 2021 - CLOSED

		Case No.		Chan - OUT						Planner

		2017-012086ENV		770 Woolsey Street						Delumo

						Review and comment on Draft EIR

		2019-012676DNXCUA		159 Fell Street						Updegrave

						Demolition, New Construction 7-story building with ground-floor retail and 20 residential units

		2019-013528CUA		36-38 Gough Street 						Samonsky

						demolition of a duplex and construction of a five story residential building

		2019-019901CUA		1068 Florida Street						Christensen

						legalize demo and rebuild of duplex

		2019-020818AHB		5012 03rd St						Liang

						New construction of 29 units under HOME-SF

		2020-008347CUA		 811 Clay Street 						Hoagland

						Foot/Chair Massage to Massage on ground floor in CVR District

		2016-010671CUA		809 Sacramento Street						Foster

						CUA for height above 35 feet in Chinatown Mixed Use Districts

		2016-002728CUA-02		2525 Van Ness Ave						May

						increase residential parking ratio from 0.5 spaces to 0.75 spaces per unit

		2019-023466DRM		3150 18th St						Sucre

						ActivSpace 

		2016-013505DRP		35 Ventura Street						Winslow

						Public-Initiated DR

		2016-000302DRP		460 Vallejo Street						Winslow

						Public-Initiated DR

				August 5, 2021 - CANCELED

		Case No.								Planner





				August 12, 2021 - CANCELED

		Case No.								Planner





				August 19, 2021 - CANCELED

		Case No.								Planner





				August 26, 2021

		Case No.		Chan - OUT						Planner

		2019-021884ENV		SFMTA: 2500 Mariposa Street 						Lynch

						Potrero Yard Muni Bus Maintenance Facility - DEIR

		2020-007481CUA		5367 Diamond Heights Blvd. (1900 Diamond St.) 						Pantoja

						PUD for the construction of 24 dwelling units in a total of 14 residential buildings

		2018-013451PRJ		2135 Market Street						Horn

						State Density Bonus new construction of 9-story, 36 unit mixed use building

				September 2, 2021

		Case No.		Chan - OUT						Planner

		2021-001698CUA		340 Fell Street				CB3P		Hoagland

						Merger of three tenant spaces resulting in non-residential (automotive repair) use greater than 2,999 sf

				September 9, 2021

		Case No.		Chan - OUT						Planner

		2018-013597ENV		Portsmouth Square Improvement						Calpin

						Draft EIR

				September 16, 2021 - CANCELED

		Case No.								Planner

				September 23, 2021

		Case No.		Chan - OUT						Planner

				September 30, 2021

		Case No.		Chan - OUT						Planner

				October 7, 2021

		Case No.		Chan - OUT						Planner

				October 14, 2021

		Case No.		Chan - OUT						Planner

				October 21, 2021

		Case No.		Chan - OUT						Planner

				October 28, 2021

		Case No.		Chan - OUT						Planner

				November 4, 2021

		Case No.								Planner

				November 11, 2021 - CANCELED

		Case No.								Planner

				November 18, 2021

		Case No.								Planner

				November 25, 2021 - CANCELED

		Case No.								Planner
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To:           Staff

From:       Jonas P. Ionin, Director of Commission Affairs

Re:           Hearing Results

          

NEXT MOTION/RESOLUTION No: 20926

 

NEXT DISCRETIONARY REVIEW ACTION No: 754

                  

DRA = Discretionary Review Action; M = Motion; R = Resolution



  June 3, 2021 Regular Hearing Results:

		Action No.

		Case No.

		 

 

		Planner

		Action

		Vote



		

		2019-006578DRP

		2455 Harrison Street

		Westhoff

		Withdrawn

		



		

		

		Draft Minutes for May 20, 2021

		Ionin

		Adopted

		+7 -0



		R-20926

		2020-006112PCA

		Massage Establishment Zoning Controls [BF 210381]

		Flores

		Approved with Staff Modifications

		+7 -0



		

		2018-013637CWP

		Islais Creek Southeast Mobility and Adaptation Strategy

		Fisher/ Barata

		Reviewed and Commented

		



		M-20927

		2021-000444CUA

		135 Post Street

		Guy

		Approved with Amendments read into the record by Staff

		+7 -0



		M-20928

		2021-000444OFA

		135 Post Street

		Guy

		Approved with Amendments read into the record by Staff

		+7 -0



		M-20929

		2020-011603CUA

		2424 Polk Street

		Feeney

		Approved with Conditions as amended to include:

1. Applicant to apply for a passenger loading (white) zone;

2. Doors adjacent to the vaping lounge be alarmed; and

3. Windows adjacent to the vaping lounge be inoperative or remain closed during operation.

		+5 -2 (Fung, Moore against)



		M-20930

		2020-003223CUA

		249 Texas Street

		Westhoff

		Approved with Conditions

		+5 -2 (Imperial, Moore against)



		[bookmark: OLE_LINK1]M-20931

		2019-006578SHD

		2455 Harrison Street

		Westhoff

		Adopted Shadow Findings

		+7 -0







   May 27, 2021 Regular Hearing Results:

		Action No.

		Case No.

		 

 

		Planner

		Action

		Vote



		

		2020-009481CUA

		4034 20th Street

		Horn

		Continued to June 17, 2021

		+7 -0



		

		2021-001698CUA

		340 Fell Street

		Hoagland

		Continued to September 2, 2021

		+7 -0



		

		2020-008058DRP

		1950 Franklin Street

		Winslow

		Withdrawn

		



		

		

		CPC Rules&Regs

		Ionin

		Continued to June 10, 2021

		+7 -0



		M-20923

		2021-003760CUA

		4374 Mission Street

		Campbell

		Approved with Conditions

		+7 -0



		

		

		Draft Minutes for May 13, 2021

		Ionin

		Adopted

		+7 -0



		DRA-753

		2019-017985DRP-05

		25 Toledo Way

		Winslow

		No DR Approved with Modifications

		+7 -0



		M-20924

		2019-012888CUA

		3129-3141 Clement Street

		Young

		Approved with Conditions as amended to include:

1. Outdoor seating to end at 8:00 pm and outdoor noise to end at 10 pm;

2. No outdoor TV’s; and

3. Sound from the Karaoke Bar to be fully contained within the establishment and no noise to bleed outside.

		+7 -0



		M-20925

		2021-000603CUA

		5 Leland Avenue

		Christensen

		Disapproved, citing:

1. Overconcentration and saturation in the immediate vicinity;

2. Limited number of storefronts; and 

3. CU criteria not being met.

		+4 -3 (Tanner, Diamond, Koppel against)







   May 20, 2021 Regular Hearing Results:

		Action No.

		Case No.

		 

 

		Planner

		Action

		Vote



		

		2019-022661CUA

		628 Shotweel Street

		Feeney

		Continued to July 8, 2021

		+7 -0



		

		

		Draft Minutes for May 6, 2021

		Ionin

		Adopted

		+7 -0



		M-20922

		2020-007074CUA

		159 Laidley Street

		Horn

		Approved with Conditions

		+7 -0



		

		2020-007734DRP-03

		3441 Washington Street

		Winslow

		Withdrawn

		



		DRA-750

		2019-019822DRP

		4079 Cesar Chavez

		Winslow

		Took DR and Approved with Modifications

		+7 -0



		DRA-751

		2019-019373DRP

		217 Hugo Street

		Winslow

		Took DR and Approved with Modifications

		+7 -0



		DRA-752

		2019-016244DRP

		239 Broad Street

		Winslow

		Took DR and Approved with Modifications

		+7 -0







   May 13, 2021 Regular Hearing Results:

		Action No.

		Case No.

		 

 

		Planner

		Action

		Vote



		

		2021-000603CUA

		5 Leland Avenue

		Christensen

		Continued to May 27, 2021

		+7 -0



		

		2020-003223CUA

		249 Texas Street

		Westhoff

		Continued to June 3, 2021

		+7 -0



		

		2019-019373DRP

		217 Hugo Street

		Winslow

		Continued to May 20, 2021

		+7 -0



		

		2020-007734DRP-03

		3441 Washington Street

		Winslow

		Continued to May 20, 2021

		+7 -0



		M-20914

		2020-008474CUA

		3519 California Street

		Young

		Approved with Conditions

		+7 -0



		M-20915

		2019-021247CUA

		1537 Mission Street

		Foster

		Approved with Conditions

		+7 -0



		

		

		Draft Minutes for April 29, 2021

		Ionin

		Adopted

		+7 -0



		

		

		O Guttenburg Street

		Pantoja

		Reviewed and Commented

		



		R-20916

		2021-002990PCA

		Temporary Closure of Liquor Stores in Polk Street Neighborhood Commercial District[BF 210287]

		Merlone

		Approved with Modifications

		+7 -0



		R-20917

		2021-003184PCAMAP

		2500-2530 18th Street Affordable Housing Special Use District [BF 210182]

		Flores

		Approved with Modifications

		+7 -0



		

		2019-021884CWPENV

		Potrero Yard Modernization Project

		Snyder

		Reviewed and Commented

		



		M-20918

		2018-011249CUA-02

		1567 California Street

		Perry

		Approved with Conditions

		+7 -0



		M-20919

		2020-003042AHB

		4712-4720 3rd Street

		Feeney

		Approved with Conditions

		+7 -0



		M-20920

		2014.1058CUA

		6424 3rd Street/188 Key Avenue

		Jardines

		Approved with Conditions

		+7 -0



		

		2014.1058VAR

		6424 3rd Street/188 Key Avenue

		Jardines

		ZA closed the PH and indicated an intent to Grant

		



		M-20921

		2020-000886CUA

		575 Vermont Street

		Christensen

		Approved with Conditions as amended to include: 

1. A patio for the ADU at grade for the full width of the unit at least ten feet deep;

2. Sponsor continue working with Staff and adjacent neighbors on the north facing fenestration of the top two floors; and 

3. The modifications be submitted to the CPC in the form of an update memo. 

		+7 -0







   May 6, 2021 Regular Hearing Results:

		Action No.

		Case No.

		 

 

		Planner

		Action

		Vote



		

		2019-019373DRP

		217 Hugo Street

		Winslow

		Continued to May 13, 2021

		+7 -0



		M-20908

		2021-000186CUA

		2675 Geary Boulevard

		May

		Approved with Conditions

		+7 -0



		

		

		Draft Minutes for April 22, 2021

		Ionin

		Adopted

		+7 -0



		M-20909

		2015-009955ENV

		1525 Pine Street

		Li

		Upheld

		+5 -2 (Imperial, Moore against)



		

		2015-009955CUA

		1525 Pine Street

		Asbagh

		After hearing and closing public comment; Continued to June 17, 2021 with direction to explore a project that provides more light and air to the adjacent tenants.

		+5 -2 (Imperial, Moore against)



		M-20910

		2019-020740CUA

		468 Turk Street

		Asbagh

		Approved with Conditions as amended to include the minimum kitchen appliances as listed by the Project Sponsor.

		+7 -0



		M-20911

		2021-001979CUA

		141 Leland Avenue

		Horn

		Approved with Conditions

		+7 -0



		M-20912

		2021-002277CUA

		220 Dolores Street

		Horn

		Approved with Conditions

		+7 -0



		

		2021-002277VAR

		220 Dolores Street

		Horn

		ZA closed the PH and indicated an intent to Grant

		



		M-20913

		2021-002736CUA

		129 Hyde Street

		Horn

		Approved with Conditions

		+7 -0



		

		2021-002736VAR

		129 Hyde Street

		Horn

		ZA closed the PH and indicated an intent to Grant

		



		DRA-749

		2013.0846DRP

		140-142 Jasper Place

		Winslow

		No DR, Approved with a Finding recognizing the rent-controlled status of the building.

		+5 -2 (Imperial, Moore against)







   April 29, 2021 Regular Hearing Results:

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

		4079 Cesar Chavez Street

		Winslow

		Continued to May 20, 2021

		+7 -0



		

		2016-012135CUA

		2214 Cayuga Avenue and 3101 Alemany Boulevard

		Pantoja

		Continued Indefinitely

		+7 -0



		

		2013.0846DRP

		140-142 Jasper Place

		Winslow

		Continued to May 6, 2021

		+7 -0



		

		2019-023105AHB

		2800 Geary Boulevard

		Dito

		Continued to June 17, 2021

		+7 -0



		

		2018-011249CUA-02

		1567 California Street

		Perry

		Continued to May 13, 2021

		+7 -0



		M-20899

		2021-000485CUA

		3910 24th Street

		Cisneros

		Approved with Conditions

		+7 -0



		DRA-748

		2021-000389DRP

		366-368 Collingwood Street

		Winslow

		Took DR and Approved with Modifications

		+7 -0



		

		

		Draft Minutes for April 15, 2021

		Ionin

		Adopted

		+7 -0



		M-20900

		2016-016100ENV

		SFPUC Southern Skyline Boulevard Ridge Trail Extension Project

		Johnston

		Certified

		+7 -0



		M-20901

		2020-005255SHD_

2020-006576SHD	

		474 Bryant Street and 77 Stillman Street

		Liang

		Adopted Findings

		+7 -0



		M-20902

		2020-005255ENX

		474 Bryant Street

		Liang

		Approved with Conditions

		+7 -0



		M-20903

		2020-005255OFA

		474 Bryant Street

		Liang

		Approved with Conditions

		+7 -0



		M-20904

		2020-006576ENX

		77 Stillman Street

		Liang

		Approved with Conditions

		+7 -0



		M-20905

		2020-006576OFA

		77 Stillman Street

		Liang

		Approved with Conditions

		+7 -0



		M-20906

		2020-006045CUA

		292 Eureka Street

		Cisneros

		Approved with Conditions

		+7 -0



		

		2020-006045VAR

		292 Eureka Street

		Cisneros

		After hearing and closing public comment; ZA indicated an intent to Grant

		+7 -0



		M-20907

		2020-009424CUA

		231-235 Wilde Avenue

		Wu

		Approved with Conditions

		+7 -0







   April 22, 2021 Regular Hearing Results:

		Action No.

		Case No.

		 

 

		Planner

		Action

		Vote



		

		2019-022661CUA

		628 Shotwell Street

		Feeney

		Continued to May 20, 2021

		+7 -0



		

		2020-003042AHB

		4712-4720 3rd Street

		Feeney

		Continued to May 13, 2021

		+7 -0



		M-20894

		2018-007267OFA-02

		865 Market Street

		Vimr

		Approved with Conditions

		+7 -0



		

		2018-004047CWP-02

		Housing Inventory Report, Housing Balance Report, and update on Monitoring Reports

		Littlefield

		Reviewed and Commented

		



		

		2019-016230CWP

		Housing Element 2022 Update

		Haddadan

		Reviewed and Commented

		



		

		2021-003010PRJ

		Transitioning The Shared Spaces To A Permanent City Program

		Abad

		Reviewed and Commented

		



		R-20895

		2021-002933PCA

		Simplify Restrictions On Small Businesses [Board File No. 210285]

		Nickolopoulos

		Approved with Staff Modifications and eliminating the provision related to ADU’s in Chinatown.

		+4 -3 (Chan, Imperial, Moore against)



		

		2019-006114PRJ

		300 5th Street

		Christensen

		Reviewed and Commented

		



		M-20896

		2013.0614ENX-02

		600 South Van Ness

		Christensen

		Approved with Conditions

		+7 -0



		M-20897

		2020-010729CUA

		1215 29th Avenue

		Page

		Disapproved

		+7 -0



		M-20898

		2020-009148CUA

		353 Divisadero Street

		Christensen

		Approved with Conditions

		+7 -0



		DRA-746

		2020-006525DRP

		1990 Lombard Street

		Winslow

		No DR

		+7 -0



		DRA-747

		2020-002333DRP

		2814 Clay Street

		Winslow

		No DR

		+7 -0







   April 15, 2021 Regular Hearing Results:

		Action No.

		Case No.

		 

 

		Planner

		Action

		Vote



		

		2019-019822DRP

		4079 Cesar Chavez Street

		Winslow

		Continued to April 29, 2021

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



		M-20888

		2020-011809CUA

		300 West Portal Avenue

		Pantoja

		Approved with Conditions

		+7 -0



		M-20889

		2020-009545CUA

		2084 Chestnut Street

		Gunther

		Approved with Conditions

		+7 -0



		

		

		Draft Minutes for March 25, 2021

		Ionin

		Adopted

		+7 -0



		

		

		Draft Minutes for April 1, 2021

		Ionin

		Adopted

		+7 -0



		

		2013.1535CUA-02

		450-474 O'Farrell Street and 532 Jones Street

		Grob

		After hearing and closing public comment; Continued to June 10, 2021

		+7 -0



		

		2019-020740CUA

		468 Turk Street

		Asbagh

		After hearing and closing public comment; Continued to May 6, 2021

		+7 -0



		M-20890

		2020-007798CUA

		48 Stockton Street

		Hoagland

		Approved with Conditions

		+7 -0



		M-20891

		2020-007798OFA

		48 Stockton Street

		Hoagland

		Approved with Conditions

		+7 -0



		M-20892

		2019-023090CUA

		1428-1434 Irving Street

		Young

		Approved with Conditions as amended to include no use of rear yard open space for/by patients.

		+7 -0



		DRA-745

		2020-001578DRP-02

		17 Reed Street

		Winslow

		No DR, Approved as Modified

		+7 -0



		M-20893

		2020-008507CUA

		2119 Castro Street

		Balba

		After being pulled off of Consent; Approved with Conditions

		+7 -0







   April 1, 2021 Regular Hearing Results:

		Action No.

		Case No.

		 

 

		Planner

		Action

		Vote



		

		2020-003223CUA

		249 Texas Street

		Westhoff

		Continued to April 15, 2021

		+7 -0



		

		2013.1535CUA-02

		450-474 O'Farrell Street and 532 Jones Street

		Grob

		Continued to April 15, 2021

		+7 -0



		

		2013.0614ENX-02

		600 South Van Ness

		Christensen

		Continued to April 22, 2021

		+7 -0



		

		2016-000302DRP

		460 Vallejo Street

		Winslow

		Continued Indefinitely

		+7 -0



		M-20881

		2020-006303CUA

		2201 Powell Street

		Weissglass

		Approved with Conditions

		+6 -0 (Diamond recused)



		M-20882

		2020-011265CUA

		1550 Wallace Avenue

		Christensen

		Approved with Conditions

		+7 -0



		M-20883

		2018-013692CUA

		2285 Jerrold Avenue

		Feeney

		Approved with Conditions

		+7 -0



		

		

		Draft Minutes for March 18, 2021

		Ionin

		Adopted

		+7 -0



		M-20884

		2021-000342CUA

		403 28th Street

		Hoagland

		Approved with Conditions

		+5 -2 (Imperial, Moore against)



		M-20885

		2020-007565CUA

		1336 Chestnut Street

		May

		Approved with Conditions as amended such that the roof deck railing be pulled in three-feet and the privacy planters placed outbound of the railing.

		+7 -0



		M-20886

		2017-011827CUA

		26 Hamilton Street

		Durandet

		Approved with Conditions

		+7 -0



		M-20887

		2019-017356CUA

		1861 Union Street

		Feeney

		Approved with Conditions

		+7 -0



		DRA-744

		2019-015785DRP

		2375 Funston Avenue

		Winslow

		Took DR, Approved with Staff modifications and conditioned no roof deck and transom windows on the north side.

		+7 -0







   March 25, 2021 Regular Hearing Results:

		Action No.

		Case No.

		 

 

		Planner

		Action

		Vote



		

		2020-002333DRP

		2814 Clay Street

		Winslow

		Continued to April 22, 2021

		+7 -0



		

		2020-006303CUA

		2201 Powell Street

		Weissglass

		Continued to April 1, 2021

		+7 -0



		

		2019-020740CUA

		468 Turk Street

		Asbagh

		Continued to April 15, 2021

		+7 -0



		

		2019-006578SHD

		2455 Harrison Street

		Westhoff

		Continued to June 3, 2021

		+7 -0



		

		

		Draft Minutes for March 11, 2021

		Ionin

		Adopted

		+7 -0



		M-20877

		2021-001410CRV

		42 Otis Street

		Jardines

		Approved

		+7 -0



		M-20878

		2018-001088CUA

		4211 26th Street

		Pantoja

		Approved with Conditions

		+7 -0



		M-20879

		2020-007383CUA

		666 Hamilton Street

		Weissglass

		Approved with Conditions

		+7 -0



		M-20880

		2020-006747CUA

		3109 Fillmore Street

		Christensen

		Approved with Conditions

		+6 -1 (Fung against)



		DRA-742

		2020-010532DRP

		1801 Mission Street

		Sucre

		Took DR and Approved; adding conditions directing the Sponsor to conduct community outreach related to:

1. Multi-lingual menus;

2. Local hire employment opportunites (acknowledging previous employees will have first-right-of-refusal); and

3. Cultural art and other interior amenities.

		+6 -0 (Koppel absent)



		DRA-743

		2020-001414DRP

		308 Duncan Street

		Winslow

		Took DR and denied the BPA.

		+5 -1 (Tanner against; Koppel absent)







   March 18, 2021 Regular Hearing Results:

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

		4712 3rd Street

		Feeney

		Continued to April 22, 2021

		+7 -0



		

		2015-009955ENV

		1525 Pine Street

		Li

		Continued to May 6, 2021

		+7 -0



		

		2015-009955CUA

		1525 Pine Street

		Updegrave

		Continued to May 6, 2021

		+7 -0



		M-20876

		2012.0506CUA-02

		950 Gough Street

		Gunther

		Approved with Conditions

		+7 -0



		

		

		Draft Minutes for March 4, 2021

		Ionin

		Adopted

		+7 -0



		

		2021-000342CUA

		403 28th Street

		Hoagland

		After hearing and closing public comment; Continued to April 1, 2021 with direction to add a second unit.

		+7 -0



		DRA-741

		2019-017673DRP

		46 Racine Lane

		Winslow

		Took DR and Approved with the condition that the roof deck be pulled in five feet from all sides.

		+7 -0



		

		2018-001088CUA

		4211 26th Street

		Pantoja

		Continued to March 25, 2021

		+7 -0







   March 11, 2021 Regular Hearing Results:

		Action No.

		Case No.

		 

 

		Planner

		Action

		Vote



		

		2013.1535CUA-02

		450-474 O'Farrell Street and 532 Jones Street

		Boudreaux

		Continued to April 1, 2021

		+7 -0



		

		2019-014461CUA

		1324-1326 Powell Street

		Updegrave

		Continued Indefinitely 

		+7 -0



		M-20870

		2020-005471CUA

		3741 Buchanan Street

		Botn

		Approved with Conditions

		+7 -0



		DRA-738

		2019-000969DRP-02

		4822 19th Street

		Winslow

		Took DR and Approved with modifications

		+7 -0



		

		2019-000969VAR

		4822 19th Street

		Pantoja

		ZA closed the PH and indicated an intent to Grant

		



		

		

		Draft Minutes for February 25, 2021

		Ionin

		Adopted

		+7 -0



		R-20871

		2021-001805CRV

		Amendments to the TDM Program Standards

		Perry

		Adopted 

		+7 -0



		M-20872

		2018-016721CUA

		0 Guttenberg Street

		Pantoja

		Approved with Conditions as amended to include a memo with detailed plans related to landscaping, increased permeability and lighting be submitted to the CPC within two weeks.

		+7 -0



		

		2018-016721VAR

		0 Guttenberg Street

		Pantoja

		ZA closed the PH and indicated an intent to Grant.

		



		M-20873

		2020-008651CUA

		801 38th Avenue

		Gunther

		Approved with Conditions as proposed, with no requirement for a second dwelling unit.

		+4 -3 (Chan, Imperial, Moore against)



		M-20874

		2020-005251CUA

		1271 46th Avenue

		Pantoja

		Approved with Conditions

		+7 -0



		R-20875

		2017-013728CRV

		1021 Valencia Street

		Christensen

		Adopted as amended to include the finding related to open space as read into the record by Staff.

		+7 -0



		DRA-739

		2017-013728DRP-02

		1021 Valencia Street

		Christensen

		Took DR and Approved with modifications and a condition that the roof-deck be increased to 750 sq ft and appropriate window materials as read into the record by Staff.

		+7 -0



		DRA-740

		2020-002743DRP-02

		1555 Oak Street

		Winslow

		No DR, adding a finding to recommend SFMTA extend the red zone for improved visibility.

		+7 -0







   March 4, 2021 Regular Hearing Results:

		Action No.

		Case No.

		 

 

		Planner

		Action

		Vote



		

		2020-003042AHB

		4712 3rd Street

		Feeney

		Continued to March 18, 2021

		+7 -0



		

		2020-006525DRP

		1990 Lombard Street

		Winslow

		Continued to April 22, 2021

		+7 -0



		

		2013.0846DRP

		140-142 Jasper Place

		Winslow

		Continued to April 29, 2021

		+7 -0



		

		2013.0511DNX

		1125 Market Street

		Alexander

		Continued Indefinitely

		+7 -0



		

		2013.0511CUA

		1125 Market Street

		Alexander

		Continued Indefinitely

		+7 -0



		M-20866

		2020-010157CUA

		1100 Van Ness Avenue

		Agnihotri

		Approved with Conditions

		+7 -0



		

		

		Draft Minutes for February 18, 2021 – Closed Session

		Ionin

		Adopted

		+7 -0



		

		

		Draft Minutes for February 18, 2021 – Regular

		Ionin

		Adopted

		+7 -0



		

		2009.3461CWP

		Area Plan Implementation Update and Inter-Department Plan Implementation Committee (IPIC) Report

		Snyder

		Reviewed and Commented

		+7 -0



		R-20867

		2021-000317CRV

		TMASF Connects

		Kran

		Adopted a Resolution Authorizing brokerage services

		+7 -0



		M-20868

		2019-012820AHB

		4742 Mission Street

		Hoagland

		Approved with Conditions as amended to include a design presentation to the CPC related to open space, roof deck, railings and perimeter wall treatment.

		+7 -0



		

		2020-003223CUA

		249 Texas Street

		Westhoff

		After hearing and closing public comment; Continued to April 1, 2021

		+7 -0



		M-20869

		2017-015988CUA

		501 Crescent Street

		Durandet

		Approved with Conditions as amended by Staff

		+7 -0





 

  February 25, 2021 Regular Hearing Results:

		Action No.

		Case No.

		 

 

		Planner

		Action

		Vote



		

		2013.0614ENX-02

		600 South Van Ness

		Christensen

		Continued to April 1, 2021

		+6 -0 (Tanner absent)



		

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

		Kirby

		Continued to March 25, 2021

		+6 -0 (Tanner absent)



		

		2007.0604X

		1145 Mission Street

		Hoagland

		Continued Indefinitely

		+6 -0 (Tanner absent)



		

		2018-006863DRP

		1263-1265 Clay Street

		Winslow

		WITHDRAWN

		



		M-20859

		2020-008305CUA

		2853 Mission Street

		Wu

		Approved with Conditions

		+6 -0 (Tanner absent)



		M-20860

		2018-012222CUA

		1385 Carroll Avenue

		Christensen

		Approved with Conditions

		+6 -0 (Tanner absent)



		R-20861

		2020-006803PCA

		Code Corrections 2020

		Sanchez

		Approved

		+5 -1 (Imperial against; Tanner absent)



		R-20862

		2021-000541PCA

		CEQA Appeals [BF 201284]

		Flores

		Adopted a Recommendation for Approval

		+6 -0 (Tanner absent)



		M-20863

		2016-008515CUA

		1049 Market Street

		Hoagland

		Approved with Conditions

		+7 -0



		M-20864

		2018-016808SHD

		321 Florida Street

		Christensen

		Adopted Findings

		+6 -1 (Moore against)



		M-20865

		2018-016808ENX

		321 Florida Street

		Christensen

		Approved with Conditions as amended to include:

1. Incorporating changes provided by the Sponsor;

2. Pursue additional roof-top open space;

3. Explore two-bdrm units on the ground floor; and

4. Return to the CPC for final design review; 

Adding a Finding, recognizing the desire for outdoor open space, encouraging the Sponsor to pursue providing private usable outdoor open space.

		+7 -0





 

   February 18, 2021 Closed Session Hearing Results:

		Action No.

		Case No.

		 

 

		Planner

		Action

		Vote



		

		

		Conference with Legal Counsel

		Ionin

		Adopted a Motion to assert Attorney-Client privilege

		+7 -0



		

		

		Closed Session discussion

		Ionin

		Announced no action and Adopted a Motion to not disclose.

		+7 -0





 

   February 18, 2021 Regular Hearing Results:

		Action No.

		Case No.

		 

 

		Planner

		Action

		Vote



		

		2013.0846DRP

		140-142 Jasper Place

		Winslow

		Continued to March 4, 2021

		+7 -0



		

		2018-016808SHD

		321 Florida Street

		Christensen

		Continued to February 25, 2021

		+7 -0



		

		2018-016808ENX

		321 Florida Street

		Christensen

		Continued to February 25, 2021

		+7 -0



		

		2019-012567DRP

		36 Delano Avenue

		Winslow

		Withdrawn

		



		

		

		Draft Minutes for January 28, 2021

		Ionin

		Adopted

		+7 -0



		

		

		Draft Minutes for February 4, 2021

		Ionin

		Adopted

		+7 -0



		R-20854

		2020-011581PCA

		Chinatown Mixed-Used Districts [BF 201326]

		Flores

		Approved

		+7 -0



		M-20855

		2019-020938CUA

		1 Montgomery Street

		Vimr

		Approved with Conditions as Amended by Staff; and the Commission to include a provision for a commercial/retail use under the Public Access condition.

		+6 -1 (Moore against)



		

		2021-001452PCA

		Expanded Compliance Control and Consumer Protections Where History of Significant Violations (BF 210015)

		Starr

		Reviewed and Commented

		



		M-20856

		2018-011430CUA

		1776 Green Street

		May

		Approved with Conditinos as amended to include a min. of 15 bicycle parking spaces, of which 10 may be vertical.

		+7 -0



		

		2018-011430VAR

		1776 Green Street

		May

		ZA closed the PH and indicated an intent to Grant.

		



		M-20857

		2020-008388CUA

		235 Clement Street

		Agnihotri

		Approved with Conditions

		+7 -0



		M-20858

		2018-014795ENX

		1560 Folsom Street

		Christensen

		Approved with Conditions; adding a Finding, recognizing the desire for outdoor open space, encouraging the Sponsor to pursue providing private usable outdoor open space.

		+7 -0



		

		2017-013728CRV

		1021 Valencia Street

		Christensen

		Continued to March 11, 2021

		+7 -0



		

		2017-013728DRP-02

		1021 Valencia Street

		Winslow

		Continued to March 11, 2021

		+7 -0



		DRA-737

		2019-021383DRP-02

		1615-1617 Mason Street

		Winslow

		No DR

		+7 -0





 

   February 4, 2021 Regular Hearing Results:

		Action No.

		Case No.

		 

 

		Planner

		Action

		Vote



		

		2020-003223CUA

		249 Texas Street

		Westhoff

		Continued to March 4, 2021

		+7 -0



		

		2019-021010CUA

		717 California Street

		Foster

		Withdrawn

		



		

		2013.1535CUA-02

		450-474 O'Farrell Street and 532 Jones Street

		Boudreaux

		Continued to March 11, 2021

		+7 -0



		

		2018-014795ENX

		1560 Folsom Street

		Christensen

		Continued to February 18, 2021

		+7 -0



		M-20850

		2020-007346CUA

		2284-2286 Union Street

		Wilborn

		Approved with Conditions

		+7 -0



		

		

		Draft Minutes for January 21, 2021

		Ionin

		Adopted

		+7 -0



		R-20851

		2020-010430CRV

		FY 2021-2023 Proposed Department Budget

		Landis

		

Approved

		+7 -0



		

		2017-015181CUA

		412 Broadway

		Perry

		Reviewed and Commented

		



		DRA-735

		2020-001229DRP

		73 Fountain Street

		Winslow

		Took DR and Approved with Modifications

		+7 -0



		M-20852

		2020-001286CUA

		576 27th Avenue

		Dito

		Approved with Conditions as amended by Staff

		+7 -0



		M-20853

		2019-020049CUA

		1131 Polk Street

		Guy

		Approved with Conditions as amended, omitting references to “locally owned businesses.”

		+7 -0



		DRA-736

		2018-011022DRP

		2651-2653 Octavia Street

		Winslow

		No DR

		+5 -2 (Imperial, Moore Against)





 

   January 28, 2021 Regular Hearing Results:

		Action No.

		Case No.

		 

 

		Planner

		Action

		Vote



		

		2020-009054PCA

		Temporary Use of HotelS and Motels for Permanent Supportive Housing [BF 201218]

		Flores

		Continued Indefinitely

		+7 -0



		

		2020-010373DRP

		330 Rutledge Street

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



		

		

		Draft Minutes for January 14, 2021

		Ionin

		Adopted

		+7 -0



		M-20841

		2016-013312DVA

		542-550 Howard Street (“Transbay Parcel F”) Mixed-Use Project

		Foster

		Approved

		+7 -0



		R-20842

		2016-013312PCAMAP

		542-550 Howard Street (“Transbay Parcel F”) Mixed-Use Project

		Foster

		Approved

		+7 -0



		M-20843

		2016-013312DNX-02

		542-550 Howard Street (“Transbay Parcel F”) Mixed-Use Project

		Foster

		Approved with Conditions

		+7 -0



		M-20844

		2016-013312CUA-02

		542-550 Howard Street (“Transbay Parcel F”) Mixed-Use Project

		Foster

		Approved with Conditions

		+7 -0



		M-20845

		2016-013312OFA-02

		542-550 Howard Street (“Transbay Parcel F”) Mixed-Use Project

		Foster

		Approved with Conditions

		+7 -0



		M-20846

		2015-009163CUA

		77 Geary Street

		Guy

		Approved with Conditions

		+6 -1 (Imperial Against)



		M-20847

		2020-006234CUA

		653-656 Fell Street

		Wilborn

		Approved with Conditions

		+7 -0



		M-20848

		2020-007075CUA

		2166 Market Street

		Campbell

		Approved with Conditions

		+7 -0



		M-20849

		2019-015984CUA

		590 2nd Avenue

		Lindsay

		Approved with Conditions

		+7 -0



		DRA-734

		2018-017283DRP

		476 Lombard Street

		Winslow

		No DR 

		+4 -3 (Tanner, Imperial, Moore Against)





 

   January 21, 2021 Regular Hearing Results:

		Action No.

		Case No.

		 

 

		Planner

		Action

		Vote



		

		2020-002743DRP

		1555 Oak Street

		Winslow

		Continued to March 11, 2021

		+7 -0



		

		2020-010342DRP

		3543 Pierce Street

		Winslow

		Withdrawn

		



		

		2019-021369DRP

		468 Jersey Street

		Winslow

		Withdrawn

		



		

		2013.1535CUA-02

		450-474 O'Farrell Street and 532 Jones Street

		Boudreaux

		Continued to February 4, 2021

		+7 -0



		

		2019-022661CUA

		628 Shotwell Street

		Feeney

		Continued to March 18, 2021

		+7 -0



		

		2018-014795ENX

		1560 Folsom Street

		Christensen

		Continued to February 4, 2021

		+7 -0



		DRA-733

		2014.0243DRP-02

		3927-3929 19th Street

		Winslow

		Took DR and Approved as Modified

		+7 -0



		M-20835

		2020-010132CUA

		150 7th Street

		Christensen

		Approved with Conditions

		+7 -0



		

		

		Draft Minutes For January 7, 2021

		Ionin

		Adopted

		+7 -0



		

		

		Election Of Officers

		Ionin

		Koppel – President;

Moore – Vice

		+7 -0



		

		2020-010430CRV

		FY 2021-2023 Proposed Department Budget and Work Program

		Landis

		Reviewed and Commented

		



		R-20836

		2020-006803PCA

		Code Corrections 2020

		Sanchez

		Initiated and Scheduled a hearing on or after February 11, 2021.

		+7 -0



		M-20837

		2016-008743CUA

		446-448 Ralston Avenue

		Hicks

		Approved with Conditions as Amended by Staff

		+7 -0



		

		2016-008743VAR

		446-448 Ralston Avenue

		Hicks

		ZA Closed the PH and took the matter under advisement

		



		M-20838

		2018-015786CUA

		2750 Geary Boulevard

		Dito

		Approved with Conditions as Amended to include a community liaison thru construction and operation of the facility.

		+7 -0



		M-20839

		2019-018013CUA

		2027 20th Avenue

		Pantoja

		Approved with Conditions

		+7 -0



		M-20840

		2020-006575CUA

		560 Valencia Street

		Christensen

		Approved with Conditions as Amended to include a one-year report-back update hearing with specific attention to the CBA agreement.

		+7 -0







  January 14, 2021 Regular Hearing Results:

		Action No.

		Case No.

		 

 

		Planner

		Action

		Vote



		

		2019-012567DRP

		36 Delano Avenue

		Winslow

		Continued to January 28, 2021

		+7 -0



		

		2019-020049CUA

		1131 Polk Street

		Guy

		Continued to February 4, 2021

		+7 -0



		

		2017-013728CRV

		1021 Valencia Street

		Christensen

		Continued to February 18, 2021

		+7 -0



		

		2017-013728DRP

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



		M-20829

		2020-009361CUA

		801 Phelps Street

		Liang

		Approved with Conditions

		+7 -0



		

		2020-008417CWP

		Housing Recovery

		Nelson

		Reviewed and Commented

		



		M-20830

		2017-004557ENV

		550 O’Farrell Street

		Mckellar

		Certified

		+7 -0



		M-20831

		2017-004557ENV

		550 O’Farrell Street

		Updegrave

		Adopted

		+7 -0



		M-20832

		2017-004557CUA

		550 O’Farrell Street

		Updegrave

		Approved with Conditions

		+7 -0



		

		2017-004557VAR

		550 O’Farrell Street

		Updegrave

		ZA Closed the PH and Granted the requested Variances

		



		M-20833

		2018-015815AHB

		1055 Texas Street

		Liang

		Approved with Conditions

		+7 -0



		M-20834

		2019-006959CUA

		656 Andover Street

		Durandet

		Approved with Conditions

		+7 -0



		DRA-732

		2017-011977DRP-02

		3145-3147 Jackson Street

		Winslow

		No DR 

		+6 -1 (Moore Against)







   January 7, 2021 Regular Hearing Results:

		Action No.

		Case No.

		 

 

		Planner

		Action

		Vote



		

		2018-017283DRP

		476 Lombard Street

		Winslow

		Continued to January 14, 2021

		+7 -0



		

		2017-011977DRP-02

		3145-3147 Jackson Street

		Winslow

		Continued to January 14, 2021

		+7 -0



		

		2013.1535CUA-02

		450-474 O'Farrell Street and 532 Jones Street

		Boudreaux

		Continued to January 21, 2021

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



		M-20826

		2020-005945CUA

		2265 McKinnon Avenue

		Feeney

		Approved with Conditions

		+7 -0



		

		

		Draft Minutes for December 10, 2020

		Ionin

		Adopted

		+7 -0



		

		

		Draft Minutes for December 17, 2020

		Ionin

		Adopted

		+7 -0



		

		2020-002347CWP

		UCSF Parnassus MOU

		Switzky

		Reviewed and Commented

		



		M-20827

		2020-007461CUA

		1057 Howard Street

		Christensen

		Approved with Conditions

		+7 -0



		M-20828

		2020-007488CUA

		1095 Columbus Avenue

		Feeney

		Approved with Conditions

		+7 -0
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From: CPC-Commissions Secretary
To: Feliciano, Josephine (CPC)
Subject: FW: Comments for 4234 24th Street CUA #2019-017761 June 10, 2021 hearing
Date: Friday, June 04, 2021 11:23:22 AM
Attachments: Comments for 4234 24th Street.pdf

Commission Affairs
San Francisco Planning
49 South Van Ness Avenue, Suite 1400, San Francisco, CA 94103
Direct: 628.652.7600 | www.sfplanning.org
San Francisco Property Information Map
 
Due to COVID-19, San Francisco Planning is operating remotely, and the City’s Permit Center is open on a limited
basis. Our staff are available by e-mail, and the Planning and Historic Preservation Commissions are convening
remotely. The public is encouraged to participate. Find more information on our services here. 

-----Original Message-----
From: SchuT <schuttishtr@sbcglobal.net>
Sent: Friday, June 04, 2021 10:43 AM
To: Koppel, Joel (CPC) <joel.koppel@sfgov.org>; Kathrin Moore <mooreurban@aol.com>; Diamond, Susan
(CPC) <sue.diamond@sfgov.org>; Fung, Frank (CPC) <frank.fung@sfgov.org>; Imperial, Theresa (CPC)
<theresa.imperial@sfgov.org>; Tanner, Rachael (CPC) <rachael.tanner@sfgov.org>; CPC-Commissions Secretary
<commissions.secretary@sfgov.org>; Hicks, Bridget (CPC) <Bridget.Hicks@sfgov.org>
Subject: Comments for 4234 24th Street CUA #2019-017761 June 10, 2021 hearing

This message is from outside the City email system. Do not open links or attachments from untrusted sources.

Dear Commissioners,
Attached below are my comments for this project prior to the publication of the packet.
I neglected to ask Ms. Hicks to include them in the packet.  I do appreciate and thank her for referencing them in the
Staff Report and the Draft Motion, but I wanted to forward them to you as well.
Beyond the major excavation, I also want to highlight the issue of the tree canopy in the rear yard mid block open
space.
This is apparently a spec project.  The units will be two condos that will most likely sell for $3 million each.
Hopefully the entitlement will not be sold (often as a single family home) as has been the case recently with several
Noe Valley two unit approved projects.
Thank you.
Sincerely,
Georgia Schuttish

mailto:commissions.secretary@sfgov.org
mailto:Josephine.Feliciano@sfgov.org



To:  The Planning Commission

From:  Georgia Schuttish

Cc:  Bridget Hicks

Re:  4234 24th Street CUA #2019-017761



Dear Commissioners:



On the next page is a photo of the project site showing most of the existing Rear 
Yard Mid Block Open Space and a close-up photo the existing side setback.

  

There is a fairly large amount of tree canopy….as you know the largest source of 
tree canopy in San Francisco is in the private open space of all the Rear Yard 
Mid Block Open Space in our RH neighborhoods.  This has been mapped by 
your Staff.  The RH neighborhoods comprise the largest mass of land in our City.



This project proposes a major full lot excavation, and loss of soil in the Rear 
Yard, which like trees also captures carbon.   This excavation doesn’t require 
greater environmental scrutiny, but perhaps it should?  And this project is like so 
many others in the past few years that have huge excavations whether major 
Alterations (think about that project on 18th Street near Dolores Park from a few 
years back that bedeviled everyone) or the true Demolitions, like this project.



With a major excavation a great deal of cement is required for retaining walls 
due to shoring which also adds to the environmental issues.  The completed 
Rear Yards become like outdoor bunkers.  I understand that the Commission 
does not make decisions on excavations, as that is usually left to the Building 
Department.  However these types of excavations and the impact on the Rear 
Yards are inexorably inked to current design trends whether projects are major 
Alterations or projects are true Demolitions.



A question to wonder about is can these typical 25’ x 114’ lots densify and 
reach their maximum Zoning but avoid this excavation issue?  Could this project 
have been designed differently?  Could the project have been:



• Like the pair of flats immediately adjacent to the East on 24th Street….a 
typical, traditional San Francisco pair of stacked two bedroom flats (which are 
condos just as this project proposes to be upon completion). 



• Would it have been better to update the existing building and build a second 
unit on the rear of the lot just like the property to the West, possibly preserving 
more of the existing Rear Yard and with much less excavation?  (See the 
existing side setback which allows egress to the Rear Yard in the photo below 
and matches the City’s template for ADUs)








Could either have worked for the project sponsor in his plan to sell the condos 
upon completion?   Would either alternative been better environmentally and 
perhaps ultimately more Relatively Affordable and better preserve neighborhood 
character?  These seem like questions raised by the project itself.



Also, why is there a requirement for the stair penthouse due to the solar panels?












 
This message is from outside the City email system. Do not open links or attachments from untrusted
sources.

From: Ionin, Jonas (CPC)
Cc: Feliciano, Josephine (CPC)
Subject: FW: District 8 resident in support of housing at 1900 Diamond
Date: Friday, June 04, 2021 10:35:51 AM

 
 
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
 
 

From: Tanichya Wongprasert <tanichya@hotmail.com>
Date: Wednesday, May 26, 2021 at 8:38 AM
To: "Mandelman, Rafael (BOS)" <rafael.mandelman@sfgov.org>
Cc: "Bintliff, Jacob (BOS)" <jacob.bintliff@sfgov.org>, "Pantoja, Gabriela (CPC)"
<gabriela.pantoja@sfgov.org>, "Ionin, Jonas (CPC)" <jonas.ionin@sfgov.org>,
"marc@1900diamond.com" <marc@1900diamond.com>
Subject: District 8 resident in support of housing at 1900 Diamond
 

 

Dear Supervisor Mandelman,
 
I have lived in Diamond Heights on Topaz Street for 18 years (since 2003), and I strongly support the
proposed housing at 1900 Diamond.
 
We are in a housing crisis and the way out is to create more housing, especially infill housing near
transit. District 8 has produced woefully little new housing in decades. Since 1980 – 40 years ago –
there have been only two projects of 10+ homes in Noe Valley or Diamond Heights. There have not
been any projects of 20+ homes in that same 40 years. We are fortunate to live in such a beautiful,
interesting, park-rich, and transit-friendly place. We should be welcoming others to join us. 24
families would be a good start.
 
I understand that some of my neighbors are in opposition on account of density, views, traffic, and
construction impacts. I find the project to be modest in being set back and built into the side of a
steep hillside. I also find the architecture appealing. Finally, in my mind, the needs to create more
housing far outweigh the concerns of those who don’t want any change. 
 
your consideration is greatly appreciated.
 
Sincerely,

mailto:jonas.ionin@sfgov.org
mailto:Josephine.Feliciano@sfgov.org
http://www.sfplanning.org/
https://sfplanninggis.org/pim/


 
Tanichya 
 
Tanichya Wongprasert, Ph.D.
Faculty, Communication Studies Department
City College of San Francisco
 



From: Ionin, Jonas (CPC)
Cc: Feliciano, Josephine (CPC)
Subject: FW: 1200 Van Ness Avenue (2015-0012577ENV)
Date: Friday, June 04, 2021 10:35:19 AM

 
 
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
 
 

From: Jeanie Poling <jeanie.poling@sfgov.org>
Date: Wednesday, May 26, 2021 at 9:06 AM
Subject: 1200 Van Ness Avenue (2015-0012577ENV)
 
To interested parties:
 
The following documents concerning the proposed development at 1200 Van Ness Avenue are
available:
Notice of Availability and Intent to Adopt a Mitigated Negative Declaration
Preliminary Mitigated Negative Declaration
 
These documents are also available on the Planning Department’s Environmental Review webpage:
Environmental Review Documents | SF Planning
 
 
Jeanie Poling, Senior Environmental Planner
Environmental Planning
San Francisco Planning
49 South Van Ness Avenue, Suite 1400,San Francisco, CA 94103
Direct:628.652.7559 | www.sfplanning.org
San Francisco Property Information Map
 
Due to COVID-19, San Francisco Planning is operating remotely, and the City’s Permit Center is
open on a limited basis. Our staff are available by e-mail, and the Planning and Historic
Preservation Commissions are convening remotely. The public is encouraged to participate. Find
more information on our services here.
 

mailto:jonas.ionin@sfgov.org
mailto:Josephine.Feliciano@sfgov.org
http://www.sfplanning.org/
https://sfplanninggis.org/pim/
https://citypln-m-extnl.sfgov.org/SharedLinks.aspx?accesskey=b123af7c1cc85db8b57a7a7beb181033ecfd7eb0a320aeaf00fc902ea5ae7f90&VaultGUID=A4A7DACD-B0DC-4322-BD29-F6F07103C6E0
https://citypln-m-extnl.sfgov.org/SharedLinks.aspx?accesskey=2baf90bb596379bc67a6f51f1bc24d4fe9ba7ba8584cca395638461f256859b9&VaultGUID=A4A7DACD-B0DC-4322-BD29-F6F07103C6E0
https://sfplanning.org/environmental-review-documents
http://www.sfplanning.org/
https://sfplanninggis.org/pim/
https://sfplanning.org/staff-directory
https://sfplanning.org/remotehearings
https://sfplanning.org/covid-19


From: Ionin, Jonas (CPC)
Cc: Feliciano, Josephine (CPC)
Subject: FW: *** PRESS RELEASE*** FORMER TRANSBAY TEMPORARY TERMINAL SITE TO HOST ACTIVITIES, EVENTS

STARTING IN JULY
Date: Friday, June 04, 2021 9:46:03 AM
Attachments: 06.04.21 Temporary Transbay Termainal Activation.pdf

 
 
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
Date: Friday, June 4, 2021 at 9:30 AM
To: "Press Office, Mayor (MYR)" <mayorspressoffice@sfgov.org>
Subject: *** PRESS RELEASE*** FORMER TRANSBAY TEMPORARY TERMINAL
SITE TO HOST ACTIVITIES, EVENTS STARTING IN JULY
 
FOR IMMEDIATE RELEASE:
Friday, June 4, 2021
Contact: Mayor’s Office of Communications, mayorspressoffice@sfgov.org
 

*** PRESS RELEASE***
FORMER TRANSBAY TEMPORARY TERMINAL SITE TO

HOST ACTIVITIES, EVENTS STARTING IN JULY
The activation of the site will include food trucks, small soccer fields, a family-friendly beer

garden, outdoor movies and other community-focused uses as part of Mayor Breed’s
Downtown Recovery Plan

 
San Francisco, CA – Starting this July, the former Temporary Transbay Terminal site will
host a range of new activities and events, providing a space for community members to safely
play, eat, drink, and explore. As part of Mayor London N. Breed’s Downtown Recovery Plan,
the temporary activation of the approximately 3.5-acre site in the Transbay neighborhood, on
the block between Howard, Main, Folsom, and Beale Streets, will help enliven
San Francisco’s downtown area and support the City’s economic recovery.
 
The Office of Community Investment and Infrastructure (OCII), which is responsible for
developing the site into housing and with surrounding park and public spaces starting in early
2023, has selected East Cut Landing Partners (ECLP) to activate the former transit terminal
site with a variety of programs and activities until construction begins.
 
“Our downtown is coming alive again, and as we get more people vaccinated and continue to
reopen and recover, this site will be a place for the community to come together safely and
have fun,” said Mayor Breed. “Using this site in the Transbay neighborhood to provide a safe
place for people to hang out, eat a meal, or get some exercise is a great use of this land and
will serve people from the neighborhood and throughout San Francisco.”

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


garden, outdoor movies and other community-focused uses as part of Mayor Breed’s Downtown 


Recovery Plan 


 


San Francisco, CA – Starting this July, the former Temporary Transbay Terminal site will host 


a range of new activities and events, providing a space for community members to safely play, 


eat, drink, and explore. As part of Mayor London N. Breed’s Downtown Recovery Plan, the 


temporary activation of the approximately 3.5-acre site in the Transbay neighborhood, on the 


block between Howard, Main, Folsom, and Beale Streets, will help enliven San Francisco’s 


downtown area and support the City’s economic recovery. 


 


The Office of Community Investment and Infrastructure (OCII), which is responsible for 


developing the site into housing and with surrounding park and public spaces starting in early 


2023, has selected East Cut Landing Partners (ECLP) to activate the former transit terminal site 


with a variety of programs and activities until construction begins.  


 


“Our downtown is coming alive again, and as we get more people vaccinated and continue to 


reopen and recover, this site will be a place for the community to come together safely and have 


fun,” said Mayor Breed. “Using this site in the Transbay neighborhood to provide a safe place 


for people to hang out, eat a meal, or get some exercise is a great use of this land and will serve 


people from the neighborhood and throughout San Francisco.” 


 


East Cut Landing Partners will begin activating this site in July 2021 with a variety of temporary 


activities for San Francisco residents and families. Programming will initially include Street 


Soccer USA fields, local food trucks, food and retail stalls operated by local businesses, a 


family-friendly beer garden, fitness space, an outdoor cinema, and children’s play area. As the 


site becomes further activated, ECLP proposes additional uses including pickleball courts, public 


art, a dog run, and flexible space for community events and classes, private events, and other 


community-serving uses. 


 


In response to community desire to see the site utilized prior to its ultimate development, OCII in 


consultation with the Transbay Joint Powers Authority (TJPA), the former owner of the site, 


issued a Request for Proposals in December 2020 seeking an operator to create and implement a 


plan for temporary activation of the Site. OCII selected ECLP to provide an array of community-


serving uses, and the activation will be revenue-neutral for OCII. 


 



mailto:mayorspressoffice@sfgov.org
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“As more housing is built and more families move into the neighborhood, it’s vital that we 


continue to create new community spaces to truly make this a residential neighborhood,” said 


Supervisor Matt Haney. “The activation will not only add to the vibrancy of the East Cut and 


Rincon Hill, it will bring necessary spaces and services that residents have long called for. This 


is the exact type of resident-centered initiative that our City needs as we re-open.” 


 


“OCII is pleased to partner with ECLP to provide an exciting space for community-serving 


activities while we work on bringing forward the future housing and park developments that will 


add to this already dynamic neighborhood,” said Interim Executive Director Sally Oerth. 


 


“The TJPA is excited by the impending activation of the former Temporary Transbay Terminal 


that will provide San Franciscans a variety of fun, community offerings while revitalizing this 


burgeoning neighborhood and helping the City’s economic recovery,” said Nila Gonzales, 


Interim Executive Director of the TJPA.  


 


ECLP added, “we look forward to partnering with residents, business owners, and the City to 


develop a fun and safe outdoor venue to be enjoyed by all.” 


 


ECLP is a partnership between the East Cut Community Benefit District, Street Soccer USA, 


Real Active, and Nestory Park, and will work to include diverse participants in the activation, 


with a focus on neighborhood businesses and members of the surrounding community. ECLP 


proposes to operate the Site through the commencement of construction of permanent affordable 


and market-rate housing and park uses on the site, currently planned for early 2023. 


 


This activation will allow local business partners to operate safely outdoors and to provide a 


space that promotes community health and wellness, and a space for friends and neighbors to 


come together safely in the Transbay neighborhood seven days a week. The site will operate 


starting at 6:00 am for fitness uses and 7:00 am for general uses until 10:00 pm on weekdays and 


11:00 pm on weekends, with weekend cinema screenings (operating with headphones for 


patrons) extending to 12:00 am.  


 


While broad participation is encouraged, members of the public, including people who have 


received a vaccine, should continue to follow health guidelines. ECLP has taken care to plan 


programming that follows San Francisco health directives on scale, distancing, and operations 


and asks that participants protect the health and safety of others by wearing masks as appropriate, 


practicing handwashing and good hygiene, and following social distancing and other safety 


protocols. 


 


This week, Mayor Breed announced her proposed budget for the next two years, which includes 


significant investments to drive and accelerate the city’s economic recovery. Included in these 


investments is funding for the Downtown Recovery Plan to help welcome back office workers, 


tourists, and conventions. The Mayor’s proposed two-year budget makes targeted investments 


centered around activating downtown spaces, and making the City a safer, more welcoming 


place for visitors and residents.  
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Over the next two years, the Mayor’s proposed budget will invest $25.6 million in various 


programs aimed at safety, beautification, and activation of key downtown areas. The Downtown 


Recovery Plan includes an expansion of the number of community ambassadors in the 


downtown corridor, Tenderloin, Mid-Market, and UN Plaza areas; a series of events and 


activations throughout Downtown, at temporary Transbay Terminal site, and along the 


waterfront; and improvements at Hallidie Plaza, the entrance to the Powell Street BART Station 


and site of the Cable Car turnaround. The Mayor’s proposed budget also includes $4.6 million 


over the two years to provide convention rent incentives at the Moscone Convention Center. This 


investment will help to attract convention business back to San Francisco by reducing the cost 


for events, making the City a more attractive place for returning convention business. 


 


 


### 


 


 







 
East Cut Landing Partners will begin activating this site in July 2021 with a variety of
temporary activities for San Francisco residents and families. Programming will initially
include Street Soccer USA fields, local food trucks, food and retail stalls operated by local
businesses, a family-friendly beer garden, fitness space, an outdoor cinema, and children’s
play area. As the site becomes further activated, ECLP proposes additional uses including
pickleball courts, public art, a dog run, and flexible space for community events and classes,
private events, and other community-serving uses.
 
In response to community desire to see the site utilized prior to its ultimate development, OCII
in consultation with the Transbay Joint Powers Authority (TJPA), the former owner of the site,
issued a Request for Proposals in December 2020 seeking an operator to create and implement
a plan for temporary activation of the Site. OCII selected ECLP to provide an array of
community-serving uses, and the activation will be revenue-neutral for OCII.
 
“As more housing is built and more families move into the neighborhood, it’s vital that we
continue to create new community spaces to truly make this a residential neighborhood,” said
Supervisor Matt Haney. “The activation will not only add to the vibrancy of the East Cut and
Rincon Hill, it will bring necessary spaces and services that residents have long called for.
This is the exact type of resident-centered initiative that our City needs as we re-open.”
 
“OCII is pleased to partner with ECLP to provide an exciting space for community-serving
activities while we work on bringing forward the future housing and park developments that
will add to this already dynamic neighborhood,” said Interim Executive Director Sally Oerth.
 
“The TJPA is excited by the impending activation of the former Temporary Transbay
Terminal that will provide San Franciscans a variety of fun, community offerings while
revitalizing this burgeoning neighborhood and helping the City’s economic recovery,” said
Nila Gonzales, Interim Executive Director of the TJPA.
 
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
proposes to operate the Site through the commencement of construction of permanent
affordable and market-rate housing and park uses on the site, currently planned for early 2023.
 
This activation will allow local business partners to operate safely outdoors and to provide a
space that promotes community health and wellness, and a space for friends and neighbors to
come together safely in the Transbay neighborhood seven days a week. The site will operate
starting at 6:00 am for fitness uses and 7:00 am for general uses until 10:00 pm on weekdays
and 11:00 pm on weekends, with weekend cinema screenings (operating with headphones for
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
and asks that participants protect the health and safety of others by wearing masks as



appropriate, practicing handwashing and good hygiene, and following social distancing and
other safety protocols.
 
This week, Mayor Breed announced her proposed budget for the next two years, which
includes significant investments to drive and accelerate the city’s economic recovery. Included
in these investments is funding for the Downtown Recovery Plan to help welcome back office
workers, tourists, and conventions. The Mayor’s proposed two-year budget makes targeted
investments centered around activating downtown spaces, and making the City a safer, more
welcoming place for visitors and residents.
 
Over the next two years, the Mayor’s proposed budget will invest $25.6 million in various
programs aimed at safety, beautification, and activation of key downtown areas. The
Downtown Recovery Plan includes an expansion of the number of community ambassadors in
the downtown corridor, Tenderloin, Mid-Market, and UN Plaza areas; a series of events and
activations throughout Downtown, at temporary Transbay Terminal site, and along the
waterfront; and improvements at Hallidie Plaza, the entrance to the Powell Street BART
Station and site of the Cable Car turnaround. The Mayor’s proposed budget also includes $4.6
million over the two years to provide convention rent incentives at the Moscone Convention
Center. This investment will help to attract convention business back to San Francisco by
reducing the cost for events, making the City a more attractive place for returning convention
business.
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
Subject: FW: General Public Comment June 3, 2021
Date: Thursday, June 03, 2021 4:21:36 PM
Attachments: Presentation 3.pdf

From Exect. Summary 2007.pdf

 
 
 
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
Sent: Thursday, June 03, 2021 3:47 PM
To: CPC-Commissions Secretary <commissions.secretary@sfgov.org>
Subject: Fwd: General Public Comment June 3, 2021
 

 

Hello.  Sorry. I originally sent to the wrong official address address.  Re-sending to the correct one.
Thanks much and take care.

Begin forwarded message:

From: SchuT <schuttishtr@sbcglobal.net>
Date: June 1, 2021 at 8:17:00 AM PDT
To: joel.koppel@sfgov.org, Kathrin Moore <mooreurban@aol.com>, Deland Chan
<deland.chan@sfgov.org>, Susan Diamond <sue.diamond@sfgov.org>, Frank Fung
<frank.fung@sfgov.org>, Theresa Imperial <theresa.imperial@sfgov.org>, Rachael
Tanner <rachael.tanner@sfgov.org>, Commissions.Secy@sfgov.org,
jonas.ionin@sfgov.org
Cc: rich.hillis@sfgov.org, Elizabeth.watty@sfgov.org, audrey.merlone@sfgov.org,
tina.tam@sfgov.org, Corey.teague@sfgov.org, scott.sanchez@sfgov.org,
david.winslow@sfgov.org, aaron.starr@sfgov.org, Stephanie.Cisneros@sfgov.org,
jeffrey.horn@sfgov.org, cathleen.campbell@sfgov.org, gabriela.pantoja@sfgov.org,
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ryan.balba@sfgov.org, jeffrey.speirs@sfgov.org
Subject: General Public Comment June 3, 2021

﻿
﻿
﻿Dear President Koppel, Vice-President Moore, and Commissioners Chan, Diamond,
Imperial and Tanner:
Good morning.
Attached are photos of an Alteration project that should have been reviewed as a
Demolition by the Staff and by the public…..and by the Commission.
This is a project that illustrates the need to adjust the Demolition Calculations.
Just like so many others.
The price increase from “the flip” was over $3 million dollars, which is basically the
average price increase in the flip for these extreme or major Alterations during the last
six or seven years plus.
This price increase for this project (which is shown in the first attachment) illuminates
the fact that existing housing is more affordable….or more financially accessible.
The front facade of this project was revised.   
The approved elevation in the 2016 plans shown in the 311 Notification was
superseded by a 2017 OTC permit.  
There are no published Demo Calcs.
Also attached below is a page from the 2007 Staff Memo explaining the need for and
the rationale for Section 317.  
Please see the paragraph number 7, “Major Alterations Tantamount to Demolition…..”
This explanation still applies to projects 14 years later.  
And the authors of Planning Code Section 317 had an idea on how to deal with the
issue.
The authors recognized that the Tantamount to Demolition Calculations were a tool to
implement that idea.
And the authors recognized that the tool might need sharpening in order to better
implement their idea to preserve existing housing. 
Which was why they wrote Section 317 (b) (2) (D) empowering the Planning
Commission to adjust the Demo Calcs.
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
Subject: FW: 3rd draft of amendments to CPC Rules and Regulations proposed
Date: Thursday, June 03, 2021 4:21:00 PM
Attachments: 2021-004810CRV - CPC Rules and Regulations Executive Summary and Draft Ammendments.pdf

 
 
 
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
 
 

From: Sue Hestor <hestor@earthlink.net> 
Sent: Thursday, June 03, 2021 3:11 PM
To: Lynch, Laura (CPC) <laura.lynch@sfgov.org>; CPC-Commissions Secretary
<commissions.secretary@sfgov.org>; Koppel, Joel (CPC) <joel.koppel@sfgov.org>; Kathrin Moore
<Mooreurban@aol.com>; Hillis, Rich (CPC) <rich.hillis@sfgov.org>
Cc: Fung, Frank (CPC) <frank.fung@sfgov.org>; Diamond, Susan (CPC) <sue.diamond@sfgov.org>;
Chan, Deland (CPC) <deland.chan@sfgov.org>; Theresa Imperial <theresa@bishopsf.org>; Tanner,
Rachael (CPC) <rachael.tanner@sfgov.org>; STACY, KATE (CAT) <Kate.Stacy@sfcityatty.org>
Subject: 3rd draft of amendments to CPC Rules and Regulations proposed
 

 

2 prior drafts of Department staff proposed amendments to Plan Comm Rules &
Regulations have been provided to Commission and the public.  Amendment of Rules
is scheduled for Plan Comm hearing at 1pm on 6/10/21.  Next Thursday.

This 3rd draft of amendments was provided to public and Commission when it is
literally IMPOSSIBLE for members of the public to submit written comments in
manner that Planning Commissioners will have opportunity to read and consider the
comments.  Before voting on proposed changes.

WHEN will Commissioners review AND
CONSIDER written comments on Rules revisions
from members of public that come in after
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Executive Summary 
Cpc Rules and Regulations  


HEARING DATE: June 10, 2020 


Continued From: May 27, 2020 


 


Record No.: 2021-004810CRV 
Staff Contact: Laura Lynch– (628) 652-7554 
 laura.lynch@sfgov.org  


Recommendation: Adopt Amendments  


 
 


Project Description 
Charter Section 4.104, states that “each commission shall adopt rules and regulations consistent with this Charter 
and ordinances of the City and County. No rule or regulation shall be adopted, amended or repealed, without a 
public hearing. At least ten days' public notice shall be given for such public hearing. All such rules and regulations 
shall be filed with the Clerk of the Board of Supervisors.”  The Planning Commission currently has adopted Rules 
and Regulations that have been amended several times. The most recent amendment occurred on July 2nd, 2015.  
 
In accordance with Charter Section 4.104(a)1, each time a rule or regulation is amended, a public hearing must 
occur. The proposed amendments to the CPC Rules are Regulations (Attachment A) are shown in tracked changes. 
Any addition or deletion is annotated in red font and appears as a strike through for deletions or underlined 
demonstrating new text was added. Some text shown as new or deleted may have been moved to another section 
(i.e. Submittals). 
 


Required Commission Action 
In order for the Project to proceed, the Commission must approve the proposed amendments to the CPC Rules 
and Regulations. If approved, the amended Rules and Regulations will be filed with the Clerk of the Board of 
Supervisors.   



mailto:laura.lynch@sfgov.org
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Overview of Edits 
Below is an overview of the proposed edits to the CPC Rules and Regulations. Please note that this list does not 
capture all changes, please reference Attachment A to review all changes.  
 
• Article 1, Section 2 - Commission: Action Item 7.1.1 of the Planning Department’s Racial and Social Equity Plan 


Phase 1 called for the review and revision of Rules and Regulations to include inclusive language and to align 
the Rules and Regulations with the department’s Racial and Social Equity Action Plan. Article 1, Section 2 has 
been added to reflect the Commission’s position and to satisfy this action item. Please note, that although 
similar language already exists in the Charter for all commissions, we felt it was important to include. 


• Minor Text Amendments: Throughout the document non-substantive text amendments have been made. 
Such text edits include grammatical edits, formatting, edits to clarify existing processes and titles, etc. Some 
text has been consolidated to be shown in one area versus repeated in each sub-section.  


• Article IV, Section 9 and 10- Order of Business: Edits to this section are proposed to align with the Commission’s 
current practice for order of business. Additionally, new text has been added to clarify the current Commission 
practice of limiting or possibly moving general public comment to the end of the calendar.  


• Article V- Amendments: The proposed edit would clarify and not change the existing process. The proposed 
edit adds a reference to Charter Section 4.104(a)1. 


• Appendix A – Submittals: The proposed amendments are intended to provide distinction between 
Commission “packets” and Staff “case reports,” and their respective submittal deadlines. Edits were made to 
provide flexibility for early submittal of certain cases by removing the two-week requirement currently in place 
and providing discretion to provide case reports earlier. Furthermore, Commission packet submittal deadlines 
have been consolidated here, rather than have it repeated in each sub-section. 


• Appendix A -- Discretionary Review:  


o Requirements for briefs and submittals.  


o Updated limits for sponsor and DR requestor(s) presentations to reflect current practices. 


o Rebuttal removal, in recognition of Commissioner clarifying questions to sponsors and/or DR 
requestors. 


• Appendix A—Cases, Mandatory DR, and CEQA Appeals and Negative Declarations  


o Updating project sponsor presentation time to reflect current practices.  


o Including reduced speaking times for sponsors ,organized opposition and members of the public for 
items that have already been heard to reflect current practices. 


 


Basis for Recommendation 
The Department finds that these proposed ammendments to the CPC Rules and Regulations addresses the 
requirement of the Planning Department’s Racial and Social Equity Plan Phase 1, Action Item 7.1..1  Additionally, 
the other ammendments reflect the Commission’s current practices and are intended to provide clarity to the 
public on procedures.  
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Attachments: 
Attachment A – Draft Rules and Regulations in Tracked Changes  
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DRAFT - SAN FRANCISCO PLANNING COMMISSION 
City & County of San Francisco, California 


Rules & Regulations 


 


 


Article I – NAME COMMISSION 


 


Section 1. The Name of this Commission shall be the “SAN FRANCISCO PLANNING COMMISSION.” 
 
Section 2.  The San Francisco Planning Commission (hereinafter “Commission”) acknowledges the 


diverse population of the City and County of San Francisco and reaffirms its commitment to 
racial and social equity. The Commission recommends that the Mayor and the President of 


the Board of Supervisors nominate members of the Commission that represent this diversity. 
The Commission directs the Planning Department (hereinafter “Department”) to ensure the 


diverse voices of San Francisco are given the opportunity to be heard and represented with 
reasonable accommodations at all public meetings of the Commission. 


 


 


COMMISSION 
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Article II – Officers and Appointments 


 
Section 1. Officers. The Officers of this Commission shall consist of a President and a Vice President. 


The President and Vice President shall be members of the Commission, and shall be elected 
at the first Regular Meeting of the Commission held on or after the 15th day of January of 


each year; or at a subsequent Meeting, the date of which shall be fixed by the Commission at 
the first Regular Meeting on or after the 15th day of January each year. They shall hold office 


for one year or until their successors are elected. 


 


Section 2. Election. The presiding officer takes public comment on the agenda item. Then the 


presiding officer requests nominations for the office from the members of the body. No 
second is required under Roberts’ Rules of Order. When no additional nominations are 


offered, the presiding officer closes the nomination. The Commission then votes on the 


nominations in the order they were received. The first candidate to receive a majority of the 
votes is elected to the office. 


 


The President and Vice President shall not both be members of the commission appointed 
by the Mayor or President of the Board of Supervisors. (If one is a Mayoral appointee, the 


other position must be held by a member appointed by the President of the Board of 


Supervisors.). 


 
Section 3. Planning Director. The Planning Director shall hold office at the pleasure of the 


Commission and shall be qualified by training and experience to be the administrative and 
technical head of the San Francisco Planning Department and of all activities under the 


jurisdiction of the Planning Commission. An annual performance evaluation by the full 


Commission may be convened in closed session. 
 
Section 4. Commission Secretary. The Commission at any Regular or Special Meeting may appoint 


a Commission Secretary who shall hold office at the pleasure of the Commission. 
 


Article III– Duties of Officers 


 
Section 1. President. The President shall preside at all meetings of the Commission, shall appoint all 


Committees and their Chairs, and shall perform all other duties necessary or incidental to 


the office. The President shall attend all Meetings of bodies of which, by the Charter, he or 
she is made an ex-officio member, or shall designate the Planning Director or any member 


of the Commission to attend such Meetings in the place and stead of the President. 


 
Section 2. Vice President. In the event of the absence or inability to act of the President, the Vice 


President shall take the place and perform the duties of the President. In the event of 


absence or inability to act of both the President and Vice President, the remaining members 


of the Commission shall elect one of their members to act temporarily as President, by a 
majority vote of the remaining Commissioners. 
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Article IV – Meetings 


 
Section 1. Regular Meetings. Regular Meetings of the Commission shall be open and public and shall 


be held each Thursday of each month except in any month where there are five (5) 
Thursdays. Where there are five (5) Thursdays in a month, the fifth Thursday of the month 


shall be cancelled, unless otherwise adopted as part of the Hearing Schedule. All Regular 
Meetings of the San Francisco Planning Commission shall not start before 12:00 noon, unless 


otherwise noticed on the printed calendar at least 72 hours in advance of a scheduled 
hearing. The San Francisco Planning Commission does hereby designate Room 400 of City 
Hall, 1 Dr. Carlton B. Goodlett Place, San Francisco, California, as its regular meeting location 


unless otherwise noticed on the calendar at least 72 hours in advance of a scheduled hearing, 
or if the need arises because room capacity for Room 400 is anticipated to be exceeded. 


Provided that where matters of special concern to certain areas or districts of the Ccity are 
to be considered, a Meeting place may be designated in the City and County within such 


areas or districts. The Commission Secretary will present to the Commission on or before the 


first Regular Meeting day of the year (or subsequent date as stipulated by the Commission) a 
list for consideration and indication of adoption by voice vote, the Commission’s Hearing 
Schedule for the calendar year, including possible cancellation dates of Regular Meetings to 


accommodate various holidays and a summer hiatus of no more than 3 weeks throughout 


the year. 


 
Section 2. Special Meetings. Special Meetings of the Commission shall be open and public and shall 


be held at such times as the Commission may determine. Special meetings may be called by 


the President for any time, and must be called by the President upon the written request of 


three members of the Commission, filed with the Administrative Commission Secretary. The 
Place of such Meetings shall be as provided above for Regular Meetings. 


 


Section 3. Notice. Notice1 of the time and place of every Regular Meeting of the Commission shall be 
given to members of the Commission at least 72 hours before the time of such Meeting, and 
shall be given by posting and otherwise, as required by San Francisco Administrative Code 


Section 67.7 and California Government Code Section 54954.2. Notice of the time and place 
of every Special Meeting of the Commission shall be given to members of the Commission at 


least 72 hours before the time of such Meetings, and shall be given by posting and otherwise, 
as required by San Francisco Administrative Code Section 67.6(f) and California Government 
Code Section 54956. The Commission shall not consider nor act upon any matter at any 


Regular Meeting except upon (1) written notice thereof as required by this Section 3, or (2) a 


condition exists that requires emergency action as set forth in San Francisco Administrative 


Code Section 67.7(e) and California Government Code Section 54954.2(b). No matter shall be 
considered at any Special Meeting unless included in the Notice calling such meeting. 


 
Section 4. Cancellation or Change of Regular Meetings. If the Regular Meeting day falls on a legal 


 
1 The San Francisco Administrative Code, Chapter 67 “The San Francisco Sunshine Ordinance of 1999,” Section 67.7 stipulates that policy bodies shall 
post an agenda containing a meaningful description of each item of business to be transacted or discussed at the meeting at least 72 hours before a 


regular meeting and that it shall post a current agenda on its Internet site at least 72 hours before a regular meeting. Therefore, the term “notice” shall 


refer to both written and electronic formats 



https://codelibrary.amlegal.com/codes/san_francisco/latest/sf_admin/0-0-0-19548
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holiday, or if a recommendation is made by the Director that a Regular Meeting be cancelled 
or changed, the Commission or the President may cancel the Regular Meeting or fix another 
time therefor. Notice of cancellation or of a change in a Regular Meeting time must be given 


at least seventy-two hours before the scheduled time of such Meeting, unless the 
cancellation is due to an emergency and seventy-two hour notice is not possible. 


 


Section 5. Quorum. A quorum for the transaction of official business at any Regular or Special Meeting 
shall consist of a majority of all members of the Commission, but a smaller number may 
adjourn from time to time and may compel the attendance of absent members in the manner 


and subject to the penalties, if any, provided by law. 


 
Section 6. Voting. 


 


a. Procedural Matters. Pursuant to Charter Section 4.104, with respect to matters of 
procedure the Commission may act by the affirmative vote of a majority of the members 


present, so long as the members present constitute a quorum. 


 


b. Except as provided in subsection “(a)” above, every Official Act taken by the Commission, 


including, but not limited to, those based on its jurisdiction derived from the Planning Code, 


Chapter 31 of the Administrative Code, the Subdivision Code and Discretionary Review 
Powers of the Commission, may be by “Motion” or “Resolution” adopted by a majority vote 
of all members of the Commission (four (4) votes). All members present shall vote for or 


against each question brought to a vote unless a member is excused from voting by a conflict 
of interest or a motion adopted by a majority of the members present. 


 


A motion that receives less than four votes is a failed motion resulting in disapproval of the 


action requested to be taken by the Commission unless a substitute motion for a 
continuance or other action is adopted. (For example: a request for Conditional Use requires 


four votes to approve; failure to receive the four votes results in denial of the conditional use. 


A request for Discretionary Review requires four votes to take discretionary review and 


modify the project; failure to receive four votes results in approval of the proposed project 
without modification. Planning Code Section 302(c)  sets forth the requirements for 
Commission determinations regarding Planning Code amendments. Planning Code Section 


340(d) sets forth the requirements for Commission determinations regarding General Plan 
amendments.) 


 


A motion of intent occurs when the Commission passes a motion by a majority of all 
members of the Commission that is contrary to the preliminary recommendation of the 


Planning Department staff and the Commission does not have findings that support the 
intended action. Any Commissioner absent from participation in the motion of intent must 
be provided all relevant case material and hearing tapes for review prior to a scheduled 
hearing for consideration of the final motion. 


 


c. Once the Commission holds the public hearing on a permit application, receives all 
public testimony and declares that it is ready to consider approval or disapproval of the 


application, the applicant shall not be permitted to withdraw the application, except with 



https://codelibrary.amlegal.com/codes/san_francisco/latest/sf_charter/0-0-0-198

https://codelibrary.amlegal.com/codes/san_francisco/latest/sf_planning/0-0-0-21884

https://codelibrary.amlegal.com/codes/san_francisco/latest/sf_planning/0-0-0-23026

https://codelibrary.amlegal.com/codes/san_francisco/latest/sf_planning/0-0-0-23026
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the consent of the Commission. In the event that the Commission passes any motion of 
intent to approve or disapprove a permit application before them, the applicant shall not be 
permitted to withdraw the application prior to the Commission’s completion of their action 


with passage of a written “Motion” with findings or a resolution. 


 
d. Once the Commission holds a public hearing on a matter before them, enters into 
deliberation and a motion for action is made and receives a second prior to the end of 
discussion, a request for “call the question” by any member other than the President or Chair 


would be addressed as follows: The request for “call the question” is considered a motion to 
halt discussion and must have a second to proceed. If the motion does not receive a second, 


the motion dies fails and discussion resumes on the matter on the floor prior to the motion 
to “call the question.” If the motion receives a second then a vote must be taken immediately 


and passed by a majority of those present. 


 


Section 7. Jurisdiction. Pursuant to Charter Section 4.105, the Commission has the jurisdiction to 
approve prior to issuance “[all] permits and licenses dependent on, or affected by, the 
Planning Code administered by the Planning Department.” Acting under this section, the 


Commission may, at in its discretion, by a majority vote of the Commission (four votes), 


request Sstaff to bring before it for review any such permit or license that has not yet been 


issued even if the application has been approved by the Commission or Department staff and 
forwarded to the Central Permit Bureau. The Commission loses jurisdiction upon either the 


City’s issuance of the permit or license, or a valid appeal has been filed to an appellate body. 


 


Section 8. Parliamentary Procedure. The rules of parliamentary practice, as set forth in Robert’s Rules 


of Order, shall govern all meetings of the Commission except as otherwise provided herein. 


 


Section 9. Order of Business. The order of business at any Regular Meeting may be as follows: 


1. Roll Call 
1.2. Items Proposed for Continuance 


2.3. Consent Calendar 


3.4. Commission Matters 
4. Action Item List 


5. Department Matters 
6. General Public Comment – 15 Minutes 


7. Regular Calendar 


8. Discretionary Review Calendar 


9. Public Comment 


10.9. Adjournment 


 
The President (or Chair) may change the order of business as determined necessary for the 


Planning Commission to conduct its business effectively. 


 
Section 10. General Public Comment. The item at each Regular Meeting shall provide an opportunity 


for members of the public to address the Commission on items of interest to the public that 
are within the subject matter jurisdiction of the Commission, but which are not on the posted 
agenda for that Meeting. When that item is reached, members of the public may address the 



https://codelibrary.amlegal.com/codes/san_francisco/latest/sf_charter/0-0-0-206
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Commission for up to three (3) minutes. The President (or Chair) may limit the total 
testimony by all members of the public to fifteen (15) minutes and/or move General Public 
Comment to the end of the Agenda. 


 


Section 11. Consent Calendar: Items may be placed on a Consent Calendar section of the Meeting 
Agenda. Items on the Consent Calendar may be approved by a single vote for all items. Any 
Commissioner, any member of the public, or the Director may request that the item be taken 
off the Consent Calendar and placed on the Rregular agenda Calendar for that Commission 


Hearing or a later hearing. 


 
Section 12. Submittals: Procedure for submission of material related to any matter that comes before 


the Commission for their consideration is addressed in Appendix A attached to this 


document. 


 
Section 13. Hearing Procedures: At either a Regular or Special Meeting, a public hearing may be held 


before the Commission on any matter that is on the posted agenda of such Meeting. The 


procedure for such public hearings is addressed in Appendix A attached to this document. 


 
Section 14. Record. A record shall be kept of each Regular and Special Meeting by the Commission 


Secretary or by an Acting Secretary designated by the Commission Secretary. 


 
Section 15. Private Transcription. The President may authorize any person to transcribe the 


proceedings of a Regular or Special Meeting provided that the President may require that a 
copy of such transcript be provided for the Commission’s permanent records. 


 


Article V – Amendments 


 


Section 1. These Rules and Regulations may be amended by the Commission at any Regular Meeting by 
a majority vote following a public hearing. , providing that the amendment has been 


calendared for hearing for at least ten days.Pursuant to Charter Section 4.104(a)1, no rule or 


regulation shall be adopted, amended or repealed, without a public hearing. At least ten 
days' public notice shall be given for such public hearing. 


 


Amended: August 1, 1957 
January 12, 1961 


October 11, 1961 
March 26, 1964 
April 23, 1964 
October 29, 1964 
June 17, 1965 


October 24, 1968 
January 18, 1973 
March 1974 
August 8, 1974 


December 11, 1975 







DRAFT - SAN FRANCISCO PLANNING COMMISSION  RULES & REGULATIONS 


7 


June 24, 1976 
October 28, 1982 
April 19, 1984 


March 19, 1987 
July 28, 1988 


January 20, 1994 
February 2, 1995 
February 16, 1995 


September 28, 1995 
January 25, 1996 


January 21, 1999 
October 19, 2000 


November 18, 2004 
February 10, 2005 


August 4, 2005 
April 17, 2008 


August 4, 2011 
December 19, 2013 


July 2, 2015  


June XX, 2021 


Attachment:  Appendix A







 


 


 
APPENDIX A  


Of San Francisco Planning Commission 
Rules & Regulations 


 
 


Submittals and Hearing Procedures: 


 
A. Submittals 


Correspondence submitted to the Planning Commission in advance of a hearing must be received by 


the Commission Secretary no later than the close of business the day before a hearing for it to become 


a part of the public record for any public hearing. 


 


Correspondence submitted to the Planning Commission on the same day, must be submitted at the 


hearing directly to the Planning Commission Secretary. Correspondence submitted in any other 
fashion on the same day may not become a part of the public record until the following hearing. 


 
Correspondence sent directly to all members of the Commission, must include a copy to the 


Commission Secretary (commissions.secretary@sfgov.org) for it to become a part of the public 
record. 
 


 
 


For sponsor and/or opposition briefs to be included in the packet forwarded to the Planning 


Commission in advance of a hearing, 15 hardcopies and a .pdf copy must be provided to the staff 
planner no later than the close of businessnoonOffice of Commission Affairs no later than the close of 


business eight days in advance of the hearing. Generally, 5 pm Wednesdsays.  
 
Generally, 5 p.m. Wednesdays. Project Sponsor, DR requestors and the public must consult with Staff 


on their submittal deadlines to be included inas part of staff case reports.  


 


Submittals, including staff reports, are due to the Commission one week in advance of hearing. At the 
discretion of the Planning Director and/or Planning Commission Officers, staff reports for specific cases 


may be due earlier. For projects subject to the California Environmental Quality Act, environmental and 
historic resource documents should be attached to all submittals. 


  



mailto:commissions.secretary@sfgov.org
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These submittal rules and deadlines shall be strictly enforced and no exceptions shall be made without 
a vote of the Commission. 


 


B. Discretionary Review (DR) 


 
I. Submittals: 


a. Briefs shall not exceed six single-sided pages, double-spaced, having margins no 
smaller than one inch, and feature font sizes no smaller than 12 point, along with an 


unlimited number of exhibits. 
a.b. Content of submittals should be as follows 


b. Abbreviated: 


• Staff cover memo attached to DR application and Project Sponsor response; 


• Plans in compliance with the Planning Department’s “Plan Submittal 


Guidelines ;” 


• Color Digital streetscape images of both sides of street; and 


• Digital photographs images of existing conditions on the subject property; and. 
c. Full: 


• Same as stated in Abbreviated above; with 


• 3-D Renderings for all new construction projects . 


•  


• Environmental and historic resource documents to be attached to all submittals. 


 


II. Hearing Procedures: 


a. A thorough description of the issue by the Director or a member of the Sstaff. 


b. A presentation by the DR Requestor(s) team (includes Requestor(s) or their designee, 


lawyers, architects, engineers, expediters, and/or other advisors) would be for a period not 
to exceed five three (35) minutes for each requestor. 


c. Testimony by members of the public in support of the DR would be for up to three (3) minutes 


each. 
d.c. A presentation by the Project Sponsor(s) team (includes Sponsor(s) or their designee, 


lawyers, architects, engineers, expediters, and/or other advisors) would be for a period up to 
five three (35) minutes, but could be extended for a period not to exceedto 10 five (5) minutes 
if there are multiple DR requestors. 


e.d. Testimony by members of the public in support of the project would be for up to three (3) 
minutes each. 


f. DR requestor(s) or their designees are given two (2) minutes for rebuttal. 
g. Project sponsor(s) or their designees are given two (2) minutes for rebuttal. 
h.e. The President (or Acting Chair) may impose time limits on appearances by members of the 


public and may otherwise exercise his or her discretion on procedures for the conduct of 


public hearings. 


 


III. Other: 
a. Revisions should be submitted to Sstaff and DR requestors by 5pm Tuesday (two days) 



https://sfplanning.org/resource/drp-application

https://sfplanning.org/resource/plan-submittal-guidelines

https://sfplanning.org/resource/plan-submittal-guidelines

http://www.sf-planning.org/modules/showdocument.aspx?documentid=8676
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before the Thursday Hearing. 
b.a. Revisions submitted at hearing are discouraged and will only be considered at the 


Commission’s discretion. 


 


 


C. Mandatory Discretionary Review (Dwelling Unit Removal; Medical Cannabis Dispensary) 


D.C.  
I. Submittals: 


a. Submittals, including staff packets, are due to the Commission one week in advance. 


 


II.I. Hearing Procedures: 


a. A thorough description of the issue by the Director or a member of the Sstaff. 


b. A presentation by the Project Sponsor(s) team (includes Sponsor(s) or their designee, 


lawyers, architects, engineers, expediters, and/or other advisors) would be for a period not 
to exceed five (5) minutes. For items that have already been heard, the Project Sponsor 
shallmay be limited to  not to exceedthree (3) minutes. 


c. Testimony by members of the public would be for  up to three (3) minutes each. For items 
that have already been heard, the President may limit such public testimony to a shorter 


time period. 
d. The President (or Acting Chair) may impose time limits on appearances by members of the 


public and may otherwise exercise his or her discretion on procedures for the conduct of 


public hearings. 
 


E.D. Cases (Conditional Use (CU); Office Allocation (321); Downtown Project (309); etc.): 


 


I. Submittals: 
a. Staff packet due to Commission one week in advance of hearing; or 


At the discretion of the Planning Director and Planning Commission Officers,two weeks in 
advance of hearing. 


 


II.I. Content of submittals should be as follows: 
a. Plans in compliance with the Planning Department’s “Plan Submittal Guidelines;” 
b. Color Digital streetscape of both sides of street; 
c. Digital photographs images of existing conditions on the subject property; 


d. 3-D digital renderings; and 
e. Environmental and historic resource documents to be attached to all submittals. 


 


III.II. Hearing Procedures: 
a. A thorough description of the issue(s) by the Director or a member of the sStaff. 


b. A presentation of the proposal by the Project Sponsor(s) team (includes sponsor or their 


designee, lawyers, architects, engineers, expediters, and/or other advisors) would be for a 
periodnot to exceed five (5) minutes, not to exceed 10 minutes, unless a written request for 
extension not to exceed a total presentation time of 105 minutes is received at least 72 hours 
in advance of the hearing, through the Commission Secretary, and granted by the President 


(or Chair). For items that have already been heard, the Project Sponsor may be limited to  
three (3) minutes. 



https://sfplanning.org/resource/cua-supplemental

https://codelibrary.amlegal.com/codes/san_francisco/latest/sf_planning/0-0-0-21892

https://sfplanning.org/resource/ofa-supplemental

https://codelibrary.amlegal.com/codes/san_francisco/latest/sf_planning/0-0-0-22676

https://sfplanning.org/resource/dnx309-supplemental

https://codelibrary.amlegal.com/codes/san_francisco/latest/sf_planning/0-0-0-22246
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c. A presentation of opposition to the proposal by organized opposition for a period not to 
exceed 10 minutes (or a period equal to that provided to the project sponsor team) with a 
minimum of three (3) speakers. The intent of the 10 minute block of time provided to 


organized opposition is to reduce the number of overall speakers who are part of the 
organized opposition. The requestor should advise the group that the Commission would 
expect the organized presentation to represent their testimony, if granted. Organized 
opposition will be recognized only upon written application at least 72 hours in advance of 


the hearing, through the Commission Secretary, the President or Chair. Such application 


should identify the organization(s) and speakers. For items that have already been heard, 
opposition may be limited to three (3) minutes. 


d. Public testimony from individuals not to exceed three (3) minutes each. For items that have 
already been heard, the President (or Chair) may limit such public testimony to a shorter 


time period. 
e. Director’s preliminary recommendation must be prepared in writing. 
f.e. Action by the Commission on the matter before it. 


g.f. In public hearings on Draft Environmental Impact Reports, testimony by members of the 


public will be provided for up to three (3) minutes each. For items that have already been 
heard, the President (or Chair) may limit such public testimony to a shorter period.all 


speakers will be limited to a period not to exceed three (3) minutes .  
g. The President (or Acting Chair) may impose time limits on appearances by members of the 


public and may otherwise exercise his or her discretion on procedures for the conduct of 


public hearings. 
h. Amendment(s) to motions should be read into the record before the vote is taken. 


 


IV.III. Other: 


a. Revisions should be submitted to Sstaff by 5pm Tuesday (two days) before the Thursday 
Hearing. 


a. Revisions submitted at hearing are discouraged and will only be considered at the 
Commission’s discretion. 


 
 
F. Policy or Major Project Informational Presentations 
G.  


Submittals: 


Staff packet due to Commission one week in advance of hearing; or 
E.  


a. At the discretion of the Planning Director and Planning Commission Officers,  two weeks in 
advance of hearing. 


 


II.I. Hearing Procedures: 
a. An introduction of the item or issue by the Director or a member of the Sstaff. 
b. A presentation of the item or issue by Sstaff or the issuing agency for a period not to exceed 


20 minutes.  


c. The President (or Acting Chair) may impose time limits on appearances by members of the 


public and may otherwise exercise his or her discretion on procedures for the conduct of 


public hearings. 
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III.II. Other: 


a. Revisions should be submitted to staff by 5pm Tuesday (two days) before the Thursday 
Hearing. 


b.a. Revisions submitted at hearing are discouraged and will only be considered at the 
Commission’s discretion. 


 
H.F. CEQA Appeals of Negative Declarations 
 


I. Submittals: 
  


a. Staff packet due to Commission one week in advance of hearing; or 


b. At the discretion of the Planning Director and Planning Commission Officers, two weeks in 
advance of hearing. 


 


II.I. Hearing Procedures: 
a. A thorough description of the issue by the Director or a member of the Sstaff 


b. A presentation by the Appellant(s) team (includes appellant or their designee, lawyers, 


architects, engineers, expediters, and/or other advisors) would be for a period not to exceed 


ten (10) minutes. For items that have already been heard, Appellants may be limited to three 
(3) minutes. 


c. A presentation by the Project Sponsor(s) team (includes sponsor or their designee, lawyers, 


architects, engineers, expediters, and/or other advisors) would be for a period not to exceed 
ten (10) minutes. For items that have already been heard, the Project Sponsor may be limited 


to three (3) minutes. 


d.  Testimony by members of the public would be for up to three (3) minutes each. For items 
that have already been heard, the President (or Chair) may limit such public testimony to a 


shorter period. 


d. The President (or Acting Chair) may impose time limits on appearances by members of the 
public and may otherwise exercise his or her discretion on procedures for the conduct of 


public hearings.  


e. Amendment(s) to motions should be read back into the record at the same hearing before 
the vote is taken. 


 


NOTE: The Commission strongly discourages members of the public, project sponsors, architects, 
lawyers, etc. to cross the railing that separates the Commission and Sstaff from the public 
seating area to engage in conversation with Sstaff or the members of the Commission while 


a meeting is in session. 


AMENDED: June XX, 2021 July 2, 2015  
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12:52pm 6/3 - when Ms. Lynch emailed 3rd
revision? 

Among important amendments are when reports on agenda items are available,
HOW they are available, time limits for speakers.

The public - as well as Commissioners - has been struggling to participate in Planning
Commission meetings for well over a year.  Also without access to Department office
to see/copy reports AND plans. 

I appreciate staff "overview of edits" provided in this email.  But overview does not
substitute for careful reading of revisions proposed.  Staff recommendation is simple -
Adopt Amendments.

Since 3rd revision was not available 10 days in advance (Article V - Amendments),
the Commission can take public comment on June 10, then Commission/Department
discussion.  Then continue item to VOTE on Rules amendment until June 24 when
there will be a 6 member Commission.

More than simply giving "notice" is expected by current Rules.  Actual
language of proposed amendments is required. 

Deferring the vote on proposed amendments will give Commission and the public to
follow current Rules.

Sue Hestor

 

 

 

-------- Forwarded Message --------
Subject:CPC Rules and Regulations Executive Summary and Draft Amendments

Date:Thu, 3 Jun 2021 19:52:42 +0000
From:Lynch, Laura (CPC) <laura.lynch@sfgov.org>

To:Sue Hestor <hestor@earthlink.net>
CC:Son, Chanbory (CPC) <chanbory.son@sfgov.org>

Hi Ms. Hestor,
 
The final draft amendments and executive summary have been uploaded to our website and are
attached here.

mailto:laura.lynch@sfgov.org
mailto:hestor@earthlink.net
mailto:chanbory.son@sfgov.org


 
Staff packets are uploaded on our website under Supporting documents. Here is the link to the June
10th Hearing : Planning Commission | SF Planning
 
Here is also a link directly to the uploaded document Executive Summary (sfplanning.org)
 
Thank you,
Laura
Laura Lynch, Senior Planner
Manager of Commission Affairs
San Francisco Planning
49 South Van Ness Avenue, Suite 1400, San Francisco, CA 94103
Direct: 628-652-
7554| https://url.avanan.click/v2/___www.sfplanning.org___.YXAzOnNmZHQyOmE6bzpkMTIyMTM5MGJhNG
RlMThlMzNlYmQ3YzcxMTJjMjQzZDozOjFmYTk6Mjk2MjVmNDIzNDU1YTA0ZmIzMGI3MWEzN2JmNGRhZmZiODJ
jYjM0ZGQyMGE0YzBjNTAxMTcwMGJjYjA5NzllMQ
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
 

https://url.avanan.click/v2/___https:/sfplanning.org/event/planning-commission-136___.YXAzOnNmZHQyOmE6bzpkMTIyMTM5MGJhNGRlMThlMzNlYmQ3YzcxMTJjMjQzZDozOmFhM2Y6ZTFlODgzMDMxMGJhMDcyZThhNWE0YWFhNGVmM2I0YmNkMDljMjQyNzAxOWRlOWM3ZTliZmJhNGYxNjNiZThkYQ
https://url.avanan.click/v2/___https:/commissions.sfplanning.org/cpcpackets/2021-004810CRVc1.pdf___.YXAzOnNmZHQyOmE6bzpkMTIyMTM5MGJhNGRlMThlMzNlYmQ3YzcxMTJjMjQzZDozOmIyNTA6ZmYxMmE0MGM3NjkwMzk1YTgwOTkzYWJiMTg4Y2QzMDAxNjkyZjc4ZGRiODg3ZjI0MTc3NDEyOTNmOGVjMDM4MQ
https://url.avanan.click/v2/___http:/www.sfplanning.org/___.YXAzOnNmZHQyOmE6bzpkMTIyMTM5MGJhNGRlMThlMzNlYmQ3YzcxMTJjMjQzZDozOjY3OTA6MDA4YTkzZjY3ZjUwYjQ1MzhjNDJhODJmNzY4MzY5MDYzZGM4ZDAwYWRjYzRkMjEwMTEyMTdiNThkNzgwM2MzYw
https://url.avanan.click/v2/___http:/www.sfplanning.org/___.YXAzOnNmZHQyOmE6bzpkMTIyMTM5MGJhNGRlMThlMzNlYmQ3YzcxMTJjMjQzZDozOjY3OTA6MDA4YTkzZjY3ZjUwYjQ1MzhjNDJhODJmNzY4MzY5MDYzZGM4ZDAwYWRjYzRkMjEwMTEyMTdiNThkNzgwM2MzYw
https://url.avanan.click/v2/___http:/www.sfplanning.org/___.YXAzOnNmZHQyOmE6bzpkMTIyMTM5MGJhNGRlMThlMzNlYmQ3YzcxMTJjMjQzZDozOjY3OTA6MDA4YTkzZjY3ZjUwYjQ1MzhjNDJhODJmNzY4MzY5MDYzZGM4ZDAwYWRjYzRkMjEwMTEyMTdiNThkNzgwM2MzYw
https://url.avanan.click/v2/___https:/sfplanninggis.org/pim/___.YXAzOnNmZHQyOmE6bzpkMTIyMTM5MGJhNGRlMThlMzNlYmQ3YzcxMTJjMjQzZDozOjBlMWI6MTMwZThhMTQzNmM4NTAyNzNhNTJlZjFhYTdlOTQ0YTM2Y2U5ZTY0MjdkNmY1ZjY4Y2YyZTU4NTVkNTNlZWRiMw
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
Subject: FW: Letter re: 530 Sansome Street/439 Washington Street
Date: Thursday, June 03, 2021 4:20:03 PM
Attachments: Letter_530 Sansome Street.pdf

 
 
 
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
Sent: Thursday, June 03, 2021 1:41 PM
To: CPC-Commissions Secretary <commissions.secretary@sfgov.org>
Subject: Fwd: Letter re: 530 Sansome Street/439 Washington Street
 

 

Hello,
 
I am forwarding this letter submitted to the Planning Commissioners last week on 5/27, in order that
it become a part of the public record. Could you please confirm receipt of this email?
 
Thank You, 
 
---------- Forwarded message ---------
From: Josephine Radbill <jradbill@unitehere2.org>
Date: Thu, May 27, 2021 at 1:50 PM
Subject: Letter re: 530 Sansome Street/439 Washington Street
To: <joel.koppel@sfgov.org>, <kathrin.moore@sfgov.org>, <Rachael.Tanner@sfgov.org>,
<theresa.imperial@sfgov.org>, <sue.diamond@sfgov.org>, <frank.fung@sfgov.org>,
<deland.chan@sfgov.org>
 

Hello President, Vice-President and Commissioners, 
 
I have attached a letter regarding the proposed project at 530 Sansome Street/439 Washington that
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mailto:Josephine.Feliciano@sfgov.org
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May 27, 2021 


Joel Koppel, President 
San Francisco Planning Commission 
1650 Mission Street, Suite 400 
San Francisco, California 94103 
RE: 530 Sansome Street/439 Washington Street 
VIA EMAIL 
 
Dear President Koppel, Vice President Moore, and Commissioners Deland Chan, Sue Diamond, Frank 
Fung, Theresa Imperial, and Rachel Tanner: 
 
Local 2 is writing to express concerns regarding the proposed project at 530 Sansome Street/439 
Washington Street, which is currently slated to go before the Planning Commission on June 24. The 
project sponsor, Related Companies, proposes to demolish the existing buildings (including Fire Station 
13) and build a large tower with a mix of potential uses. Option A includes hotel use on all nineteen 
above ground floors, retail/restaurant use on floors one and two, a gym on floors one to five, and office 
use on floors one to eight. Related’s option B is residential use on all twenty-one above ground floors 
(this design proposes achieving three additional floors by lowering ceiling heights). Related would like to 
maintain the ability to choose between Option A or B; it seeks approvals from the Planning Commission 
to build two different projects with altogether different uses, at its own discretion. We find that there is 
not enough information in the project application to move it forward to a final hearing at this uncertain 
time, especially when what is proposed is two entirely different projects, with different impacts on the 
community that have not been fully considered. 
 
We have looked in the Property Information Map and our own records for a similar precedent, and we 
have found none.  We are troubled by the idea of the project sponsor reserving the right, after receiving 
approvals from the Planning Commission, to choose which of the two designs to construct. Either option 
will include the construction of a new Fire Station 13, but according to the project summary table in the 
April 2021 plans submitted by Related, the gross floor area of the new fire station accounts for only 10% 
of the building’s gross square footage.1 When 90% of a building’s planned use changes, that is not a 
variant. It is a different project altogether.  


 
Further questions about the dual project concepts arise when looking at the hotel Market Demand Study, 
written by Newmark, Knight and Frank: “we have projected the market area occupancy in the first 


 
1 530 Sansome Street Plans_April 2021.PDF: page 5. 
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projection year to be approximately 50%, well below 2019 levels. While there is no definitive data 
available to project demand growth after a decline of this magnitude (our emphasis), we have relied 
on historical data in terms of timing the recovery… the subject’s occupancy level is expected to recover at 
some point during the third projection year.”2 If there is significant demand for a new luxury hotel, then 
why is Related pursuing approvals for the option to build residential units? Might there be considerable 
uncertainty, even from the project sponsor’s own calculations, about the economic recovery of the hotel 
industry from the COVID-19 pandemic? 


The Planning Commission is asked to evaluate projects based on numerous criteria: is the project’s plan 
safe and realistic? How will the project integrate into the surrounding community, and will its benefits 
outweigh any negative impacts? Will the project alter traffic patterns or wind impacts in a way that 
creates hazards or discomfort for pedestrians and cyclists? For a hotel proposal, is it “necessary and 
desirable” for that community? Do Commissioners imagine being able to discharge this duty with so 
much still undetermined about what is to be built? 


COVID-19 has accelerated some troubling trends in the hotel industry, including a shift towards the gig 
economy. Management companies are trying to return to profitability by squeezing more work out of a 
smaller labor pool. Some are considering a gig-economy structure, where workers are paid at the end of 
each day and easily replaced by a different worker the next day.3 This would only exacerbate the 
instability that has resulted from the pandemic. We do not believe this aligns with San Francisco values. 
Following the trend of requiring more work from fewer workers, we also find that this hotel, despite its 
luxury class, would not result in nearly the same number of jobs as a similar luxury hotel would have only 
ten years ago. In fact, if the hotel market demand study or the project’s CUA application included any 
information on the number of jobs created, we did not see it. 


 We are concerned that, with the option to build for one use or another, the proposed project’s impacts 
cannot be thoroughly explored. The project sponsor has not provided sufficient information about each 
use type to warrant approval; much more discussion is needed to determine what is appropriate and 
beneficial. 


We have further questions about the hotel Market Demand Study, which describes how the hotel market’s 
performance dropped precipitously in San Francisco during the pandemic. Analyzing thirteen comparable 
hotels, by December 2020, total market demand had fallen 86.4% and RevPAR (revenue per available 
hotel room) had fallen 88.9% (percentages calculated as a compound annual growth rate).4 2020 was the 
worst year for San Fransisco’s hospitality industry in recent memory, including the years after September 
11, 2001. In addition, the study documents fifteen hotel projects in the development pipeline, adding a 
total of 2,591 hotel rooms to the San Francisco market in the coming years.5 As of April 1, 2021 53 hotels 
remained closed across the city and the “velocity of hotel reopenings (the inverse of net closings) appears 
to be behind that of the nation.”6 At a time of such uncertainty, we think that every hotel proposal should 
be met with all due caution and scrutiny. 


 
2 Newmark, Knight, Frank. Luxury Hotel San Francisco (Proposed): page 103. 
3 CoStar.com: Hotel Labor Shortage Spur’s Shift in Industry’s Operating Model. May 12, 2021. 
4 Newmark, Knight, Frank. Luxury Hotel San Francisco (Proposed): page 95. 
5 Newmark, Knight, Frank. Luxury Hotel San Francisco (Proposed): page 97. 
6 Newmark, Knight, Frank. Luxury Hotel San Francisco (Proposed): page 77. 
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It is important to evaluate a new development’s shadow impact because San Francisco is already densely 
developed and exposure to sunlight in public spaces, as we all know, is important to residents’ overall 
wellbeing. Two Recreation and Parks Department parks are impacted by this project: Sue Bierman Park 
and Maritime Plaza. The new shadow cast on Maritime Plaza, on its biggest day of impact, shadows 
13.3% of the park, including the landscape and seating areas, which are “the most sensitive areas” of the 
park according to the Preliminary Mitigated Negative Declaration (PMND). The PMND states that many 
park goers are participating in active or transitory activities in the park, so they are presumed to care less 
about the shadow. It also suggests that stationary park goers could simply congregate in the sunny seated 
areas or lawn. We do not believe this argument is in keeping with the spirit of the Shadow Ordinance. 
According to the project sponsor’s shadow study, shadows cast by trees are considered impermanent, yet 
the PMND uses the existence of trees in Sue Bierman Park to justify a less-than-significant environmental 
ruling. Dappled sunlight and shade experienced from the trees is quite different from shadows cast from 
blocks away by a new development.  


We are asking the Commissioners to consider carefully whether a project of this size and complexity 
should be approved using a process that would leave so much uncertainty about what would eventually be 
built. We urge you not to approve this project application without clarity on its intended use and further 
exploration of community impacts. 


 


Sincerely, 
Josephine Radbill 
Research Analyst 
UNITE HERE Local 2 
 


 







is scheduled for the hearing on June 24, 2021. 
 
Thank you,
--
Josephine Radbill
UNITE HERE Local 2
415.815.2771
she/her/hers
--
Josephine Radbill
UNITE HERE Local 2
415.815.2771
she/her/hers



From: CPC-Commissions Secretary
To: Feliciano, Josephine (CPC)
Subject: FW: June 3, 2021 Hearing re 2424 Polk St, line 8 2020-011603CUA
Date: Thursday, June 03, 2021 4:18:44 PM

 
 
 
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
 
 

From: Feeney, Claire (CPC) <claire.feeney@sfgov.org> 
Sent: Thursday, June 03, 2021 1:05 PM
To: Diane Josephs <djosephs@jandblawyers.com>; Koppel, Joel (CPC) <joel.koppel@sfgov.org>;
katherin.moore@sfgov.org; Chan, Deland (CPC) <deland.chan@sfgov.org>; Diamond, Susan (CPC)
<sue.diamond@sfgov.org>; Fung, Frank (CPC) <frank.fung@sfgov.org>; Imperial, Theresa (CPC)
<theresa.imperial@sfgov.org>; Tanner, Rachael (CPC) <rachael.tanner@sfgov.org>; Ionin, Jonas
(CPC) <jonas.ionin@sfgov.org>; CPC-Commissions Secretary <commissions.secretary@sfgov.org>;
kcourtney@rhcasf.com
Subject: RE: June 3, 2021 Hearing re 2424 Polk St, line 8 2020-011603CUA
 
Hi Diane,
Thank you for your message about 2424 Polk Street. Your continued opposition has been updated
and logged in the Project file and forwarded to the Project Sponsor. Please see further information
below for some of your concerns below:
 

This Project is moving slower than is mandated per City policy. Cannabis business applications
are prioritized for racial and social equity reasons and should get a public hearing within 90 to
120 days of Application submittal. This project is currently almost double that amount of time.
Pre-Application meetings are required to invite neighbors of immediately adjacent properties.
If you or your acquaintances live in a residence that does not share a property line with 2424
Polk Street, the applicant was not required to invite you (or them) per procedure.
The 600-foot school buffer rule applies to grades Kindergarten through Twelve. As daycares,
nursery schools, and preschools are not subject to the 600-foot rule, the Project Site is eligible
for a Cannabis CUA.
Thank you for pointing out the Cannabis retailer at Washington and Polk Streets. I will update
my presentation to include this location. 

 
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

Claire
 
Claire Feeney, AICP, Planner II
Southeast Team, Current Planning Division
San Francisco Planning Department
49 South Van Ness Avenue, Suite 1400, San Francisco, CA 94103 
Direct: 628.652.7313 | www.sfplanning.org
San Francisco Property Information Map
 
Due to COVID-19, San Francisco Planning is not providing any in-person services, but we are operating
remotely. Our staff are available by e-mail, and the Planning and Historic Preservation Commissions are
convening remotely. The public is encouraged to participate. Find more information on our services here.
 

From: Diane Josephs <djosephs@jandblawyers.com> 
Sent: Thursday, June 3, 2021 11:51 AM
To: Feeney, Claire (CPC) <claire.feeney@sfgov.org>; Koppel, Joel (CPC) <joel.koppel@sfgov.org>;
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
kcourtney@rhcasf.com; Diane Josephs <djosephs@jandblawyers.com>
Subject: Fwd: June 3, 2021 Hearing re 2424 Polk St, line 8 2020-011603CUA
 

 

 

---------- Forwarded message ---------
From: Diane Josephs <djosephs@jandblawyers.com>
Date: Thu, Jun 3, 2021 at 11:46 AM
Subject: June 3, 2021 Hearing re 2424 Polk St, line 8 2020-011603CUA
To: Feeney, Claire (CPC)
 

June 3, 2021

Dear Commissioners,

               Many neighbors near and adjacent to 2424 Polk intend to speak and /or have written of
their concerns. I have been authorized to request a Continuance of the proposed project at 2424
Polk Street because of unidentified and unaddressed issues and the unanticipated consequences of
an approval. In essence, we are addressing an unknown situation, the project has proceeded with
unprecedented speed since first proposal and limited notice to the public (December 20, 2020).

 On March 16, 2021, this planning department noted extraordinary challenges of this past year:
emergency  limited activities outside, limited access to the planning department and its documents, 
limited socialization  activities and movement,  lack of childcare,  preoccupation with care for
vulnerable and ill family members and  other actions necessary to respond to the emergency. The
department, therefore, provided developers an automatic 18 months extension. The immediate
neighbors (150- 450 feet) request 2-4 weeks extension of this hearing to seek common ground
and meaningfully respond to a project which has  moved  through Planning with exceptional
speed. 
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 The Pre-Application zoom meeting was December 22, 2020, of this, most of us were not aware. In
this COVID period, most of us neighbors were not outside, walking the street watching signs.  When
we became aware of the proposed project in what many of us still call the Jade Snow Wong building,
we realized we had questions.   These are the issues we wanted to address with the Project Sponsor.
Project sponsor declined the extension.  

                  In the event that the Commission decides not to allow a Continuance, the neighbors also
request that any approval have the following conditions:

1)            “Deliveries” to customers not be allowed. The applicant has a much larger site on Mission
where such deliveries can be accommodated.  

2)            Smoking and vaporizing lounge not be allowed, without prejudice to applicant’s seeking
further consideration after substantive information and neighborhood meetings have occurred.

3)            Hours be restricted to 10 am to 9 pm, consistent with the location.

 

The  rationale is simple:

1)            Polk Street is a narrow corridor, primarily residential north of Union Street.  The 19 Polk is a
major bus line that intersects with the 45 Union at Polk and Union.  The Polk Street residential
corridor is not adequate for the traffic that “deliveries” will entail, given the bus route and red zone
25 feet adjacent to the site and the outdoor dining “Shared Spaces” 25 feet adjacent to the
proposed project and Bicycle lanes. The traffic management plan for the proposed project has not
been addressed fully.  Deliveries should not be allowed at this site, particularly in light of other site.  

2)            The Information provided regarding the smoking lounge is inadequate at this time. The
ventilation plans for the proposed project need to be reviewed by the Department of Public Health. 
However, in its review of the proposed project, the Commission needs to note that the Russian Hill
Academy at 1346 Union is approximately 150’ from the proposed project.  The Academy is a pre-
school, child care and after school center for up to 12 years of age.  While the Academy is not
considered a ‘school’ within the regulations for this industry, children are on site 5 days a week for 5
to 10 hours.  The risk and potential impact a smoking and vaporizing lounge on pre-school and young
children cannot be underestimated.  A Smoking and Vaporizing lounge should not be allowed at this
time. There is no information provided regarding how to address very complicated issue, particularly
in light of Covid: unvaccinated customers engaging in, by definition, the opposite of social distancing:
sharing bongs, rigs,  passing joints etc. Moreover, no information is been provided as to controlling
intoxicated “high” individuals. The applicants do not provide information as to relevant experience
to running a lounge, nor an understanding of the sensitivity of the site location. Although Galileo
High School is 1300’ away, students congregate at Polk and Union catching the 19 Polk or 45 Union. 
Since the proposed Project will provide cannabis to those 18 years old with a card (attainable online
in 24-48 hours. The City Controller’s office has presented disturbing data and concerns regarding the
12% increase in use of cannabis at SF high schools since legalization. A consumption/smoking lounge
will be an exciting, attractive nuisance, even if students only inhale smoke when the lounge doors
open.

3)            Polk Street north of Union is the buffer, transitional block to a primarily residential area; the
block is unlike the more commercial area south of Union. The hours for this residential area should
be restricted to hours more appropriate to a residential area. With this of course comes questions of
how the proposed Project’s management will manage lines, monitor consumption etc. 

Please Note: The applicants’ rationale for the project is lack of access-- purportedly one dispensary
on Lombard. Actually, there is an ongoing dispensary at Hyde and California. The cannabis site at
Washington and Polk has been approved – only 5 blocks from the proposed site—along with 5
others within an approximate .5 radius, already approved, some already under construction.

Sincerely,

 electronic

Diane Josephs for Concerned Union Street Neighbors

cc) Joan Albertson, Cindy Chan, Dennis Blum, Dan Noia, Lynn Ferrante, Mike Albertson



 

 

 

 

 


